10 Old Busmes

9.

. Pledge of Alle'glance

. Public Hearlng( ) — None

Wacon oumf%

MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MAY 8, 2018 - 6 P.M.
AGENDA

. Call to order and welcome by Chairman Tate
. Announcements

. Moment of Sllence

Pubhc Comment Per1od

. ir_AddltIOI’lS to agenda

Adjustments3 :o and approval of the agenda

Reports / Presentatlons

B ‘A. 'gSecond readmg on revised Ammal Control Ordmance '

' B. §Con31deratlon of amendment  to the Cullasaja: Commumty -

‘Association Agreement - Comm1ssmner Beale and the County

;Attorney

C. §D1scu3510n/con31derat10n of renewal of lease agreement for the
I azebo property Wlth the Town. of Frankhn County Attorney=

A Plehc Health FY 2018 19 Bllllng and’ Collectlon Pohcles and{ ST
Fees Schedules — Public Health Director Jim'Bruckner
B. South Macon Elementary School — Finance Director and County

Attorney
(1) Interlocal Agreement

(2) Memorandum of lease extension and subordination

agreement

(3) Set June 12, 2018 for public hearing on proposed financing

MACON COUNTY COURTHOUSE ANNEX 5 WEST MAIN STREET

PHONE 828-349-2000

FRANKLIN, NORTH CAROLINA 28734
FAX: 828-349-2400



C. Consideration of Interlocal Agreement with Southwestern
Community College regarding new Public Safety Training Center
— County Attorney

D. Discussion/consideration of resolution regarding “spotlighting”
— County Attorney

E. Discussion regarding dog park — Chairman Tate

F.- Fireworks permit request

G. Discussion regarding opioids litigation — County Attorney

12.Consent Agenda — Attachment #12
All items below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. No
separate discussion will be held except on request of a member of the Board of
Commissioners.

A. Minutes of the April 10, 2018 regular meeting

B. Budget Amendments #191-194

C. Tax Releases for April in the amount of $295.02

D. Monthly ad valorem tax collection report (no action necessary)

13.Appointments
A. Highlands Tourism Development Commission
B. Franklin/Nantahala Tourism Development Commission

14.Closed session (if necessary)

15.Recess until Tuesday, May 15, 2018 at X:XX p.m. (exact time to be
determined) in the commission boardroom on the third floor of the
Macon County Courthouse, 5 West Main Street, Franklin, NC for
the primary purpose of the County Manager’s presentation of the
recommended Fiscal Year 2018-19 budget and for any other
business that may come before the board.




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: May 8, 2018
DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Governing Board/Public Health
SUBJECT MATTER: Revised Animal Control Ordinance

COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

The board voted 3-0 at its April 10, 2018 regular meeting to approve the
revised Animal Control Ordinance as presented. However, due to two
members being absent, a second vote or “reading” is required to achieve
final approval. Attached please find a copy of the revised ordinance.

Attachments

Agenda Item 10A




AN ORDINANCE OF THE MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MAKING
REVISIONS TO CHAPTER 90. ANIMALS, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE COUNTY
OF MACON. NORTH CAROLINA

WHEREAS, the Macon County Board of Commissioners adopted a revised Macon County Ordinance for
the Regulation of Certain Animals on October 13, 2008; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners did amend the same on January 10, 2010; and
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners did again amend the same on June 10, 2010; and
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners did again amend the same on October 15. 2015; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners wishes to make certain specific amendments to the Ordinance as
recommended by the Director of the Macon County Health Department, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners wishes to revise the Macon County Ordinance for the Regulation
of Certain Animals as set forth below; and

WHEREAS, the Macon County Board of Health have indicated that they approve of the revised Ordinance
contained hereinafter and would recommend unto the Macon County Board of Commissioners the adoption
and passage of this Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners finds the same to be in the public interest and to promote the
public health, safety and welfare pursuant to authority vested in it by North Carolina General Statutes
Sections 153A-121, 153A-127, 153A-153, and 153A-442 and Chapter 67 of the General Statutes;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Macon County Board of Commissioners that:

Section 1. Chapter 90, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances of the County of Macon, North Carolina, as
heretofore amended, is hereby repealed in its entirety, and the following substituted in lieu thereof:

CHAPTER 90
ANIMAL CONTROL

Sec. 90-1. TITLE, PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY.

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the Macon County Animal Control Ordinance. 'The
purpose of this Ordinance is to promote the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of Macon County and
to abate conditions detrimental to the peace and dignity of the County. This Ordinance is adopted pursuant
to the authority contained in Sections 153A-121, 153A-123, 153A-127, 153A-131, 19A-45, 153A-153, and
§153A-442 of the North Carolina General Statutes, Articles 1- 5 of Chapter 67 of the N.C.G.S.; and Article
6 of Chapter 130A of the North Carolina General Statutes, as applicable.




Sec. 90-2. APPLICABILITY TO VETERINARIANS.

Hospitals, clinics and other premises operated by licensed veterinarians for the care and treatment of
animals are exempt from the provisions of this Chapter except for the provisions relating to cruelty to
animals and rabies control.

Sec. 90-3. DEFINITIONS.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed to
them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

Abandon means to intentionally, knowingly, recklessly or negligently leave an animal at a location
without providing for the animal’s care.

Adequate food means the provision at suitable intervals, not to exceed 24 hours, of a quantity of
wholesome foodstuff suitable for the species and age, sufficient to maintain a reasonable level of nutrition
in each animal. Such foodstuff shall be served in a receptacle, dish or container that is physically clean
and in which agents injurious to health have been removed or destroyed to a practical minimum.

Adequate shelter means shelter which will keep a nonaquatic animal dry, out of the direct path of winds
and out of the direct sun, at a temperature level that is healthful for the animal. It shall include four walls,
a roof and a solid floor, with an opening entrance large enough to allow access to the animal, but placed in
such a way as to keep the animal out of the direct path of winds. The containment area shall be free of
accumulated waste and debris so that the animal shall be free to walk or lie down without coming in
contact with any such waste or debris, and a suitable method of draining shall be provided to rapidly
eliminate excess water or moisture. For dogs, cats and other small animals, the shelter shall be a
windproof and moisture proof structure of suitable size to accommodate the animal and allow retention of
body heat. Metal barrels do not provide adequate shelter for a dog, cat or other small animal and are
prohibited for that purpose.

Adequate water means a constant access to a supply of clean, fresh water provided in a sanitary manner.

Animal means any live, vertebrate creature specifically including but not limited to dogs, cats, farm
animals, birds, fish and reptiles.

Animal Control Officer means an individual designated to perform animal control duties described by
this Ordinance. Animal control officers shall be Certified Rabies Vaccinators and Certified Euthanasia
Technicians. Animal control officers shall not have the power to arrest.

Animal shelter means a place provided and operated by the county directly or by contractual agreement,
whether jointly with another governmental unit or independently, for the restraint, care, adoption and
disposition of animals in accordance with this chapter.

Attack means to set upon in a forceful, violent, hostile, or aggressive way, with or without provocation.
Attacks can involve animal to human or animal to animal interaction.

(1) Provoked Attack is considered normal behavior and occur when an animal responds in an
aggressive, violent, terrorizing, or threatening manner to a perceived threat to its body (fear-induced),
food, (possessive), territory, or offspring (protective).




(2) Non-provoked Attack occurs when an animal crosses neutral space and attacks for no reason
(without being teased, molested, provoked, beaten, tortured or otherwise harmed).

At large means any animal off the property of its owner and not under the restraint of a competent person.

Bite means the act of an animal seizing the flesh with its teeth or jaws, so as to tear, pierce or injure the
flesh.

Board of Commissioners means the Macon County Board of Commissioners.
Cats means any and all domesticated felines.

Citation means a written notice served by an animal control officer citing a person for a violation of this
ordinance.

Civil penalty means a financial penalty imposed by an animal control officer for a violation of this
ordinance.

Competent person means a person of suitable age and discretion to keep an animal under sufficient
restraint and control in order to prevent harm to the animal and to persons, other animals, including but
not limited to domesticated livestock, or property.

County means Macon County, North Carolina.

Cruelty, cruel treatment, and abuse as used in this chapter mean every act, omission or neglect whereby
unjustifiable physical pain, suffering or death is caused or permitted or attempted to be caused or
permitted against animals, as well as acts or attempted acts of teasing, molesting, baiting or trapping of
animals unlawfully. Such acts or omissions shall include but not be limited to beating, kicking, hanging,
submerging under water, suffocating, poisoning, setting on fire, and depriving of food, water and medical
treatment, or otherwise subjecting the animal to conditions detrimental to its health or general welfare.
Such terms, however, shall not be construed to include lawful taking of animals under the jurisdiction and
regulation of the wildlife resources commission, lawful activities sponsored by agencies conducting
biomedical research or training, lawful activities for sport, or other lawful activities under state law.

Dangerous dog means any animal as defined in N.C.G.S.A. §67 - 4.1 (a) (b).

Direct control means an animal is under restraint (excludes control by voice commands) and in the
custody of its owner, or other competent person having possession thereof.

Dogs means any and all domestic canines.

Domesticated animal (non-livestock) means any such animal that is accustomed to live in or about the
habitation of humans, including but not limited to cats, dogs, cows, fowl, horses or swine, but not to
include any Wild Animal, Farm Animal or Feral Animal a defined hercin.

Domesticated livestock (Farm Animal) means livestock raised for the production of meat, milk, eggs or
fiber, or used for draft or equestrian purposes, including but not limited to cattle, sheep, goats, swine,
horses, mules, rabbits and poultry.




Exotic animal means an animal that would ordinarily be confined to a zoo, or is a species of animal not
indigenous to this State. The term specifically does not include animals of a species customarily held in
this State as ordinary household pets, animals of species used in the State as a domestic livestock, fish,
birds, non-venomous reptiles and species that are deemed inherently dangerous under this Chapter or
regulated by the North Carolina Wildlife Resource Commission.

Feral animal means a wild animal — non-domesticated or one, such as a dog or cat that has escaped and
returned to live in the wild, but has some contact and experience with humans and/or for which no one
claims ownership.

Harbor means to feed or shelter an animal by the same person or household for 72 consecutive hours or
more.

Health Director means the director of the Macon County Health Department.

Identified animal means an animal with an identification tag, tattoo, microchip, or other marking on
which is described the animal owner’s name, address and contact information.

Impoundment means the placement of an animal in the custody of a person or animal shelter duly
authorized by an animal control officer and/or the Health Director.

Lead Animal Control Officer means that person designated to perform animal control duties described by
this Ordinance. The Lead Animal Control Officer shall be an Animal Control Officer.

Microchip refers to a tiny permanent identification system, implanted under the animal’s skin and read by
a chip scanner which identifies the owners name and address and which is available on regional or
national databases. Implantation is done with an injector that places the chip under the loose skin over the
animal’s shoulder.

Neutered male means any male which has been castrated.

Owner means any competent person or group of persons owning, keeping, having charge of, sheltering,
feeding, harboring or taking carc of any animal. The owner of an animal is responsible for the care,
actions and behavior of his or her animal(s). This definition shall also apply to the term “ownership” as
used in this chapter.

Owner’s property means that area described in a deed of conveyance or the area described in a lease. In a
situation involving townhomes or condominiums, Animal Control will treat the common areas as being
owned by the homeowners” association. In a situation involving leased apartments, Animal Control will
treat the common areas as being owned by the lessor. A motor vehicle is not a part of the owner’s
property unless it is physically located on the area described in a deed of conveyance or the area described
in a lease. A motor vehicle that is physically located in or on the common areas of townhomes,
condominiums or leased apartments, or other public areas shall be treated as being off of the owner’s
property.

Person means any individual, family, group of individuals, corporation, partnership, organization, trade or
professional association, firm limited liability company, joint venture, association, trust, estate, non-profit
corporation or any other legal entity or institution recognized by law as a person.




Public nuisance means any animal off the owner’s property which without provocation habitually or
repeatedly chases, snaps at, attacks or otherwise behaves in an aggressive manner to pedestrians,
bicyclists or vehicles or turns over garbage cans, damages gardens (vegetable or flower), damages plant
beds, damages public or private property or damages livestock.

Scratch means the act of an animal with its claws which results in and/or causes a narrow or superficial
wound, scrape or other type of break in the skin of a human or animal.

Section Administrator Animal Services means that person responsible for the planning, organizing,
coordinating, and directing of all County Animal Services activities (including Animal Control, Animal
Shelter, and Rabies Control Programs). The Section Administrator is responsible for the: Enforcement of
state laws and this ordinances relating to Animal Services functions; the development of policies and
procedures; impounding, care/treatment, and disposition of animals in the county shelter; development
and implementation of programs and coordination with rescue groups and interested individuals to
maximize the placement of abandoned and surrendered animals; and, minimize euthanasia of adoptable
animals. The Section Administrator Animal Services shall be an Animal Control Officer.

Security dog means any dog used, kept or maintained on the premises of its owner for the purpose of
protecting any person or property. Any such dog shall be further classified as follows:

(1) Patrol dog means a dog that is trained or conditioned to attack or otherwise respond aggressively,
but only upon command from a handler either off or on lead.

(2) Sentry dog means a dog that is trained or conditioned to attack or otherwise respond aggressively
without command.

(3) Watchdog means a dog that barks and threatens to bite any intruder, but has not been specially
trained or conditioned for that purpose.

Secuare enclosure means a place in which an animal is securely confined in order to provide for a safe,
healthy, and humane environment for the animal; prevent escape by the animal; and protect and enhances
the public's health and safety. A secure enclosure consists of a locked pen or structure suitable to prevent
unauthorized entry and designed to prevent the animal from escaping. Such enclosure shall be:
Constructed on a concrete pad; have a double entry which protects the person entering and prevents the
animal from escaping; have secure sides including the top; provides protection for the animal from the
elements; and be of suitable size for the type of animal.

Spayed female means any female sterilized by removing the ovaries.

Stray means any domestic animal that is wandering at large or is lost and (1) is not an identified animal,
(2) the animal control officer does not otherwise know who the owner is , or (3) does not have an owner.

Under restraint means that an animal is under sufficient physical restraint such as (1) a leash, cage, bridle,
or similar effective and humane device that restrains and controls the animal; (2) sufficiently near the
owner to be under his or her control and is obedient to that person’s commands (exception: no animal is
permitted to run at large within or upon any lands owned by or under the control of Macon County used
for recreational purposes with the exception of dogs running within the designated, fenced dog park(s}; (3)
on or within a vehicle being driven or parked and secured in such a manner as to prevent the animal from
escaping or causing injury to persons approaching or passing by the vehicle; (4) adequately contained by a
fence or other secure enclosure; or (5) within the property limits of its owner. If any unattended animal is




restrained by a chain, leash or similar restraint, it shall be designed and placed to prevent choking or
strangulation.

Veterinary clinic and/or hospital means any place or establishment maintained and operated under the
supervision of a licensed veterinarian as a clinic and/or hospital where animals are harbored, boarded and
cared for incidental to the treatment, prevention or alleviation of disease processes during the routine

practice of the profession of veterinary medicine for surgery, diagnosis and treatment of diseases and
injuries of animals.

Vicious animal means any animal as defined in N.C.G.S. §130A-200.

Wild animal means an animal living in a state of nature; not tamed or domesticated

Sec. 90-4. JURISDICTION.

This chapter shall be effective in all areas of Macon County, North Carolina.

Sec. 90-5. ANIMAL SHELTER.

The county shall operate and maintain a County Animal Shelter for the purpose of impounding or caring
for animals held under authority of state law, this chapter, or any other county ordinance. The county may
contract for the operation of the Animal Shelter as it deems appropriate. The same shall be the
responsibility of the Animal Services Section of the Macon County Health Department.

Sec. 90-6 CREATION OF AN ANIMAL SERVICES SECTION OF THE MACON COUNTY
HEALTH DEPARTMENT.

There is created an Animal Services section of the Macon County Health Department which shall be
responsible for the Macon County Animal Shelter and Animal Control Programs hereinafter specified.

Sec. 90-7. ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICERS.

The Health Director may appoint one or more animal control officers. Any such officers shall be Macon
County Health Department employees in the Animal Services Section of the Macon County Health
Department. The Animal Services Section of the Macon County Health Department shall be supervised by
the Section Administrator Animal Services, who shall also be an employee of the Macon County Health
Department, who shall be the supervisor of that Section of the Macon County Health Department. The
Section Administrator Animal Services shall report to and be under the authority of the Health Director.
County animal control officers and Lead Animal Control Officer shall not have the power to arrest.

Sec. 90-8. ANIMAL CONTROL PROGRAM.

The county animal control program, as described in this chapter and as otherwise described in other county
ordinances related to animals and as otherwise described in state laws, shall be administered by the Section
Administrator Animal Services. Specifically:




(1) The Health Director shall designate employees or agents enforcing this Chapter as animal control
officers and Lead Animal Control Officer. Animal cruelty investigators may be appointed by the Board
of Commissioners as provided by law. In the performance of their duties, animal control officers shall
have all the power, authority and immunity granted under this chapter and by the general laws of this
state to enforce the provisions of this chapter, and the laws of this state as they relate to the care,
treatment, control or impounding of animals. All investigations of reported or observed animal cruelty or
animal abuse shall be the responsibility of the animal control officers of the county.

(2) Except as may be otherwise provided by law, no officer, agent or employee of the county charged
with the duty of enforcing the provisions of this chapter or other applicable laws shall be personally
liable for any damage that may accrue to persons or property as a result of any act required or permitted
in the discharge of such duty unless he or she acts with actual malice.

(3) It shall be unlawful for any person to interfere with, hinder or molest any animal control officer, lead
Animal Control Officer, Section Administrator Animal Services, Health Director, Animal Cruelty
Investigator, or law enforcement officer while in the performance of any duty authorized by this chapter
or the animal control program, or the laws of the state of North Carolina, or to seck to release any animal
in the custody of any of those agents, except in the manner as provided in this section.

(4) Animal control officers are not authorized to carry on their person firearms of any kind except as
provided in this section. The animal control program may store at the Animal Services Section of the
Macon County Health Department and use firearms (as allowed by state law) when necessary to enforce
sections of this chapter or under applicable law for the control of wild, vicious or diseased animals.

(5) The Animal Control Program shall:

a. Have the authority, along with the Health Director and law enforcement agencies to enforce all
state and local laws, including ordinances, regulations and proclamations of the county pertaining
to the ownership and control of dogs, cats, and other animals, and cooperate with the Health
Director and all law enforcement officers in fulfilling this duty.

b. Enforce and carry out all laws of the state and all ordinances of the county pertaining to rabies
control in cooperation with the Health Director and local law enforcement officers.

¢. Be responsible, in consultation with the Health Director or the health directors” designee, for the
investigation of all reported animal bites.

d. Be responsible, in consultation with the Health Director or the health directors’ designee, to issue a
quarantine/confinement order to the animal owner that would require the owner to confine a biting
animal for ten days pursuant to N.C.G.S. §130A-200, and for reporting to the Health Director as
soon as practicable the issuance of said order.

e. Be responsible, in consultation with the Health Director or the health directors’ designee, for the
quarantine/confinement of any dog, or other domestic animal exposed to or suspected of having
been exposed to another rabid animal and for reporting to the Health Director as soon as practicable

the occurrence of any such exposure and the condition of any confined animal pursuant to N.C.G.S.
§130A-200.




f. Be responsible for the investigation of reports or observations of incidents of harassment of or
injuries to domesticated livestock caused by dogs or other animals.

g. Be responsible for the seizure and arranging for the impoundment, where deemed necessary, of any
dog or other animal in the county involved in a violation of this chapter or any other county
ordinance or state law.

h. Investigate reported or observed animal cruelty or abuse independently or with a duly appointed
Animal Cruelty Investigators.

i. Make such investigations or inquiries as necessary for the purpose of ascertaining compliance with
this chapter or applicable state statute.

j. Keep, or cause to be kept, accurate and detailed records of:

1. Seizure, impoundment and disposition of all animals coming into and/or leaving the custody of
the animal control program.

2. Any animal complaints made to Animal Services, and their investigation and disposition.
3. Any animal bite cases, violations and complaints, and their investigation and disposition.
4. Any animal cruelty cases, violations and complaints, and their investigation and disposition.

5. Any violations of county ordinance and any investigation(s) thereof conducted and the
disposition of the investigation.

6. Any other matiers deemed necessary by the Health Director or Section Administrator Animal
Services or that may be required by county policy or state law.

k. Be empowered to issue notices of violation, assess civil penalties for violations of this chapter, and
issue citations when authorized by this ordinance or state law.

1. Have employees who are trained to standards to be established by the Section Administrator Animal
Services, which training shall include but not be limited to training as a Certified Rabies Vaccinator,
Certified Euthanasia Technician, and in Animal First Aid taught by a licensed veterinarian.

m.Be responsible for monitoring the county animal shelter to ensure compliance with all Health
Department policies and procedures, state laws, rules/regulations, and any and all contracts entered
into by the Health Department for the operation of the Animal Shelter.

n. Administer in consultation with the Section Administrator Animal Services, rabies vaccines to
impounded, non-vaccinated animals pursuant to N.C.G.S. §130A-186, and assist the Section
Administrator Animal Services in all scheduled rabies conirol clinics as required by state law.

0. Give every person a proof (certificate and metal rabies tag) of rabies vaccination at the time of
adoption of a dog or cat if it is four (4) months of age or older. The Certificate will be signed by a
licensed veterinarian or Certified Rabies Vaccinator as provided in this chapter.




(6) The premises for all animal shelters operated by or for the County shall meet the standards prescribed
by N.C.G.S. §153A-442.
Sec. 90-9. RELATION TO HUNTING LAWS.
It shall be unlawful and a violation of this chapter for any person to fail to comply with the requirements of
N.C.G.S. §113, Article 22 ef seq. and other laws of the state relating to the use of dogs for hunting.
Sec. 90-10. NOTICE IN CASE OF INJURY.
Tt shall be unlawful for any person who causes injury to an animal, including but not limited to running
over or hitting the domesticated animal with any vehicle, to fail to notify immediately at least one of the
following:
(1) The owner of the animal (if known or ascertainable with reasonable efforts made to locate the owner);

(2) An animal control officer; or

(3) The sheriff's department.

Sec. 90-11. MISTREATMENT OF ANIMALS UNLAWFUL.

The following acts or failure to act relating to the mistreatment of animals are unlawful and violations of
this chapter:

(1) Tt shall be unlawful for any person io subject or cause to be subjected any animal to cruel or abusive
treatment or to deprive or cause to be deprived any animal of adequate food and water. With respect to
domesticated animals or wild animals in captivity or under restraint, it shall additionally be unlawful to
deprive or cause to be deprived any such animal of adequate shelter or veterinary care.

(2) It shall be unlawful to restrain any animal except in a humane fashion.

(3) It shall be unlawful for any person to entice or lure any animal out of an enclosure or off the property
of its owner, or to seize, molest or tease any animal while the animal is held or controlled by its owner or
while the animal is on or off the property of its owner.

(4) It shall be unlawful for any person to abandon or forsake any animal within the County.

(5) It shall be unlawful for any person to leave an animal in a closed vehicle or other enclosure for such
duration or at such temperatures as an animal control officer, Lead Animal Control Officer or Animal
Cruelty Investigators deems harmful or potentially harmfiul to the animal.

Sec. 90-12. CONTROL OF VICIOUS ANIMALS.

(1) The purpose of this Section is to supplement the state laws governing vicious animals, and more
specifically, N.C.G.S. §130A-200.




(2) It shall be unlawful for any person to keep any vicious animal within the county, unless under restraint
and on the premises of the owner.

(3) Upon an animal control officer's observation of a vicious animal at large or off the premises of its
owner and not restrained by a competent person, such officer shall immediately impound the animal and
inform the Health Director or the health directors’ designee.

(4) Upon an animal control officer's receipt of a complaint that an animal is behaving or has behaved
viciously and is at large or off the premises of its owner and not restrained by a competent person, the
animal control officer or Lead Animal Control Officer, in cooperation with the Health Director or the
health directors designee, shall investigate the complaint and, upon a finding that there is probable cause
to believe a violation of this chapter or other applicable law or regulation has occurred, shall take any
action allowed by this chapter or state law as the circumstances may require.

(5) If an animal is impounded as vicious, authorization for reclamation after any required holding period
shall be granted when the THealth Director, in consultation with the Section Administrator Animal
Services, is reasonably assured that the animal is not vicious or that the vicious animal will be properly
restrained on the premises of its owner.

Sec. 90-13. SECURITY DOGS.

(1) All persons owning security dogs shall register such animals with the Section Administrator Animal
Services; the owner of any dog that is classed as a patrol dog or sentry dog under this chapter shall place
prominently a sign or placard on his premises noting "Beware of Dog" or other information noting the
presence of security dogs.

(2) It shall be unlawful for any person to keep any security dog within the county, unless under restraint
and in the control of a competent person or under restraint and on the premises of the owner.

(3) Security dogs are subject to all other provisions of this chapter while off the premises of their owner.

(4) This Section shall not include dogs when exempted pursuant to N.C.G.S. §67-4.1(b) (1) — (b) (4).

Sec. 90-14. IMPOUNDMENT OF ANIMALS.

(1) All animals required by NCGS 130A-185 to be vaccinated against rabies that do not have a rabies tag
at time of impoundment will be administered a rabies vaccination along with other necessary vaccinations
as per Macon County Animal Shelter policy.

(2) An animal Control officer, in consultation with the Health Director or the health directors’ designee, is
authorized to issue a confinement order to the animal owner that would require the owner to confine a dog
or other animal pursuant to N.C.G.S. §130A-198 or §130A-200. Failure to thus confine the animal would
constitute a further violation subjecting the owner to appropriate criminal or civil penalties pursuant to
N.C.G.S §67-4.2 and §130A-196.

(3) A domesticated animal impounded under this chapter may be reclaimed by its owner according to the
procedures of the animal shelter. The owner of an impounded domesticated apimal shall be responsible




for and shall pay all vaccination expenses, boarding costs, redemption or adoption fee(s) and costs
associated with such impoundment prior to reclaiming the animal. If an impounded domesticated animal
is not reclaimed the impounded domesticated animal may be allowed to be adopted or humanely
euthanized according to N.C.G.S §19A-32.1 and animal shelter procedures; provided, however, that
domesticated animals impounded pursuant to this Section shall be held by the animal shelter for a period
of ten (10) days prior to adoption or euthanasia, as applicable. Exception to the ten day holding period: If
a domesticated animal impounded under this chapter has been found by the Section Administrator of
Animal Services or a veterinarian to be unadoptable due to injury or defects of health or temperament may
be humanely euthanized in accordance with N.C.G.S §19A-32.1 (b) (1) and animal shelter procedures.
The owner of an impounded domesticated animal shall also comply with any vaccination and
identification directives and be responsible for the payment to the county of all civil penalties and costs
imposed or associated with the animal's impoundment as prescribed in any citation or notice issued by the
Section Administrator Animal Services or their designee . Bite quarantined animals not reclaimed within
72 hours after the end of the quarantine period will be considered abandoned and will become the
property of the county animal shelter and disposed of according to standard animal shelter procedures.

(4) A feral animal impounded under this chapter that has been found by the Section Administrator of
Animal Services or a veterinarian to be unadoptable due to injury or defects of health or temperament may
be humanely cuthanized in accordance with N.C.G.S. §19A-32.1 (b) (1) and animal shelter procedures.

Sec. 90-15. HANDLING OF STRAY ANIMALS.

(1) 1t shall be unlawful for any person, without the consent of the owner, knowingly and intentionally to
harbor, keep in possession by confinement or otherwise any animal that does not belong to him, unless he
has, within 72 hours from the time such animal came into his possession, notified an animal control
officer, Lead Animal Control Officer or the animal shelter.

(2) Any animal at large may in a humane manner be seized, impounded and confined in the animal shelter
and thereafter adopted out or disposed of pursuant to procedures of the animal shelter and applicable state
law.

(3) An owner may lawfully permit an animal which is not dangerous to be at large in the course of a show,
obedience school, tracking tests, field training, or other events sanctioned or supervised by a recognized
organization. Dogs may be at large in the course of hunting if under the control of the owner as otherwise
provided in this chapter. However, this provision does not exempt an owner from otherwise complying
with the provisions of this chapter, including identification of animals.

(4) Upon impounding an animal, the Animal Services Section of the Macon County Health Department
shall make reasonable effort to identify the animal, notify the owner, and inform such owner of the
conditions whereby the identified animal may be redeemed.

(5) Impoundment of such an animal shall not relieve its owner from any penalty that may be imposed for
violation of this chapter.

(6) Any animal seized and impounded that is badly wounded or diseased and has no identification may be
euthanized pursuant to procedures of the animal shelter and applicable state law. If the animal has rabies
or is suspected of having rabies, the body shall be disposed of in accordance with applicable state
regulations. If the animal has identification, Section Administrator Animal Services, animal conirol
officers or animal shelter staff shall atiempt expeditiously to notify the owner before euthanizing such




animal; in any event, and except as may be otherwise provided by law, the animal shelter, animal control
program, Health Director and county law enforcement officers shall have no liability for euthanizing
wounded or diseased animals when such action is taken upon the advice or recommendation of a
veterinarian who has been advised of the animal's condition.

Sec. 90-16. PUBLIC NUISANCE.

It shall be unlawful for an owner to permit an animal to create or maintain a public nuisance as defined in
this chapter by an animal. Compliance shall be required as follows:

(1) When an animal control officer, Lead Animal Control Officer, Section Administrator Animal Services,
or law enforcement officer observes a violation, the owner will be provided written notification of such
violation and be given 24 hours or less to abate the nuisance.

(2) Upon receipt of a written detailed and signed complaint alleging that any person is maintaining a
public nuisance, the Section Administrator Animal Services shall cause the owner of the animal in
question to be notified that a complaint has been received, and shall cause the situation complained upon
to be investigated and a written report to be prepared.

(3) If the written findings indicate that the complaint is justified, the Section Administrator Animal
Services shall cause the owner of the animal in question to be notified in writing, and shall order
abatement of such nuisance within 24 hours or such lesser amount of time, which shall be designated on
the abatement order.

(4) If, after 24 hours or such lesser time as is designated in the abatement order, the nuisance is not abated,
the animal creating the nuisance may be impounded and/or a civil penalty may be issued and/or a criminal
summons may be issued.

Sec. 90-17. RABIES CONTROL.

It shall be unlawful and a violation of this chapter for any animal owner or other person to fail to comply
with the requirements of N.C.G.S. §130A, Article 6, Sections 184 -199 and other laws of the state relating
to the control of rabies.

Sec. 90-18. BITES.

(1) 1t shall be unlawful and a violation of this chapter for any person to fail to comply with the
requirements of N.C.G.S. §130A-196 and N.C.G.S. §130A-198.

(2) Animal control officers and Lead Animal Control Officer shall notify the Health Director or the health
directors’ designee as soon as practicable or within 24 hours of report of an animal bite.

(3) An animal that is confined to the animal shelter pursuant to the provisions of N.C.G.S. §130A-196,
§130A-197 or §130A-198 shall become the property of the county if the owner does not redeem the
animal within 72 hours following the last day of the imposed confinement period required by statute.

(4) If Animal Control impounds an animal during the course of their investigation the animal control
officer shall leave with the owner or affix to the owner’s residence a notice of confinement or an order of
confinement from the Health Director, as applicable. The notice of order shall contain the beginning and




ending dates of confinement and stating that the owner must redeem the animal within 72 hours of the
ending date of confinement stated in the notice.

(5) The owner of an animal confined at the animal shelter pursuant to this section shall be responsible for
the costs of caring for the animal while at the shelter and all fees shall be paid at the time of redemption.

(6) Surrender of an animal or failure to redeem an animal shall not relieve the owner of responsibility for
payment of any outstanding medical costs, penalties, and fees that have accrued as a result of the animal
being confined at the animal shelter.

Sec. 90-19. RABIES TAG; IDENTIFICATION REQUIRED.

It shall be unlawful and a violation of this chapter for any person to fail to comply with the requirements of
N.C.G.S. §130A-192.

Sec. 90-20. PENALTIES.
The following penalties shall pertain to violations of this chapter:

(1) Violation of any provision of this chapter by any person shall be a misdemeanor under N.C.G.S. §14-
4,

(2) Enforcement of this chapter may include any appropriate equitable remedy, injunction or order of
abatement issuing from a court of competent jurisdiction pursuant to N.C.G.S. §153A-123(d), ().

(3) In addition to and independent of any criminal penalties and other sanctions provided in this chapter, a
violation of this chapter may also subject the offender to civil penalties, costs and fees as follows:

a. Unless otherwise provided for in a particular section, Animal Services is authorized to assess civil
penalties in the following manner:

1. A civil penalty of $25.00 shall be assessed for the first violation of any provision of this Chapter.
2. A civil penalty of $50.00 shall be assessed for the second or subsequent violation of this Chapter.

b. Civil penaltics may be assessed for each violation of this chapter. The Section Administrator
Animal Services or their designee shall issue to the known owner of any animal, or to any other
violator of the provisions of this chapter, a citation giving notice of the violation and of the civil
penalty imposed. Citations so issued may be delivered in person or mailed by first class mail to the
person charged if that person cannot readily be found. This civil penalty shall be paid to the Section
Administrator Animal Services or their designee within 14 days of receipt of the citation. This civil
penalty is in addition to any other fees, costs or fines imposed that are authorized by this chapter.

¢. Failure on the part of the owner of an animal or other alleged violator to pay the applicable civil
penalty within the time period prescribed is unlawful and a violation of this chapter. If an assessed
civil penalty is not paid within the time period prescribed, a civil action may be commenced to recover
the penalty and costs associated with collection of the penalty.




Sec. 90-21. REGULATION OF ANIMALS ON COUNTY RECREATIONAL
PROPERTY.

Running at large forbidden. 1t shall be unlawful for any person to allow a domestic animal,
including a dog or cat, within his or her possession, ownership, or direct control, to run at large
within or upon any lands owned by or under the control of Macon County used for recreational
purposes with the exception of dogs running within the designated, fenced dog park(s). Any
domestic animal brought to or allowed to enter upon any county property used for recreational
purposes shall, at all times, be kept within the direct control and/or under restraint by the owner or
other competent person having the possession thereof.

Sec. 90-22. DANGEROUS DOG.

It shall be unlawful and a violation of this chapter for any person to fail to comply with the
requirements of N.C.G.S. §67, Article 1A, Sections 4.1 - 4.4.

Sec. 90-23. ANIMAL CONTROL ADVISORY COMMITTEE.

The Board of Commissioners shall have authority to create and appoint an Advisory Committee of
such number and composition as they shall determine. The members shall serve terms as
established by the Board of Commissioners.

Sec. 90-24. FALSE REPORTS OR FRIVOLOUS COMPLAINTS.

(1) It shall be unlawful for any person to file a false report with the Animal Services Section or to
knowingly provide false information to an animal control officer or Lead Animal Control Officer
involving investigation of any reported violation of this Chapter.

(2) It shall be unlawful for any person to repeatedly file frivolous or unfounded complaints with
the Animal Services Section of the Macon County Health Department in order to intimidate or
harass any member of the Animal Services Section of the Macon County Health Department or
any animal owner, or to otherwise hinder or interfere with the animal control program.

Sec 90-25. EFFECTIVE DATE OF THS ORDINANCE
The Ordinance shall become effective on the day of ,2018.

Upon motion made by Commissioner , seconded by Commissioner

: this Ordinance was passed, adopted and ordained by the unanimous vote of the
Macon County Board of Commissioners on this the day of , 2018, at the
regular meeting of the Macon County Board of Commissioners.




James P. Tate, Chairman

Attest:

Clerk of the Board of Macon County Commissioners




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 10, 2018

DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Governing Board

SUBJECT MATTER: Cullasaja Community Association Agreement

COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

The County Attorney is preparing another update to the agreement with the
Cullasaja Community Association regarding ongoing renovations to the Old
Salem Church. The board voted to amend the initial agreement back in
August of last year as new items were added to the original scope of work.
It appears that sufficient funds remain in the original project budget to
complete additional improvements. The County Attorney will likely present
the updated document at Tuesday’s meeting.

Attachments

Agenda Item 10B




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 10,2018

DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Governing Board/ Town of Franklin

SUBJECT MATTER: Renewal of lease agreement for gazebo property

COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

Following the board’s extension on April 10" of the existing lease
agreement with the Town of Franklin for the gazebo property located on the
town square, the County Attorney has provided an updated proposed lease
agreement that contains his recommended changes. A copy is attached, and
he will provide further insight at the meeting.

Attachments

Agenda Item 10C




LEASE

by and between

COUNTY OF MACON, NORTH CAROLINA
as Lessor
and
THE TOWN OF FRANKLIN, NORTH CAROLINA

as Lessee

Dated as of May 1, 2018

After recording, please return to:
Chester Jones

122 West Boulevard

Franklin, NC 28734

This document was prepared by:
John F. Henning, Jr.

A Licensed North Carolina Attorney
Campbell Shatley, PLLC

674 Merrimon Avenue, Suite 210
Asheville, NC 28804

{CS: 00051431.20C }




LEASE

THIS LEASE is dated as of May 1, 2018 and entered into by and between the COUNTY OF
MACON, NORTH CAROLINA, a body politic and corporate of the State of North Carolina having its
principal offices located at 5 West Main Street, Franklin, North Carolina, as lessor (the “County™), and the
TOWN OF FRANKLIN, NORTH CAROLINA, a body politic and corporate of the State of North Carolina
having its principal offices at 95 East Main Street, Franklin, North Carolina (the “Town”, and collectively
the “Parties”™).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the County is the owner of that property known as the “County Square” as described
in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof, (the “Site”); and

WHEREAS, the County and Town previously entered into a lease agreement dated May 3, 1998
by which the County deed the site to the Town for a term of twenty (20) years; and

WHEREAS, the Town intends to continue its activities upon and maintenance of the Site, the
County is willing to permit the Town to continue the same, and the Parties now wish to restate their
rights, duties, and obligations with respect to the Site;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein
contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS; RULE OF CONSTRUCTION

All capitalized terms used in this Lease and not otherwise defined herein have the meanings
assigned to them in the Contract and the Deed of Trust, unless the context clearly requires otherwise. In
addition, the following terms have the meanings specified below, unless the context clearly requires
otherwise:

“Town Representative” means the Town’s Mayor, Town Manager, Finance Officer or any other
person at the time designated, by a written certificate furnished to the County and signed on the Town’s
behalf by its Mayor or Town Manager, to act on the Town’s behalf for the purpose of performing any act
under this Lease.

“County Representative” means the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners of the County, the
County Manager or the Finance Director or any person at the time designated, by a written certificate
furnished to the Town and signed on the County’s behalf by its County Manager, to act on the County’s
behalf for the purpose of performing any act under this Lease.

“Iease” means this Lease dated as of May 1, 2018 between the County and the Town, as it may
be duly amended.

“ILease Term” means the term of this Lease as determined under Article 1V.

“ILease Year” means, initially, from the Closing Date through June 30, 2018, and, thereafier,
means the twelve-month period of each year commencing on July 1 and ending on the next June 30.

{CS: 00051431.DOC }2




“Leased Property” means, collectively, the Site, as described in Exhibit A, and the improvements
thereon.

All references to articles or sections are references to articles or sections of this Lease, unless the
context clearly indicates otherwise.

ARTICLE IT
REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES

The County and the Town each represent, covenant and warrant for the other’s benefit as follows:

(a) Neither the execution and delivery of this Lease, nor the fulfillment of or
compliance with its terms and conditions, nor the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby, results or will result in a breach of the terms, conditions and
provisions of any agreement or instrument to which either is now a party or by which
either is bound, or constitutes a default under any of the foregoing.

® To the knowledge of each party, there is no litigation or proceeding
pending or threatened against such party (or against any other person) affecting the rights
of such party to execute or deliver this Lease or to comply with its obligations under this
Lease. Neither the execution and delivery of this Lease by such party, nor compliance by
such party with its obligations under this Lease, requires the approval of any regulatory
body or any other entity the approval of which has not been obtained.

ARTICLE ITI
DEMISING CLAUSE

The County hereby leases the Leased Property to the Town and the Town hereby leases the

Leased Property from the County, in accordance with the provisions of this Lease, to have and to hold for
the Lease Term.

ARTICLE IV
L.EASE TERM

Section 4.1.  Commencement. The Lease Term commences on May 1, 2018. The Parties

agree that the prior lease dated May 5, 1998 is terminated and shall be of no further effect from the date
this Lease Term commences.

Section 4.2 Termination. The Lease Term terminates on the earlier of the following dates or
events:

(a) at midnight on May 30, 2048; or

(b) upon 180 days’ written notice of termination delivered by either Party to
the other.

ARTICLE V
QUIET ENJOYMENT

{CS: 00051431.D0C }3

PPAB 2060352v2




Section 5.1  Quiet Enjoyment; Transfer. The County hereby covenants that the Town shall,
during the Lease Term, peaceably and quictly have and hold and enjoy the Leased Property without suit,
trouble or hindrance from the County, except as expressly required or permitted by this Lease. The
County shall not interfere with the quiet use and enjoyment of the Leased Property during the Lease
Term. The County shall, at the Town’s request, join and cooperate fully in any legal action in which the
Town asserts its right to such possession and enjoyment, or which involves the imposition of any taxes or
other governmental charges on or in connection with the Leased Property. In addition, the Town may at
its own expense join in any legal action affecting its possession and enjoyment of the Leased Property,
and shall be joined (to the extent legally possible, and at the Town’s expense) in any action affecting its
liabilities hereunder.

Section 5.2  Entry and Inspection. The provisions of this Article are subject to rights of the
County to enter upon and inspect the Leased Property at any reasonable time.

ARTICLE V1
CONSIDERATION FOR LEASE

Section 6.1 Use of Leased Property; Assumption of Obligations. The Leased Property shall
be used by the Town as a public entertainment center ( “Pickin on the Square” and other similar projects )
and other public purposes. The Town shall not limit the entry or use thereof by the general public on the
basis of race, color, creed, gender, national origin, or any other discriminatory basis. In addition, in
consideration of its rights under this Iease, the Town undertakes the obligations imposed on it hereunder,
including those imposed by Section 8.1. There shall be no use or consumption of alcoholic beverages
upon the Lease Property.

Section 6.2 Payments. In partial consideration for its acquisition of rights to use the Leased
Property during the Lease Term, the Town hereby agrees to pay to the County annual rent in the amount
of $1.00 payable in advance on the date the lease Commences (receipt of which is hereby acknowledged)
and on the first day of each Lease Year thereafter.

ARTICLE vIi
CERTAIN COVENANTS

Section 7.1 Possession. The Town shall take possession of the Leased Property on the date
of delivery of this Lease.

Section 7.2 Maintenance, Repair, Taxes and Assessments.

(a) Maintenance; Repair. The Town shall use, or cause to be used, the Leased Property in a
careful and proper manner, in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, and, at its sole
expense, shall service, repair, maintain and insure the Leased Property, or cause such to be serviced,
repaired, maintained and insured, as applicable. The Town shall continually maintain customary
insurance on the Leased Property, to include the following: (1) all-risk, fire, casualty and extended
coverage insurance covering the Leased Property in an amount not less than one hundred percent of the
full insurable replacement thereof, as the same may from time to time be determined, including any
improvements, alterations, and additions; and (2) comprehensive general liability insurance in an amount
customarily maintained by the Town, which policy shall be endorsed to include Macon County, its
officers, employees and agents as Additional Insured.

{CS: 00051431.D0C }4

PPAB 2060352v2




b Taxes and Assessments. The Town shall also pay, or cause to be paid, all taxes and
assessments, including, but not limited to, utility charges, of any type or nature levied, assessed or
charged against any portion of the Leased Property, provided that with respect to special assessments or
other governmental charges that may lawfully be paid in installments over a period of years, the Town
shall be obligated to pay only such installments as are required to be paid as and when the same become
due.

(© Contests. The Town may, at its sole expense and in its name, in good faith contest any
such taxes, assessments, utility and other charges and, if any such contest occurs, may permit the taxes,
assessments or other charges so contested to remain unpaid during the period of such contest and any
appeal therefrom, but before such nonpayment it shall consult with the County and, if the County
requires, furnish the County with the opinion of a counsel acceptable to the County, to the effect that, by
nonpayment of any such items, the interest of the County in the Leased Property will not be materially
endangered and that the Leased Property will not be subject to loss or forfeiture. The County will
cooperate fully in such contest on the request and at the expense of the Town.

Section 7.3 Modification of Leased Property, Liens.

(a) Additions, Modifications and Improvements. The Town shall, at its own expense, have
the right to make, or cause to be made, additions, modifications and improvements to any portion of the
Leased Property if such addition, modifications or improvements are necessary or beneficial for the use of
such portion of the Leased Property, provided that the Town secures written approval of the same from
the County in advance. The County shall have the absolute discretion to give or withhold such approval.
All such additions, modifications and improvements shall thereafter comprise part of the Leased Property
and be subject to the provisions of this Lease. The Parties may enter into an agreement by which they
provide jointly for the improvement of the Leased Property for public purposes, which may establish
rights, responsibilities, or rights of ownership that differ from this section; in such event, the Parties agree
that this section will be amended accordingly.

(b) Liens. The Town will not permit any mechanic’s or other lien to be established or remain
against the Leased Property for labor or materials furnished in connection with any additions,
modifications or improvements made by the Town under this Section, but if any such lien is filed or
established and the Town first notifies, or causes to be notified, the County of the Town’s intention to do
50, the Town may in good faith contest any lien filed or established against the Leased Property and in
such event may permit the items so contested to remain undischarged and unsatisfied during the period of
such contest and any appeal therefrom and shall provide the County with full security against any loss or
forfeiture which might arise from the nonpayment of any such item. The County will cooperate fully in
any such contest on the request and at the expense of the Town.

Except as provided in this Article and except as the County may consent thereto within its sole
discretion, the Town shall not, directly or indirectly, create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any mortgage,
pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance or ¢laim on or with respect to the Leased Property. Except as provided
in this Article, the Town shall promptly, at its own expense, take such action as may be necessary to duly
discharge or remove any such mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance or claim for which it is
responsible, if the same shall arise at any time; provided that the Town may contest such liens, charges,
encumbrances, or claims if it desires to do so. The Town shall reimburse the County for any expense
incurred by the County in order to discharge or remove any such mortgage, pledge, lien, charge,
encumbrance or claim.,

{C3: 00051431.DOC 15

PPAB 2060352v2




Section 7.4 County’s Cooperation. The County shall cooperate fully with the Town in filing
any proof of loss or taking any other action under this Lease. Neither the County nor the Town may
voluntarily settle, or consent to the settlement of, any proceeding arising out of any insurance claim with
respect to the Leased Property without the other’s written consent.

Section 7.5  Advances; Performance of Obligations. If the Town fails to take any action
required of it under this Lease, then the County may (but is under no obligation to) perform such
obligation. The Town agrees to reimburse the County for its costs incurred in connection with
performing such obligation.

ARTICLE VHI
DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES; OTHER COVENANTS

Section 8.1 Disclaimer of Warranties. THE COUNTY MAKES NO WARRANTY OR
REPRESENTATION, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE VALUE, DESIGN, CONDITION,
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OF THE
LEASED PROPERTY OR ANY PART THEREOF OR ANY OTHER REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY WITH
RESPECT TO THE LEASED PROPERTY OR ANY PART THEREOF. The County is not liable for any direct or
indirect, incidental, special or consequential damage in connection with or arising out of this Lease or the
existence, furnishing, functioning or use by anyone of any item, product or service provided for herein.

Section 8.2 Further Assurances; Corrective Instruments. The Town and the County agree
that they will, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be executed,
acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such further instruments as may reasonably be
required for correcting any inadequate or incorrect description of the Leased Property hereby leased or
intended so to be, or for otherwise carrying out the intention hereof.

Section 8.3 Town and County Representatives. Whenever under the provisions hereof the
approval of the Town or the County is required to take some action at the request of the other, unless
otherwise provided, such approval or such request is to be given for the Town by the Town
Representative and for the County by the County Representative, and the Town and the County are
authorized to act on any such approval or request of such representative of the other.

Section 8.4 Compliance with Requirements, During the Lease Term, the Town and the
County shall observe and comply promptly with all current and future orders of all courts having
jurisdiction over the Leased Property or any portion thereof (or be diligently and in good faith contesting
such orders), and all current and future requirements of all insurance companies’ written policies covering
the Leased Property or any portion thereof.

ARTICLE IX
TITLE TO LEASED PROPERTY; LIMITATIONS ON ENCUMBRANCES

Except for personal property purchased by the Town at its own expense, any and all additions and
modifications to or replacements of any portion of the Leased Property shall become a part of the said
property, except as the Parties may agree to the contrary in a future written agreement. This section shall
apply notwithstanding (a)the occurrence of any event of damage, destruction, condemnation or
construction or title defect; or (b) the violation by the County of any provision of this Lease. The County
will not voluntarily create any liens or encumbrances on any portion of the Leased Property without the
Town’s consent. '

{CS: 00051431.D0C }6

PPAB 2060352v2




The Town has no right, title or interest in the Leased Property or any additions and modifications
to or replacements of any portion of the Leased Property, except as expressly set forth in this Lease or as
the Parties shall hereafter agree in a future written agreement.

_ ARTICLE X
SUBLEASING AND INDEMNIFICATION

Section 10.1  Town’s Subleasing. The Town may not assign or sublease the Leased Property,
in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the County.

Section 10.2  Indemnification. To the extent permitted by law, the Town agrees to indemnify
and save the County, its officers, employees and agents harmless against and from all claims by or on
behalf of any person, firm, corporation or other legal entity arising from the operation or management of
the Leased Property by the Town during the Lease Term, including any claims arising from: (a) any
condition of the I.eased Property, (b)any act of negligence of the Town or of any of its agents,
contractors or employees or any violation of law by the Town or breach of any covenant or warranty by
the Town hereunder; or (¢) the incurrence of any cost or expense in connection with the construction and
other accomplishment of the renovations to the Property. The Town further agrees to investigate, handle,
respond to, provide defense for, and defend the same at its sole expense and agrees to bear all other costs
and expenses related thereto. The Parties agree to notify each other promptly upon notice obtained by
cither Party of any action or procceding brought in connection with any claims arising out of
circumstances described in (a), (b) or {c) above.

ARTICLE X1
EVENTS OF DEFAULT

Section 11.1  Events of Default. Each of the following is an “Event of Defaut” under this
Lease and the term “Default” means, whenever it is used in this Lease, any one or more of the following
events:

(a) The Town’s or the County’s failure to observe and perform any
covenant, condition or agreement on its part to be observed or performed for a period of
30 days after written notice specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied has
been given to the defaulting party by the non-defaulting party, unless the non-defaulting
party agrees in writing to an extension of such time before its expiration; but if the failure
stated in such notice cannot be corrected within the applicable period, the non-defaulting
party shall not unrcasonably withhold its consent to an extension of such time if
corrective action is instituted by the defaulting party within the applicable period and
diligently pursued until such failure is corrected and, further, if by reason of any event or
occurrence constituting force majeure the defaulting party is unable in whole or in part to
carry out any of its agreements contained herein (other than its obligations contained in
Section 6.2 or 8.1 hereof), the defaulting party shall not be deemed in default during the
continuance of such event or occurrence.

b) The dissolution or liquidation of the Town or the County or the voluntary
initiation by the Town or the County of any proceeding under any federal or state law
relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, arrangement, reorganization, readjustment of debt or
any other form of debtor relief, or the initiation against the Town or the County of any
such proceeding which shall remain undismissed for 60 days, or the entry by the Town or

{CS: 00051431, DOC }7

PPAB 2060352v2




the County into an agreement of composition with creditors or the Town’s or the
County’s failure generally to pay its debts as they become due.

Section 11.2  Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default has happened and is
continuing, the non-defaulting party may terminate this Lease or take whatever action at law or in equity
may appear necessary or desirable, including the appointment of a receiver, to collect the amounts then
due, or to enforce performance and observance of any obligation, agreement or covenants under this
Lease.

Section 11.3  No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred on or reserved is intended to
be exclusive, and every such remedy is cumulative and in addition to every other remedy given hereunder
and every remedy now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. No delay or omission to exercise any
right or power accruing on any default impairs any such right or power, and any such right and power
may be exercised from time to time as may be deemed expedient. It is not necessary to give any notice in
order to be entitled to exercise any remedy reserved in this Article X1, other than such notice as may be
required in this Article XI.

Section 11.4  Waivers. If any agreement contained herein is breached by either party and
thereafter waived by the other party, such waiver is limited to the particular breach so waived and will not
be deemed to waive any other breach hereunder. A waiver of an event of default under the Contract shall
constitute a waiver of any corresponding Event of Default under this Lease; provided that no such waiver
shall extend to or affect any subsequent or other Event of Default under this Lease or impair any right
consequent thereon.

Section 11.5  Waiver of Appraisement, Valuation, Stay, Extension and Redemption Laws.
The Town and County agree, to the extent permitted by law, that in the case of a termination of the Lease
Term by reason of an Event of Default, neither the Town nor the County nor any one claiming through or
under either of them shall or will set up, claim or seek to take advantage of any appraisement, valuation,
stay, extension or redemption laws now or hereafter in force in order to prevent or hinder the enforcement
of any remedy provided hereunder; and the Town and the County, for themselves and all who may at any
time claim through or under either of them, each hereby waives, to the full extent that it may lawfully do
s0, the benefit of such laws.

ARTICLE XTI
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 12.1  Notices. All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder are
sufficiently given if given by United States mail in certified form, postage prepaid, and will be deemed to
have been received five Business Days (as defined in the Indenture) after deposit in the United States mail
in certified form, postage prepaid, as follows:

(a) If intended for the County, addressed to it at the following address:

County of Macon, North Carolina
5 West Main Street

Courthouse

Franklin, North Carolina 28734
Attention: Finance Director

{CS: 00051431,D0OC }8

PPAB 2060352v2




(b) If intended for the Town, addressed to it at the following address:

Town of Franklin

95 E. Main Street

Franklin, North Carclina 28734
Attention: Town Manager

Section 12.2  Binding Effect. This Lease is binding on and inures to the benefit of the Town
and the County, subject, however, to the limitations contained in Article XI.

Section 12.3  Net Lease. This Lease is a “net lease,” and the Town shall pay absolutely net
during the Lease Term all other payments required hereunder, free of any deductions, and without
abatement or setoff.

Section 12.4  Payments Due on Non-Business Days. If the date for making any payment or
the last day for performance of any act or the exercising of any right, as provided in this Lease, is not a
Business Day, such payment may be made or act performed or right exercised on the next succeeding day
that is a Business Day with the same force and effect as if done on the nominal date provided in this
Lease.

Section 12.5  Severability. If any provision of this Lease, other than the requirement of the
County to provide quiet enjoyment of the Leased Property, is held invalid or unenforceable by any court
of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision
hereof.

Section 12.6  Execution in Counterparts. This Lease may be simultaneously executed in
several counterparts, each of which is an original and all of which constitute but one and the same
instrument.

Section 12.7  Applicable Law. This Lease is governed by and to be construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of North Carolina.

Section 12.8  Captions. The captions or headings herein are for convenience only and in no
way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Lease.

Section 12.9. Amendments and Further Instruments. The County and the Town may, from
time to time, execute and deliver such amendments to this Lease and such further instruments as may be
required or desired for carrying out the expressed intention of this Lease.

Section 12.10 Memorandum of Lease. The County and the Town shall, on or before the
Closing Date, file this Lease or a memorandum of this Lease legally sufficient to comply with the relevant
provisions of the North Carolina General Statutes with the Macon County Register of Deeds.

Section 12.11 E-Verification. The Parties shall comply with the requirements of G.S.
Chapter 64, Article 2 ( i.e., E-Verify Requirements).

{CS: 00051431.DOC 19

PPAB 2060352v2




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Lease to be executed in their
corporate names by their duly authorized officers, all as of the day and year first above written.

COUNTY OF MACON, NORTH CAROLINA.

By:
[SEAL] James P. Tate
Chairman, Board of Commissioners
Attest:
Derek Roland

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA )
)

COUNTY OF MACON )

I, a Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that Derek Roland (the “Signatory™)
personally came before me this day and acknowledged that he is the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners
for the County of Macon, North Carolina and that by authority duly given and as the act of said County,
the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners of the
County of Macon, North Carolina and attested by him as Clerk to said Board of Commissioners.

I certify that the Signatory personally appeared before me this day, and
(check one of the following)

(I have personal knowledge of the identity of the Signatory); or

(I have seen satisfactory evidence of the Signatory’s identity, by a current state or
federal identification with the Signatory’s photograph in the form of:
(check one of the following)
___adriver's license or
~_in the form of ); or

(a credible witness has sworn to the identity of the Signatory).

The Signatory acknowledged to me that he voluntarily signed the foregoing document for the
purpose stated therein and in the capacity indicated.

Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this the day of ,2018.

Notary Public
Print: Name:
[Note: Notary Public must sign exactly as on notary seal]

My Commission Expires:
@ [NOTARY SEAL] (MUST BE FULLY LEGIBLE)
[COUNTERPART SIGNATURE PAGE TO THE LEASE]

{CS: 00051431.DOC }




TOWN OF FRANKLIN

By:
[SEAL] ROBERT S, SCOTT, MAYOR

Attest:

Travis Tallent, Town Clerk

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA )

)

COUNTY OF MACON )
I, a Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that Travis Tallent (the “Signatory™)
personally came before me this day and acknowledged that he is the Town Clerk for the Town of Franklin

and that by authority duly given and as the act of said Town, the foregoing instrument was signed in its
name by the Mayor of said Town and attested by him as Secretary of said Town.

[ certify that the Signatory personally appeared before me this day, and
(check one of the following)

(I have personal knowledge of the identity of the Signatory); or

(I have seen satisfactory evidence of the Signatory’s identity, by a current state or
federal identification with the Signatory’s photograph in the form of:
{check one of the following)
___adriver's license or
____inthe form of }; or

(a credible witness has sworn to the identity of the Signatory).

The Signatory acknowledged to me that he voluntarily signed the foregoing document for the
purpose stated therein and in the capacity indicated.

Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this the day of , 2018,

Notary Public
Print; Name:
[Note: Notary Public must sign exactly as on notary seal]

My Commission Expires:__ .
<= [NOTARY SEAL] (MUST BE FULLY LEGIBLE)

{CS: 00051431.D0C }PPAB 2060352v2




EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTTION OF THE LEASED PROPERTY

Lands lying and being in the Town of Franklin, Franklin Township, Macon County, North Carolina, and
being more particularly described as the “County Square” within the Town of Franklin, and said property
being more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the North edge of the sidewalk on the North side of Main Street in the Town
of Franklin where the same intersects with the East line of the square; runs thence with the North side of
said sidewalk in a Westerly direction to the East margin of Iotla Street; thence Northerly with the East
Margin of Iotla Street to its point of intersection with the South margin of the service road leading to the
parking lot behind Outdoor 76; thence in an Easterly direction with the South margin of said access road
to the Northeast Corner of the square; thence with the east line of the square property in a Southerly
direction to the point of BEGINNING.

{CS: 00051431.DOC }A-1

PPAB 2060352v2




PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE
This Instrument has been pre-audited as required by the Local Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

This the day of May, 2018.

Macon County Finance Officer

PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE
This instrument has been pre-audited as required by the Local Budget and Fiscal Control Act..

This the day of May, 2018.

Town of Franklin Finance Officer

{CS: 00051431.DOC }A-2

PPAB 2060352v2




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 10,2018
DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Public Health

SUBJECT MATTER: Fiscal Year 2018-19 billing and collection
policies and fee schedules

COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

Attached please find three documents: (1) the Billing and Collection Policies
for Public Health for Fiscal Year 2018-19, (2) the agency’s fee schedule and
(3) an internal policy regarding the refund of fees charged by the
Environmental Health Department. Public Health Director Jim Bruckner
will be at the meeting to present these documents and to answer questions.

Attachments 3

Agenda Item 11A




MACON COUNTY PUBLIC
HEALTH

FY 187-
198

Billing and Collection Policies
And
Fee Schedules

Effective

Presented to and Approved by Board of Health on
Presented to and Approved by Board of Commissioners on




MACON COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH




MCPH Billing Guide FY 18-19 Effective 7/1/18

BILLING AND COLLECTION POLICIES

RATIONALE

North Carolina law' allows a local board of health to impose a fee for services to be rendered by a local health
department, except where the imposition of a fee is prohibited by statute or where an employee of the local
health department is performing the services as an agent of the State.

» Fees may be based on a plan recommended by the Health Director;

» The plan must be approved by the Board of Health and the Board of County Commissioners;

» And, fees coliected under the authority of this subsection are to be deposited to the account of the local health
department so that they may be expended for public health purposes in accordance with the provisions of the
Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

The State requires local health departments to provide certain services, and no one may be denied these services. It is
in the best interest of our community for the Health Center to:

» Assure that all residents can get all legally required public health services.
> Provide as many other recommended and needed health services as possible, within the resources we still
have available to use.

The Health Director has the right to waive fees for individuals who for a good cause are unable to pay.”

The purpose of charging fees is to increase resources and use them to meet residents’ needs in a fair and balanced way.
Fees are necessary to help identify and cover the full cost of providing public health services. As much as possible,
fees are based on the true cost of providing a particular service (calculated as direct costs plus indirect costs).
Throughout the year, ongoing cost analyses are performed and fee schedules shall be adjusted by the Health Director,
with approval from the Board of Health and the Board of Commissioners in the amount of the increased cost for
prevision of said services. A list of Health Center fees is available upon request.

The information in the document below is the fee plan for FY 16, effective on July 1, 2015. This Billing Guide for
FY16 replaces all earlier plans.

COST OF SERVICE DETERMINATION

Costs for services received through the Health Center are based on the actual cost of the service Cost analysis
takes into account all of the resources associated with providing a particular service and calculates the actual cost to
provide that service. Cost analysis includes the calculation of direct and indirect costs for services and then adding
these figures together to determine the actual cost of the service.

Calculating direct cost: Direct costs are expenses that can be casily related to the provision of a specific
service, i.e., physician and support staff salaries and benefits, medical supplies, lab tests, and other resources
consumed at the time of the service.

Calculating indirect costs: Indirect costs involve resources that are not directly consumed during the
provision of a service, but without them the provision of that service would not be possible, i.e., administrative staff
salaries and benefits, training costs, facility costs, insurance premiums, office equipment and supplies, and recruiting
and marketing expenses.

* North Carolina General Statue 130A-39(g)
2 JAW Title X 8.4.3 (42 CFR 59.2)

Page 2




MCPH Billing Guide FY 18-19 Effective 7/1/18

PAYMENT BY CONSUMER OR RESPONSIBLE THIRD PARTY (SELF PAY)

Fees are charged for services and collected at the Health Center. See attachment for fee schedule. All fees
are the responsibility of the consumer, consumer or responsible third party and may be subject to the sliding fee scale.
No consumer will be refused services solely on their inability to pay for said services. All fees may be paid by cash,
check, or major credit card. Full payment is expected at the time of service. Consumers will be informed of their
account status at each visit. An itemized receipt showing total charges, as well as any discounts will be provided to
individuals at time of payment. Third parties authorized or legally responsible to pay for consumers at or below 100%
of the Federal Poverty Level are properly billed. Fees for adult dental services will be collected before the service is

rendered. Prepayment of co-pays for all services in which co-payments apply will be required and collected when
services are rendered.

Fees will be charged to individuals in families with annual gross incomes exceeding specified levels of a scale
based on current Federal Poverty Income Guidelines. Verification of income and family size must be provided to
determine a consumer’s eligibility status. Falsification of this information will permanently disqualify consumers
from using sliding fee scale. Eligibility will be reevaluated as consumer’s income and household status changes or at
least annually. If income cannot be verified at the time of screening, the charge for all services will be at 100% pay
and a Payment Agreement will be presented to the consumer for signature until verification is provided. If
verification of income is received within thirty days of a service, the charge will be retroactively adjusted to reflect
percent pay based on verification received. Verification received after thirty days will be applied only to future
services. Eligibility of Medicaid will be determined where applicable. Individuals will be requested to provide all
social security numbers and names used for employment purposes. If an individual refuses to provide information to
verify income, they will not be eligible for the sliding fee scale and will be at 100% pay.

Customary visit services for mandatory childhood immunizations, community outreach, Tuberculosis (TB),
TB related X-rays, Sexually Transmitted Disease control (§TD), and other epidemiological investigations are
provided at no cost to the consumer but may be billed to Medicaid or other third party agent. Separate fees may be
charged for drugs, supplies, laboratory services, X-rays and other technological services, if appropriate. The costs of
services performed by providers not affiliated with Macon County Public Health are the responsibility of the
consumer. Fees may be charged or waived for educational services provided to individuals or groups, such as
orientation, preceptorship, field training or classes.

Charges not ¢ligible for sliding scale discount include:

Environmental Health services

Non-mandated immunization services

Miscellaneous/general services (see Miscellaneous/General section below)
Out-of-county residents (see Out-of-County Service Restrictions section below)
Specific insurance situations (see Insurance section below for details)

o0 opR

Bills will be mailed monthly to individuals who have not paid charges in full for services rendered (exception
Family Planning for those that request no mail be sent to their home). All bills will show total charges, as well as any
discount that may have been provided. Arrangements may be made for payment plans when required for good cause.

PAYMENT BY THIRD PARTY

Verification of enrollment under Medicare, Medicaid, insurance or other third party payment plan is required
by presentation of a valid card at the time of service. The Health Center is required to bill only participating third
party payers for services rendered. Services that are billed to third parties are billed at 100% of the total charge with
no discount applied unless there is a contracted reimbursement rate that must be billed per the third party agreement.
When the claim is returned from the third party payer all discounts are applied at that time. (i.e., any applicable sliding
fee scale adjustment) For services rendered to consumers with insurance where the Health Center is not a participating
provider, the consumer will be responsible for full payment of service when the service is delivered. The consumer

Page 3




MCPH Billing Guide FY 18-19 Effective 7/1/18

is responsible for charges not covered by third party payers. Co-pay amounts must be paid at the time of services and
are not subject to the sliding fee eligibility scale.

Sliding fee scale discount does not apply in the following situations:

a. Consumers with insurance in which MCPH is not participating provider.

b. Consumers with any insurance who choose not to use their coverage (exception those requesting confidential
services i.e. Family Planning services and Communicable Disease Services).

c. Insurance co-payments (when MCPH is a participating provider)

ACCOUNT COLLECTIONS AND BAD DEBT

The Health Center will issue all consumers a monthly statement of fees that have been incurred and are due.
Consumers are expected to make payment at the time services are rendered. If a balance is carried forward consumers
who have not made a payment on their account for any service(s) received from Macon County Public Health for 120
days shall be required to pay their past due balance before another service shall be rendered (see Service Denial for
further information).

The Health Center may use the following resources to pursue collection of consumer accounts: billing
statements, past due notices, collection agencies or credit bureaus, and the NC Local Government Debt Setoff
Clearinghouse (ref: NCGS 105A-1 et seq.) as administered by the NC Department of Revenue

Accounts will be reviewed annually for bad debt status, and at that time with the approval of the BOH and the
BOCC’s the amounts may be written off for accounting purposes if no further collection is anticipated. Any payments
received for write-off debts will be accepted and credited to appropriate accounts. At no time will a consumer be
notified that the account has been written off as a bad debt. Bad debt may be reinstated at time of service unless it is
determined uncollectible (i.e. bankruptcy, death), at which time it will be written off permanently.

CONSUMER DONATION POLICY

A consumer may choose to make a donation to the agency. The consumer will never be asked to make a
donatjon, but if offered the donation is accepted. Donations are not required, and are not a prerequisite for the
provision of any service. Billing requirements set out above in the Payment by Consumer section are not waived
because of consumer donations. (ref: Donation Policy 101.9)

RETURNED CHECK POLICY

A $25.00 fee will be charged for a returned check written to Macon County Public Health (MCPH). The
consumer will be notified via telephone or letter. All returned checks will be made good via cash, money order, and/or
certified check. If a consumer has two returned checks within a one-year period, he/she will be required to pay for
services in advance via cash, money order, or certified check for the period of one year. After the one-year period
expires, if another returned check occurs, all future bills must be paid with cash, money order, or certified check prior
to the provision of services. (Exception: Family Planning, Child Health and Maternal Health services for families with
income at or below 250% of Federal Poverty should not pay more in co-payments or additional fees than what they
otherwise pay when a Schedule of Discounts is applied. 42 U.S.C. 300 et seq./42 CFR 59.5 (a) (9) ).

REFUNDS

In the event that a consumer or other third-party has overpaid their responsible charges, the credit balance is
either: applied to future charges or refunded to the payer within thirty (30) days of discovery or request. Refunds for
Environmental Health services are determined by aftached policy and procedure.

Page 4




MCPH Billing Guide FY 18-19 Effective 7/1/18
SERVICE DENITAL

No individual may be denied Health Center mandated services e.g. communicable disease services (STD/TB)
and immunizations, These services are provided at no charge to the consumer. Individuals who do not meet program
guideline criteria may be denied specific services. Consumers covered by Medicaid who fail to make required co-
payments will not be denied services but may be subject to collections and/or bad debt set-off. . Individuals who have
not paid proper charges for previous services (unless state and federal program rules prohibit services restriction or
denial} may be required to pay fees beforehand, be denied access to services (see Account Collections and Bad
Debits), or be denied subsequent services pending demonstration of a good faith effort to make payment within the
past ninety (90) days.

OUT OF COUNTY SERVICE RESTRICTIONS

Macon County supports its low-income citizens by subsidizing the cost for certain health care services. To
assure that Macon County citizens have maximum access to Health Center services only those services mandated by
Federal Law, North Carolina General Statues or approved in this plan will be provided to non-Macon County
residents. If an individual moves out of Macon County, they are encouraged to obtain services from another
provider. Consumers are required to report any change of address at time of service.

COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE VI AND VII, OF 42 US CODE CHAPTER 21

The MCPH complies with Title VI and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and all requirements
imposed by or pursuant to the regulations. Staff will not discriminate against any consumers because of age, sex,
race, creed, national origin, or disability. Staff will ensure consumers with LEP are provided adequate language
assistance so they have meaningful access to the agency’s services.

PROGRAM SPECIFIC INFORMATION

COMMUNICABLE DISEASE CONTROL

Deals with the investigation and follow-up of ail reportable communicable diseases. Testing, diagnosis,
treatment, and referring as appropriate, of a variety of STD’s. Provides follow-up and treatment of TB cases
and their contacts. No fees are charged directly to consumers for these services as stated in Program Rules
(exception Medicaid or other third party agent can be billed with the consumer’s permission).

Eligibility:
» No residency or financial requirements

BREAST AND CERVICAL CANCER CONTROL PROGRAM (BCCCP)

Provides pap smears, breast exams and screening mammograms, assists women with abnormal breast
examinations/mammograms, or abnormal cervical screenings to obtain additional diagnostic examinations.

Eligibility:

» Must be a resident of Macon County;
» uninsured or underinsured;
> without Medicare Part B or Medicaid;

Page 5




MCPH Billing Guide FY 18-19 Efféctive 7/1/18

> between ages 40 - 64 for breast screening services and 18 - 64 for cervical screening services;

» have a household income at or below 250% of the federal poverty level.

» No charge for those who qualify for the program; family size shall be determined as follows:
Consumer, spouse of consumer and all children under 18 years of age, including step-children who live in
the home.

> Proof of income must be provided.

CHILD HEALTH

Well child exams conducted by (appropriate provider); exam includes medical, social, development, nutritional
history, lab work, and physical exam. MCPH accepts self-pay; most Private Insurances; Health Choice;
Medicaid

Eligibility:
» Residents of Macon County; Birth thru 20 years;

> Discounts are used for incomes between 101 — 250% of Federal Poverty. Consumers whose income
exceeds 250% of Federal Poverty are charged using the departments Schedule of Fees. Consumers whose -
income is at or below 100% of Federal Poverty are not charged for Child Health services.

EMPLOYEE HEALTH

Provides acute episodic medical care and chronic disease management services. This program is not intended
to replace an individual’s primary care provider.

Eligibility:

» All employees must participate in the county’s “Health Risk Assessment”
> New employees in the waiting period for their health insurance to start
» Employees and retirees and their dependents on the county health insurance plan
> Select pari-time employees as determined by the county manager.
WORKSITE WELLNESS

Employee health services are available for all employers in Macon County. Employee health services are
available on a per program basis or under and annual contract arrangement. Individual program fees will vary
and are based on salary expense to prepare and deliver the program; current mileage rates if travel is required;
as well as any materials, laboratory, or medical supplies costs. An administrative supplement of 10% is added
for each individual program. Comprehensive worksite wellness programs are available under contract for
organizations and companies with at least 50 employees. This program, also known as the LIFE program,
provides employee health screenings followed by customized programs and consultation services to address the
health needs of the employees. Fees for the LIFE program range from $30 to $50 per employee per year
depending upon the cost to provide the services, the number of programs provided, as well as the organization’s
ability to provide in-kind assistance.

IMMUNIZATIONS

Provide all required and recommended vaccines that are available for infants, school aged children and college
bound individuals. Also provide a wide range of vaccines for adults to include foreign travel vaccinations. MCPH
accepts most Private Insurances, Health Choice, Medicaid, and Medicare. In some instances charges do not
apply (e.g. state supplied vaccine). Sliding fee scale does not apply to immunizations.

Page 6




MCPH Billing Guide FY 18-19 Effective 7/1/18

Eligibility:
» No residency or financial requirements for immunizations.
CARE COORDINATION FOR CHILDREN (CC4C)

Case management assists families in identification of and access to services for children with special needs that
will allow them the maximum opportunity to reach their development potential.

Eligibility:

» Macon County children birth to age three who are at risk for developmental delay or disability, long term
illness and/or social, emotional disorders and children ages birth to five who have been diagnosed with
developmental delay or disability, long term illness and/or social, emotional disorder may be eligible for
the program.

FAMILY PLANNING

Clinic designed to assist women in planning their childbearing schedule; detailed history, lab work, physical
exam, counseling and education given by (appropriate provider). MCPH accepts self-pay; most Private
Insurances; Medicaid or potentially Medicaid eligible.

Eligibility:

» This can be a “confidential service”

» Schedule of Discounts is used for incomes between 101 — 250% of Federal Poverty. Consumers whose
income exceeds 250% of Federal Poverty are charged using the departments Schedule of Fees.
Consumers whose income is at or below 100% of Federal Poverty are not charged for Family Planning
SErvices.

» Services are provided without regard to residence requirements and without a referral by a physician (42
U.S.C. 300 et seq./42 CFR 59.5 (b) (5)).

» Proof of income must be provided. (Exception: for those requesting “Confidential Services™ that do not
have proof of income or by producing proof of income may put their confidentiality at risk, they may
write a statement of declaration of income.YWhere legally obligated or authorized to receive third party
reimbursement including public or private sources all reasonable efforts must be made to obtain said
payment without application of any discounts. Family Income should be accessed before determining
whether co-payments or additional fees are charged. Families with income at or below 250% of Federal
Poverty should not pay more in co-payments or additional fees than what they otherwise pay when a
Schedule of Discounts is applied. (42 U.S.C. 300 et seq./42 CFR 59.5 (a) (9)).

» A Family Planning consumer will never be refused a Family Planning service, or asked to meet with the
Health Director due to a delinquent account; however they may be referred to Debt set-off.

» Income information reported on the Family Planning financial eligibility screening can be used through
other programs rather than re-verification of income or relying on the consumer declaration.

» Pregnancy tests will be charged based on the qualifying Schedule of Discounts.

MISCELLANEOUS/GENERAL SERVICES/ADULT HEALTH

Include: daycare, DOT, foster care, employment or other specialty physical exams; laboratory services,
women’s health

Page 7




MCPH Billing Guide FY 18-19 Effective 7/1/18

Eligibility:

» 18 years and older (exception, laboratory services)

» Residents of Macon County (exception, colposcopies, pregnancy tests, laboratory services)

» These services are not eligible for sliding fee scale payment. Services will be paid for prior to any service
being rendered. Any additional fees associated with a visit will be added to the consumers account and
paid in full at checkout.

MATERNAL HEALTH

Prenatal care is medical care recommended for women during pregnancy. The aim of good prenatal care is to
detect any potential problems early, to prevent them if possible (through recommendations on adequate
nutrition, exercise, vitamin intake etc), and to direct the woman to appropriate specialists, hospitals, etc. if
necessary. Visits are monthly during the first two trimesters (from week one to week 28 of pregnancy), every
two weeks from 28 to week 36 of pregnancy and weekly after week 36 (until the day of delivery that could be
between week 38 and 40 weeks). MCPH accepts self-pay; most Private Insurances; Medicaid or potentially

Medicaid eligible.
Eligibility:
- » Residents of Macon - eligibility policy and residency requirements attached
» Maternal Health consumers will be required to have proof of residency
> Proof of income is required.
» Schedule of Discounts is used for incomes between 101 — 250% of Federal Poverty. Consumers whose

income exceeds 250% of Federal Poverty are charged using the departments Schedule of Fees.
Consumers whose income is at or below 100% of Federal Poverty are not charged for Maternal Health
services.

OB CARE COORDINATION MANAGEMENT (OBCM)

Case manager assists pregnant women in receiving needed prenatal care and pregnancy related services.

Eligibility:

» Residents of Macon County

Primary Care

Provides primary care services for Macon County residents between the ages of 21- 64. Consumers are

required to complete an application to determine eligibility prior to receiving services. Third party

insurance will be billed appropriately. Self-pay consumers may qualify for sliding fee scale discount based

on their family size and household income with the maximum discount of 60%. Sliding fee discount is based
on 250% of federal poverty.

Eligibility:

> Resident of Macon County between the ages of 21- 64

Page 8



MCPH Billing Guide FY 18-19 Effective 7/1/18

WOMEN, INFANTS, AND CHILDREN NUTRITION PROGRAM (WIC)

Supplemental nutrition and education program to provide specific nutritional foods and education services to
improve health status of target groups.

Eligibility: WIC is available to pregnant, breastfeeding, and postpartum women, infants, and children up to age
5 who meet the follow criteria:

Be a resident of Macon County;

Be at medical and/or nutritional risk;

Have a family income less than 185% of the US Federal Poverty Level;

Medicaid, AFDC, or food stamps automatically meet the income eligibility requirement

VVVY

CHILDRENS DENTAL PROGRAM

The Macon County Children’s Dental Clinic (Molar Roller) provides comprehensive general dental services to
children from birth to 20 years of age. Self-pay consumers may qualify for sliding fee scale based on their
family size and household income. Sliding fee discount is based on 250% of Federal Poverty with a maximum
discount of 75%.

Eligibility:

¥ Resident of Macon County.

ADULT DENTAL PROGRAM

The Macon County Adult Dental Clinic provides comprehensive general dental services to adults 21 years of
age and above. Self-pay consumers may qualify for a sliding fee discount based on family size and household
income. Sliding fee discount is determined on 200% of federal poverty with a maximum discount of 50%.

Eligibility:

»  Residents of Macon County.

»  Charges not eligible for sliding fee scale discount include: Services not covered by Medicaid or
Health Choice and those covered by insurances which MCPH is not a participating provider.

¥ Fees for adult dental services will be collected before the service is rendered.

COMMUNITY EDUCATION AND TRAINING
Health education/health training programs/services are provided to individuals and/or groups.
Eligibility:

> No Restrictions/Requirements

EXAMPLES
» Cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR)

Page §




MCPH Billing Guide FY 18-19 Effective 7/1/18

» Automated external defibrillators(AED)
» First Aid Training:

EXPLANATION

Various components of American Red Cross Standard First Aid and/or CPR/AED for lay responders
are offered on-site at Macon County Public Health Classes are offered for a fee Pre-regisiration and
pre-payment are required.  Fees for the specific educational components are based on current
American Red Cross pricing.

NUTRITION SERVICES:
DSME Services:

Macon County Public Health offers Diabetes Self-Management Education/Training services accredited
by the American Diabetes Association The registered dietitians are credentialed and certified
providers with some third party payors.. For consumers with third party insurance, , a physician
referral and medical diagnosis of diabetes is required in order for the insurance to be billed and costs
covered accordingly. Self-pay consumers may qualify for a sliding fee discount based on family size
and household income. Sliding fee discount is determined on 250% of federal poverty with a
maximum discount of 20% in which the consumer is responsible for payment to the health center prior
to service being rendered.

Diabetes Prevention Program (DPP)

Macon County Public Health offers Diabetes Prevention Program accredited by The Center for
Disease Control and Prevention. Because there is no established billing code for this program
accepted by third party payors and to encourage participation, a small program fee will be established
for each participant. Consumers may qualify for sliding fee scale discount based on their family size
and household income with the sliding fee discount is based on 250% of federal poverty.

Medicaid or Medicaid eligible consumers may be eligible for a Center for Disease Control and
Prevention (CDC) sponsored scholarship and therefore are not charged a fee for the program, but are
eligible for the incentives.

Eligibility
> Declaration of Income

MNT Services:

Macon County Public Health offers Medical Nutrition Therapy services. The registered dictitians are
credentialed and certified providers with some third party payers. For consumers with third party
insurance, a physician referral and a covered medical diagnosis is required in order for the insurance
to be billed and costs covered accordingly. Self-pay consumers may qualify for a sliding fee discount
based on family size and household income. Sliding fee discount is determined on 250% of federal
poverty with a maximum discount of 20% in which the consumer is responsible for payment to the
health center prior to service being rendered to consumer.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

Page 10




MCPH Billing Guide FY 18-19 Effective 7/1/18

Unlike other health department fees, Environmental Health fees are determined at the will of the Boards of
Health and County Commissioners. Environmental Health fees from other counties are taken into
consideration. Exception. water testing fees are determined based on actual costs for supplies/test kits, Fees
for Environmental Health Services are collected at time of application.

REFUND POLICY: Attached

ANIMAL SERVICES

Unlike other health department fees, Animal Service fees are determined at the will of the Boards of Health
and County Commissioners. Animal Service fees from other counties are taken into consideration. Fees for
Animal Services are due at tilne of Service.

Guidelines for D inine El { the Slidine Fee Seal

Eligibility screening is required on all new consumers or when family size and/or income changes occur, or at 12
month intervals. A consumer’s percentage of pay is documented on the Financial Eligibility Application in the

consumer’s medical record and in HIS. Consumer income information reported can be used to determine eligibility !
for other sliding fee based programs (i.e. Adult Health, Child Health, Prenatal, Family Planning and Dental).

Primary Care, Nutrition Services, Child Health, Maternal Health, Family Planning and Dental

A family is defined as a group of related or non-related individuals who are living together as one economic unit.
Individuals are considered members of a single family or economic unit when their production of income and
consumption of goods are related.

An economic unit must have its own source of income.

Example: consumer with no income must be considered part of a larger economic unit that provides support to the
household. Groups of individuals living in the same house with other individuals may be considered a separate
economic unit. For example, if two sisters and their children live in the same house and both work and support their
own children, they would be considered a separate household.

EXCEPTIONS TO ECONOMIC UNIT

A.  Un-emancipated minors and others requesting confidential services will be considered a family unit of
one, and fees will be assessed based on their own income.

B. A foster child assigned by DSS shall always be considered a family of one.
Page 11




MCPH Billing Guide FY 18-19 Effective 7/1/18
D ination of G I .

The dollar amounts represent gross annual income; they refer to total cash receipts before taxes from all sources.

Page 12




MCPH Billing Guide FY 18-19 Effective 7/1/18

Household income sources include: Salaries and wages, earnings from self-employment (deduct business expenses,
except depreciation); interest income, all investment and rental income; public assistance, unemployment benefits,
worker’s compensation, alimony, military allotments; Social Security benefits, VA benefits; retirement and pension
pay; insurance or apnuity plans; gaming proceeds and any other income not represented here that contributes to the
household consumption of goods. This list is not all inclusive.

Current pay stub (noting the pay timeframe i.e.: weekly, bi-weekly etc.)

Signed statement from employer indicating gross earnings for a specified pay period, statement must include the
business name, address and phone number and must be legible.

W-2 Forms

Unemployment letter/notice

Award letter from Social Security Office, VA or Railroad Retirement Board

1099’s received from IRS

For Self-employment: Accounting records or income tax return for the most recent calendar year, entire tax return
must be provided in order to allow deductions for business expenses.

Page 13



00'v6T WD (' 01 WD T'€ J313Welp pasioXa '$33| Jo ‘swue YOVIT
“unJy ‘(313ymas|a pais)) ssajun) Sel unys 1ds3x3 “suidiew 3ulpnjaul uoisa| USiuag ‘uoisiox3
00°9/1 W2 0° € O1 WD T'7 J31aWelp pasioxa (s33] 10 ‘swe SOVIT
Hunay ‘(aisymas|a pais| ssajun) Sex unys 1dadx3 ‘suiiew Buipn(oul uoisa| USIUAg ‘uols|ox3
00°ZST W2 0°Z 01 W T'T J318WEelp pPasioxo (S35 JO SwJe ZOFTT
HunJy ‘(aiaymas|a paisi| ssajun) Sex upys 1daax3 “suidiew Suipn(sul uoisa| USIUag ‘UoisIoxX]
00'SET LD 0T 01 W2 g'0 Jalawelp pas|oxa 's8a| 10 ‘sulle TOVIT
HunJ} ‘(3iaymas|a pais)) ssajun) Sey uys 1daax3 “suigiew 3uipnidul Uoisa| USiUag ‘uols|ox]
00'STT §S3| 10 WD G'() J313Wie|p pasioxXe ‘533 1o ‘swue 00rIT
Hunag ‘(Jaymas|a palsl| ssa|un) 3el uys 1daax3 “sUidsewt Fulpn|aul uoisa| UZ|Uag 'Uo|s|oxX] :
00'8¢ SUOIS3| OT |eUCIlIPPE YIED S3RY UDYS JO |BAOWSY TOZTT
00°0L 5UOIS3| GT 03 dn ‘sge} UIys JO jeACIBY 00211
00°S uonelaldiajul Yiim Moy poo|q Je|nao Jo Juswalnseay Add 4000¢
000 3|0ZEpIUOIIBIN 0£00S
00°€E¥S plesipaly - Buiseajas auouloy - anl eu3s|A) an 866D
00°006 Buiseajal auowoy - Nl euaajAy #8660
00'P9€ uoue|dxan an LOELT
007004 uoue|dxaN LOELT
00°'82S (euaJiA) 8w Z6 ‘walshs aalldadeIIUOI BUIRINEIIU) BUISED|3.-|311S3810UOAT] ZOELT
00'9LE PIEIIPIIA - 3WE |[BWS AN BIAYS an TOELT
00°008 awely ||ews ani elAys TOELl
00°057 vOgEL pieSeled ‘801A9p aAndaoeau0d Jaddad aulalnely| an DOELS
00052 YOREL pleSeied ‘231A2p aardaoeliuod Jaddod sulainesuy) Q0.0
00'TTE PIESIPIIN - 3N BUBJIA an BoCLI
00°06€ (zoeLr seoe|dal) RUBLIN 8670
0005 ensn Le2Ll
00'vET Jowpoe ‘@sop |n} (8)yy) Wijngo|H sunww (a) oyy oeler
00'1Z uopalul 441 SZLTl
00 0T a1eydsoyd wnipos aucseylawexaq ‘Uoialy 00TTl
0007 {1un Jad ¢’} DN 05T ‘@1LIS0Y auosaisadosdAxolpalp ‘Uohdaly| 0sOTr
nun/ose 3U0ZBYS) 9690r
wun/gz: uljig Tosar
0 Xeolyuzy 950l
0 dinoaAay faulsAdAxo( EETOr
saag juauny - k]
uonduasag "..m apon
=

a|npayog 994 Yj|eaH a1qnd AQjunos uode




00 ¥81 Wo g*71 03 W2 g°/ (198} pue spuey 3uipn|aul) ssl)lwaixe +00ZT
Jo/pue “Huny ‘eje)uad [BuIaIXa ‘BB[|IXE 29U ‘d|eas Jo spunom [e[dipIadns Jo Jiedas 3)dwis

00°6ST W3 5°/ 01 W 9° {1234 pue spuey 3uipn|aul) S311WBIIXD 70071
Ja/pue “unJi ‘el|exua3 [BLI1XS ‘Se(|IXR 38U ‘d|eds Jo spunom [ed1adns jo Jledas ajdwis

00 LPT 553| J0 W2 §°7 {198} pue spuey Sulpnjoul) ssi1jWsxe T00ZT

Jo/pue HunJy ‘eljelusd |eu11xa ‘Be||IXE HIBU ‘d|eos jo spunom [ed1padNs jo Jiedaa ajduwis ,

00'tEE SPPit
WD 'p JOAD J21DWLRIP PasIaXa faurIqUIaW shoanw ‘sdi| ‘asou ‘spilaAs ‘s1ea
‘aoky ‘(a1aymas|s palsl| ssajun) Sey unys 1daox3 “sujdiew Suipnioul uoisa| udluaq ‘uoisiax]

pozLe 12247’
W2 O°p 01 W2 T'E Jajawelp pasiaxa ‘auelquiaw snoanw ‘sdi| ‘asou ‘spliaAa ‘sles
‘sae} ‘(adaymas|a palsl| ssa|un) Sel unfs 1daox] “sulfiew Suipnjoui uolsa| Udiuaq ‘uoIsIIX]

00'eTe 240"
W2 "€ 01 W3 T'7 Jo12ulelp pasioxe Bueiquaw snoanw ‘sdij ‘asou ‘spl|ada ‘sies
‘aae} ‘(21aymas|a pa1s) ssajun) Se1 unys 1deox3 ‘suidliew Buipnfoul Uoisa| Usiuaq ‘UoISIX3]

00'vLT FAAAN)
W2 'z 01 WD T'T Jolawelp pasiaxa [aueiquwswu snoanw ‘sdi| ‘asou ‘spijaia ‘sies
‘aoe} ‘(asaymas|a palsl) ssejun) Sey unys 1dsax3 “suigew Suipnpul uoisa) uluaq ‘UoIsIIX]

00451 TrriT
W2 O°T 0 W3 g'() JolaWe|p pasidxa ‘aueiquaws snoanw ‘sdi| ‘asou ‘sptaAs ‘sies
‘gaey ‘(213YMas|3 pa1sl ss3|un) Bel unys 1daox3 “suiSiew Suipn|aul uoisaj UBUaq LoISIIXG

ooZel orrTl
553 JO WA §°() JoIAWE|p PasIoXa ‘Buelguiaw snodnw ‘sdi| ‘asou ‘spijais ‘sies
‘a4 ‘(3laymas|d palsi| ssajun) Sel upjs 1dsax3 suiiew Suipn|aul uoisa| UBluaq ‘uoisiax]

00’167 W2 ' J3A0 J21aWwelp pasioxa ‘e||eyusd 1994 ‘spuey oau 91l
‘djeds ‘(a1aymas|a palsl| ssajun) Se1 upys 1d=0x3 ‘suidiew Fuipnjaul uolsa| UB|UBg ‘Uo|sIaX]

00’812 W2 0" 01 WD T°€ J31aLllelp pasioxa feljeHuaB 1994 Spuey 2osu S rArann
‘djeos ‘(aiaymas[a pais|| ssajun) Be3 uys 1deox3 “suidsew Fuipn|au UoIsa| USIUAY ‘UOISIING

00'C61 Wwo Q¢ 03 WD T'Z JeIdWelp pasioxa ‘el|eluad Jea} ‘spuey Hoau IYAANE
‘d|eas (aloymasia pa1sl| ssajun) Se1 ups 1deox3 "suldiew Fulpniou) uolsa| ugluag ‘uo|siaxg

00'85T W 0°Z 01 W2 T'T Jalawelp pasiaxa ‘eljeyuad 1a8a) spuey osu ZerIT
‘d|eas ‘(asaymas|d palsl| ssajun) Sey upjs 1deax3 “suidsew Buipnpu] UoISa| USIUSG ‘UOISIIX]

00'ZP1 W2 0'T 03 9°( J2IBWeEIP PasIdxs ‘el|eljuas 183} ‘spuey Hosu Tevitl
‘d|eas ‘(asaymas|a paisl| ssajun) Sey upys 1080x3 “suiSiew Suipn|aul Uoisa| UBIUAG ‘UoISIaXT

00'0TT $S3| JO WD §'( Ja1aWelp pasIaxa feljeliuad 4834 ‘spuey “oau ord an?
‘d|eas ‘(alaymas|a p21st| ssajun) el upys 1daox3 ‘suidiew Juipn|aul UoISs| UBIUSG ‘UCISIINT

00'2Ee 0t JAAOD I21BWelp pasiIXa (s3.| Jo ‘swe 90vTE

unJy ‘(alaymas|a paisl| ssajun) Be1 upys 1deox3 sulFiew 3uipnjoul Uoksa| uBIuag ‘Uo|ISIaXT




00'691 ani io [eaouwiay L0E8S

00°ZET S0lASp aulRInENU] LasU| 00€3s
00°60T {sinpaooid sjeiedas) poljall Aue ‘uohelip

feaIAI@2 Inoyum '(Asdolg) Buidiies [eajaiso0pua Jholum Jo Yim (Asdoig) Buidwes [eLjewopug 00189

00'6E7 abeyaino [eaia00pUS/M BUIBeA Jussepe/leddn Buipn|oul xiniao ay) jo Adoosod|o) 95t/ S

00'EST x1/83 10 Asdolgym euiBes ustelpeuaddn Buipnjaul XiAa9 o Adoasod|o) GSY/G
00°697 abejaina

|EDIAIB20PUS 10 XIAJBD jo Asdoig/m euiBea juasoelpessaddn Buipnioul xiaies auj jo Adoosod|o) svLS

00'16T eulbea Jusoelpe/addn Buipn|oul xiaies ey jo Adoosod|o) Z5%/S

0016 suoljonuisul yym Bunily wiesydelq 04115

00'v6€E xajdwo? - (s)uoisa BAINA Aonjsag 61595

00622 BAINA VO L L0595

00/ 8F AadinsoAuny anisuaix] - {S)uoisan sluad UoI1onIsaQ 59075

00'82¢ |eo1WaY) adwis - (s)uolsa] sjuad Aosisad 0S0vS

00°'SYT LOILIBsUIal Yllm [eAoLUB] UOUE|dXaN £86TT

0008 |eacwad uoue|dxan 78611

00'59 uoipasul uouejdxaN 186TT

00 8¥FT Supped yum f2ou3siyap punom |edliadns jo Juaneal | TZ07T

00202 2.ns0[2 a|dwIs f2audds|yap punom [eldladns jo Jualesd| 0Z0ZT

00°9.% W2 0'0€ 4340 {(192) pue spuey 3Ulpnipul) ssuelquusw 8TO0TT
snoonw Jo/pue ‘sdi| ‘@sou ‘spijaia ‘siea ‘@aey Jo spunom |eldjpiadns Jo Jedal ajdwis

00'v6€ WD 0°0€ 03 WO T°0 (193} pue spuey 3ujpnjaut) ssuelquiaw L1oTT
snoanw 1o/pue ‘sdi| ‘asou ‘spl|3A3 ‘sied ‘aae) Jo spunom |epipiadns Jo Jjedal sjdwis

00'p0E 81071
Wo p'07 03 W2 9°7T {1934 pue spuey Suipnjaul) ssuelqusw
snoonw 1o/pue ‘sdi] ‘9sou ‘spijaAs ‘siea ‘93e) JO spunom |ediuadns Jo Jiedad s|dwis

00052 W2 GZT 01 W2 97/ (1934 pue spuey 3ulpn|oul) ssueiquiaw s10Z1
SNO2NLU J0/puUE ‘sd|) ‘350U ‘spljaAs ‘sied 92k} Jo spunom [eiadns Jo Jedal 3|dwis

00002 W2 §°7 03 wd 1°G {1394 pue spuey Fuipn[aul} ssuelquwaW vI0ZT
snoanul 1o/pue ‘sdi] ‘asou ‘spljaAs ‘siea ‘aaey Jo spunom [eialpladns jo Jiedas sjdwis

00'TLT W3 (g 01 W3 g7 {3994 pue spuey 3uipn|aul) ssuelquidLl £I10Z1
snoanil 1o/pue ‘sdij ‘asou ‘spijaAs ‘sied ‘82ey J0 spunom [enipsdns jo Jjedal s|dws

00°€EST 5§59 40 W3 §'Z {1984 pue spuey Suipn|aul) ssuelquuaLl 11021
snosnw Jo/pue ‘sdiy ‘asou ‘spl[aAa ‘siea ‘sdey Jo spunom |eLJadNs jo Jiedal ajduwisg

00 TEE W2 0'0F J49A0 (399} puk spuey Fuipn{oul) saluRlIxs L0021
10/pue “unJy ‘el|eUUSS [BUISIXD ‘Be(jIXe 23U ‘d|eds Jo spunom |enluadns jo Jiedal sjdwis

00°86T wWo 0'0€ 03 Wd 0z ‘(399) pue spuey Fuipnjaul} salywalxa 90021
Jo/pue “yunJy ‘eljeHusd [euJSIXa ‘Se||IXe Haau ‘d|eds jo spunom |epiyiadns Jo Jiedas ajdwis

00°822 WD 007 03 W2 9°ZT ‘(3994 pue spuey Fuiphjaul) salllLlxa 50071
lo/pue “junJl ‘el|ENUSE [BUISIXD ‘Se||IXe HD8U ‘d|eds Jo spunom |eplyiadns jo Jiedss 3jdwis




00'S0€ BAljUBABIH - SUIDJBA salqey 8/908
00'687 ainsodx3 - auiodeA salgey 61906
00°0% ISIN Nid Jus|eAlpeEND 21906
00681 Jeuaald 0/906
00'9€ (<@ gg) 8soq yYBiH suozn|4 29908
payddng eje3s - 1siwinid 09906
00Tt (< sih g)ous ni4 85906
00°TT (supuow ge-9) Jous ni4 /5908
00°502 8S0p € 6 AdH L6906
00LET {(xuea1ad) AdHAZ usleAld AdH 05906
00°067 (AdH} llsepleq 87906
0065 anpayas asop ¢ L-d¥d - P2 - aiH 8906
00°1€ 8lnpayos 8sop ¢ dINO ddd - dH 1+906
00'TE Aluo Je)sooq - Jnpy - AiH o9r906
00'TE 9npayYas asop ¥ HOUH - PIYO - diH 57906
00'T8 BUIDZBA XHUIM | 9£906
00°SE alielpad - v dsy £E906
00°'1S Inpy - v dey Z£906
0009t (asop ¢ g dnosBoles uejcidodi| Jueuiguooal) g [eaoodobuluspy LZ906
00'SET {asop z 'g dnoiBoles uiejold jueuigwosal) g [eososobuiusy 02906
00°0¢ Ab_oxow_ch_oom\, uoneuiquod 1o w_mr__wv SUID2BA 31N0J |BJO 10 |BSBURUI [BUsljippe LoB .06
00°0Z (ploxoy/euIaaea
uoneUIqLUIo? o 3|fuis) sUI22BA BUOC (8JN0I [0 1o [eseurtiul AQ UOHBIISIUILUPE UOEZIUNLUIL €.v06
00'tT [BUOHIPPY YoE3-904 UoRSILILIPY SUl0dEA ZL706
00'v1 894 LOIJelIS|UILIPY SUIS2EA LLP06
0091 aleolps|y {paiyoadsun) sulodeA SNUIA Ni4 65020
0091 2/e3Ips|N (2U0ZN|]) BUIDIBA SNIIA N 8£0ZD
009t BIe2IPSIA (ULIAN| ) BUIDTBA SNIA NI LE0ZD
0091 SYJUoW 9¢-9 Em_m_)_.__um:_u SUIJ2BA BZUBN|IU| EOCO
00T (eseoipay) g daH - 824 uoijelsiuiLpY 0L00D
00t (a1e0Ipa) JOUS EIUOWNBUY - 884 UOHEASIUILPY 60009
00°'vT (ase0ipapy) Jous Nl - 824 UohelsiLpy 80009
009 Aed jusned - 158 g1 408598
009 1s8] g1 08598
00’98 XEM Jea UEOMQE_ SA0WTDY 0LZ6S
00'TZT alep Aisaljaq Jeyy 0eves
00°00€T S)ISIA 10U 1O / S)SIA |BjRuald 9zZres
00°000T S)ISIA § 0} ¢ ISYISIA [ejeuld GZ¥BS
00'79 Js8] ssang-uon [eled GZ06S




Q007 JUsulssasse-al _c_E Gl Jad .EmEmwm.mw(._o_.;m:mm % YlleeH LglLeB
0012 [eljiu] 'ul G| 1od ‘jusLussassy Jolaeyag g LiesH 05196
00°L JUallssassy [RICIABUa/jeudliowls jalig FXA RS S
00'€T Bujuaaliog eluswdolaasg 0LL96
00°0€ Buyse} feuomppe OM3 0L0E6
00°0F Hoday puk uolejeldisiu] Yim oM 000£6
00'€9 Gcm_w:m.; laylie h_mr.,m_ snnwigs m_mc_mv patiwi) ”mco_mm__tm JISNOJECI0 PEYOAT 18676
00°8T AnjawouedwA | 19576
00°6€ 158 Buues 78626
00°'8%T xubulyg 05208
00°0S InpY - g daH 9v.06
00°LE Jujelped - g daH /06
00°962 auIo08A shileydsous assueder 86706
00°0£T (suidoeA s8jBuIys) Xeaeiso7 9¢.206
00°9TT BijoBUBN €206
00811 [eao020BUlUB £€/06
00°L6 BUISIBA BlUOWNBUd 2€.06
00°SL (AdI-8deH -deiq) - xuepad £2L06
00'62T BUIDOBA JoADH MO|IBA L1206
00°1IY dep) GLL06
00'TET BUIDOEA E[j90lIBA 9L206
006§ pl v1L206
00'9¢ Adl £LL06
00012 (penboid) AHININ 0L206
005/ HIAW 10.06
0085 shueja] eueyydig - 1Q Z0.06
00'TE dv1a 00206
00'0£T (QIH/AdI-de1a) - (1Pjusd 86906
00901 (AdI-deLa) - Xuury 96906
0086 auoaeA ploydA | 16906

00'9T 85N JE[N2SNLURII I0} 18p|o pue abe
jo sleah € S|enplalpu| O] paJalsiuilupe uaym .w:.__> H__Qw _Em_m>tum3_u_®c_ou.m> sSnliA BZuanjjuj 88906

00'9T ash IejnosnwIenul 1o} ‘abe
JO syjuow Gge-g ualp|lyd o] palslsidilipe usym _ms.__> an _Em_m_;tvmjc.wc_uum\, SRJIA BZUBN|JU} £8906

00'91 %N Je|n2sSNWENUI 10j 1ap|e pue abe Jo s1eaA ¢ slenplalpul
0] paJalsiuiuipe Laym _mmt m>:m.._cmm®._n_ _m:.__> H__n_w _Em_m>_._um3_u.mc_oom> SNUIA BZUBN|JU] 98906

00'91 a8n Jehosnwleliul Jo) 'abe Jo syjuow g£-g ualp|iyo
0] paJalsiuiwpe Uaym _mmh m>_um>‘_mmm‘_n_ _mj.__> En_w _Em_m>_‘_ﬁm:5_mc_oum> snuiA eZuanjiu] 58006
00'STT xejoy 18906
0026 bajejoy 08908




00'1E asngy souelsgng 80¥66
00°S¢ Uil g JoA0 UoNEINPp3 020eqO L0¥66
00°ET (uw p}-g) uoesNP3 0300 | 90v66
00'05¢ NISIA SS3Ul[2AA [BnuuY Juenbasgng aiedlpaiy BEF0D
00052 Jap|o pue sJeak g9 (Lexe [eaisAyd 43 /6E66
00'Z¥2 sieak g 0} O (Wexs [eaisiyd 43 96E66
00°212 sieah g 0} g1 ‘wexs [eaishyd 43 GBEEB
00912 siesh /| 0} g} ‘Wexa [eaisAyd 43 vBE66
00002 sieak || yBnoiyy g (wexs |eoisAyd 43 £6E66
00002 sieah p 0} | (wexa [eaisiyd 43 Z6£68
00002 lesh | > ‘wexs |esishyd (43) Wwshed peysl|qe}s3 L6E66
00°0TE swiayl e Ul aouQ AluQ aledlipajy ISIA (e 8EF0D
00'01E laao pue sJead gg jwexa |eaisfyd 4N I9CE6H
p0°/82 siead 9 0} gt wexa [eaisAyd N 9866
00°Zve sieah gg 0} g ‘wexa |eoisAyd dN GREB6
00'6v¢ sieak 71 0] Z| :wexa [eoishud dN ¥8£66
00922 sieeh 1| 0} g ‘wexs |eaisAyd 4N £9£66
00222 sies {7 0} | (wexa |edisAyd dN 78£66
00112 Jeah | > ‘wexs [edisAyd (dN) Juslied MaN | 8E66
00'797 ‘UL o xordde awy sAyd "alanas ‘i "gejse AQ GLZ66
00607 ‘Uil gz xosdde sy sAyd "elanss ‘id "gejse AQ 71268
00'TZT (3d LoQ "out) "uiw 6| xoidde swi sAyd "spesapow 1d "geisa AQ £1266
002L (3d weawheidw aur) "uiw gl xcudde awn sAyd-louill d "qeise AQ 21266
00t (3d Aneads paywy sul) uiw g xoidde auny ‘sAud om/m [eaiui d (gelss) paysigelse AQ LLZ66
00°97¢ sajnui ng xoidde sw} sAyd-aieaes ‘1d mau AD $0766
00°08¢ soINUIW ¢ xoldde awiy sAyd-xajdwod 1d meu AQ 0266
00081 sajnui pg xoidde awy sAyd-sjelspol 1d mau AQ £0Z68
00'¥ZT sajnuIl o7 xoldde awn sAyd-sjerspoll 1d msu AQ Z0Z66
00°€8 sanuIw g1 ‘xoidde swy sAyd-loujus (3d) Juaied mau (AQ) USIA 8210 L0266
00's Isa] Buiusaiog Anoy [ensip £.166
00°s lojoD - 189 Buiussiog ANndy [BnSIA T.1L66
00°'ST swioy jeaisfyd eys|dwios g SLWIo} aoueInsul se yans spodal esdg 08066
000 aJe} 0} a2} hco_«mozﬁm 0_390 L9686
00’0 80k} 0] 8JE} ‘UOEINPT [ENPIAIDU| 09686
000 yuhuIw 6| ‘uoijeonpg suoyds|a L L9686
o'ce "_m:_u_>_ﬂ.c_ .Eo_ﬁcwamuc._ pue juswssasse-al SQN._QF_H uoninu jedipsiy c0R/B
00'St ‘[ENPIAIpUL ‘UOIJUBAISIUI PUE JUSLUSSSSSE [Bljiu| -AdeIay) uaijuinu |esipajy Z08.6
0002 uoljos(u| onneadesay | Z.£96
009 JuaLussassy ysiy YleaH pasnaod-jusiied Jo Uojelsiulupy 09196




00°'S6 westewiad Jo Arewnd ‘aorpuns | - Weblewy orLzd
00'LS Jaulejuiely soedg xi4 srowsy Gsslad
00'56¢ [eJeiElIq - PaXI) - Jeulejulel acedg GLG1La
00'€82 |BJRIUN - PBX)} - JBUBJUIBW 90BdS oLsLg
00'vr yjooj Jad - uejeag 15€10
00's¢ {pepn|oul jou sixejfydoud) spionjy jo uohedljdde [eaido) 80z1La
00°'LS sjusized ysu saues ybiy 0} ateispoLl Joj uonesljdde onnadelay) ‘ysiuea apuonjy [eaido | s0z1La
00'Z8 sixejAydold /m spiion|H [edido] gozLa
00'Z8 sixelfydosd /m aplion|d [edido | LozLa
00'95 pliys - sixejAydoid 0zLLa
oo'Lg Inpe - sixejAydold oLlla
00'alLl wiy lweloued ogeod
00'€s sy ¢ - sBuimayg vizod
00°0S swly ¢ - sBuimang €200
00'9¢ swijy Z - sBuimayg z/200
00'zz wiy o|buis - Buimayg 04204
00'se LI} [euOIIpRE oBS - [RICBIX] 098c0d
00’Zy Wijll 1811} - jeJoelIX] 0520d
o0'ze Wi} [BSN[I00 - [2JoRU| Oteoa
00'vZ Wiy [euoliippe Yoes [esideuad - feJoeiu) 0£20d
00°0¢ wiy jsay |eoidensd- |eloesju) 0Zzod
007 kYL {sBuimalg Buipnjoul) ssuas aj9|dwod - [eioelU| oLZoda
o0 vt (do-js0d Jou ‘yusned paysiqelsa) pesnao} Wajgold 'pajill] - uolienjeas-ay 0L00
007001 odas AQ ‘pasna0) Wa|qold - UoIBN[EAS [BI0 BAISUSIXS pue pajie}a( 09:0d
00°69 aned paysi|gelse JO Mall - Uoljen|eas (1o aAlsuayasdwo) 05L0a
008t sJAg > jd ‘Uolienjea3 [eIQ SL0d
00799 pasnao} Wsjqold - UOIIENIEAS |B10 Pa)iLUI ovLod
00°8¢ ocLoa

Lonen|eAs |eJo Jipousd

00°16 sanuiW gg xdde ‘Bujasunos dnoif 'suinipaw sAlUBASId ZL 766
00'se (z0zZN1 paoe|dey) seoinieg Juslebeuely pue uoljenjeal JBu0 661766
00°08T ssjnuil pg [euoiippe Bujuue|d aied aoueApY 86166
00081 uIw pE ¥sdi Buluue|d a1ed asueApy LB¥66
00°60T ybBiy/seainas Jusluabeuety ares jeuoljisuel | OBY66
00°'TZT alelapoll/sediaes Juswabeuew aled |euol)isuel | 6166
006 sjusilssassy |BUONIPPY 0Zv66
00't9 Uil Qg JeA0 8SNqY adUBISqnS 60¥66




00°29 Alejixey ainjuaq feled jsnlpy 1evsd
00°Z9 Je|ngpuely aunjuaq sje|dwo Jsnipy Lwsa
00°29 Ae|ixey sinjuaq aje|dwo) isnipy oLrea
00'08ZL oskq UISsl ylomaLlel) [eJew 1sed - aunjua(q [ellied Je|ngipuely ylLzed
00°0SZL aseq U1sa) Jomallel) [BlaWl jseD - aimuap |erued Avg|(e clLzsa
00°vbe aseq ulsey - siMua( [elled Je|ngipuely zlzsa
00’8 aseg uisay - ainjua(] [eljed Aejixep Lizsd
00’ reZL Je|nqipuey - aanjuaqg selpsLuul]| orlLsd
oo'rezL Ae||ixepy - sinjuag sielpauull 0gLsd
oo'8ELL le[ngipuep - einjua( aje|dwo) ozlsd
00'8cLi Aejixep - sinjuag sys|dwo) oLLsea
00°86 adUeuUsjUlel [BjJUOPOLIDS olLe¥d
00°9%1 sisoubelp pue Uoheneas aaisuaysIdwod a|qeus o3 Jualaplgap yjnow ind SeEra
00°881 juelpenbyies) ¢ o} | Buiued Joou pue Buljeds [ejuopolad Zrerd
00°861 1ee] snonbiuoa a1ol Jo  Buiueld jool pue Bulless [ejucpoLiad LPERQ
00°'Z81 Juelpenbsuyias; snonbijues ¢ 0} | Ase|doalBulb to AwojosalBulg LLZra
00698 {uoijeioisal [euly Buipnoxa) Jejow - Adelal]] jeued Jooy ogeed
00°00. {uoneJoysal [euy Buipnjoxa) pidsnolg - Adessy) [eueod j00Y pzZesd
00°Z.8 (uonelolsal feuy Buipnjoxa) Jousiue - Adessy) [eues 100y oLeed
0078%lL {uoneioisal [euy Buipnjoxa) Awojodind onnadeisy 0ZZea
0078y LOIJEI)SSS 0} LCIIPPE Ul Y300} Jad - uonualal uld L5620
00°'v61 suid Aue Buipnjoul ‘dnpjing 8109 06620
00°58 Buiy eanepsg 0v6ed
00'£22Z yio0) Alewiid - umola [98)s sS3jUlB]S pajeaude;sid 0e6zd
00°82 UMOIY]) JUBsLlS0ay 0Z62d
00°52Z ved Jo Aejuoiie|ul JUBWSIaY oL6zd
00°000°L {uij@olod) |e1dW snooald -uol 'UMmoUD L622d
00°§22 lola)sod ‘sadeuns 2i0W IO { - Blsodod paseq-uIsay 620
00°EZZ Jolsisod 'seoeuns ¢ - a)sodwod peseq-uisay £6g2d
00°081L Jolig)sod 'seoeuns g - a)sodwod pased-uisay Z6szd
00°'8¢L Jouajsod ‘aoepns | - aysodwod peseq-uIsay L8EzZa
00'8%1 wisad Jjad aoeyuns | - a)sodlISD pased uIsay geezd
00212 (1ol8juR) 8|Bue |esioul BUIAJOAU! JO $9OBLINS 8J0W IO { - 8)iS0dWod paseq-UIsay geged
00'8L louslUe ‘S8dBuUNsS ¢ - a)isodulod pased-uissy zZeezd
00°0S1 JolSIUE ‘'saoeuns g - 9)isodwod pased-uisay Leszd
00°8LL Joligjue ‘eoeuns | - a)sodWod paseq-u|say 0gezd
00'LeL watewsad Jo Aewld ‘'seoeyuns alow Io § - Webewy LoLza
00'6¢L JWalewled 1o Alewud *saoepuns ¢ - WeBeuwy poizd
00'cZL wauewlad Jo Aewud ‘sasepns g - webjewy 05120




1o U0 ‘Ynsal aalebau ‘add J0LsE

10B1U00 ‘Ynsal anisod ‘dd 40198

00°0 (peilddng 21e13) st UBIY ‘'UanIB add 08598
000l ulod Buuealog g1 LOOLL
synsey 1sa] -1s0d AlH 066

SZ'0 (0051 ¢ peaoxa 0 Jou ableyd ways Jad) sploosy [eaipaly jo Ado) 29663
66766

Juauiies)] a9

- A" a)sed | LOrNT
00°00F p.eng 8jig [esnS30 ov66d
00'26 ainpanoid Joulw - uled [ejuap jo Jusunes)) (AousBiaws) aaneled oLL8a
00°052 angsi} SNoaUBIN2gNS JO 'Ulys “esoanul wioly Apog ubialo) jo jeaclluay 0£6.Q
00° L2 anssl) Yos |zloetul - ssassde jo abeuelp pue uoisiou| 01620
9s'2LL W2 6Z'| 0} dn uoisa| uBjuag Jo UoIsiox3 o0L¥.d
00°30¢ juespenb Jod ‘ssoeds 100} £ 0 | - SUOHOBIIXS Yim uonaunfuo U 1ou Aise|dojosly Lge2d
00't9¢ elpenb Jad ‘saoeds LJJoo] 210LW 10 { - SUOHOBIIXS YiIm UoRUN[Uod Uj jou A1se|dojoany oceld
00°061 seneds 4joo £ 0] | sUonaeiXa yim uoiaunfuos ul Aysejdojosaly LLEZQ
00°sZ2Z ueipenb Jed ‘seseds Yj00] aJ0W IO f - SUOKDENXS UM Udiidun{ucs ul Asejdojoaaly olLsza
00 e {sinpasoid Buino) sjoo. Yoo} [enpisal Jo [eacwlad [e216Ing 0sz/d
00°vZ¥y Auoq Aje1edwos - Yoo} pajoedw) Jo |eAOWSY ovzid
00°bS€ Auoq Ajleiped - yjooj pajoedull Jo [eAcwaY ogzla
00°LL2 anssi} Yos - Yjo0) pajoedull Jo [BAOWSY 0celd
00212 Y100} pajdnia o [eAoLual [ealbing 0lcia
00°celL jool ﬁ@moaxm 1o Yool Umyaam .r_o_uom._uxm ovL.a
a0’zZé 41001 snonploap - sjueullual |[BUClOD __,_O_Humh_.xm LLkZd
00°88 aBplig Juswiasey 0£69d
00°85¢2 alnjueq leiled Jejngipuely suiey L2680
007852 ainjuaQ [elped Aejixely suisy or.L5d
009z aumua( Jejngipuely 8ja|dwoy auray lelsd
00792 ainjusq Aeixe ajsjdwo) sulsy 0€.50
00'vET ainjuap |elped Sunsixa o} dsejo ppy 0995Q
00951 ainjuap [eled Bulsixa 0} Yyjoo) ppy 06950
00°8Z1 yiea | ueyo.g soejday ov9sa
00°0S1L aseg anjueq uisay Jeday 0Losd
00°3Z1 yjoo usxolg Jo Buissiiy adejday 0¢ssd
00°051 ainjueq eye|dwios) usyo.ig Jedsy 0L5sa
0029 Je|ngipuely ainjuaq [eiNed isnlpy Zebsd




00'¥S

sjun JnoH g/l (lenpiaipul) LNSA

00°05¢ $9$SE|D { J8AQ J Muly L Adeg
00°5¢ (8904) ¥sia ueoyalp 'Bui@sunod [BUCILINN 0/¥6S
00°SE {sa04) usia vepnelp ‘weiboid juslisbeuew oljagel] SO6S
00'vZ {(sHun uI g 1) lenpiaipuloayD-9y LNIN £08/6
00'82 (suun UIN S1) [emulenpialpu] INIW 70876
0009 Em;mol_n_ ugljuaasld sejeqeid 100
0062 un vkl 0 _Q:EO .3_me0 10} mc__mmczoo |eiciABlag 832 0] 80B] [5FA D]
00°sZ un Ui g|, ._m:U_>_Uc_ .3_m®no 10} m_.___mwcsoo |eloliaeyag soe{ O 8de4 Lr0O
0061 sjun JnoH z/L {(dnouo} LINSA 60L0S
80109

0002 $20IAI8G N 200l L

00°0SlL {wnyed)sod) ued jo ‘wew 'Bujuueld pue plood areo dulod ‘Boud alloy pajy L8Z0S

00°05 ue|d [eiiu] ‘Buiuueld pue uojeuIpIood SJed aAsusysidwos ‘welbold swoy |edipsiy 08208

00°0LL Bunsa| BniQ Jrey papuedx3 6t00H

00°00L Bunsa) Bniq JeH LEPOD

00t JuaLwAed-00 pleoipsiy 20PN
- {sebleys

00°s1 Buiddiys ‘uoheulwIa)e Aljigesiq Woly JuswAed spioddl [esipay “X8) $821A18S SNoaUR|@dsI 18663

1oejuo0 ‘uanib add ven

1oeU0 'ajejdwiooul [g 1T Jo Juswjeal | e22n1

%S1 MO| ‘ajjduosul |g 17 Jo JusLujeal | [Ax43)!

ajerdwoou| |91 jo Jusiujeal| Lignd

joejuoY'pajeidon |91 7 4o usLweal | 04en

sl mo| ‘pae|dwiod |g 17 Jo Jusuieal | 692N1

sl yBiy ‘pejeldwod g L] jo usuneal] 89zZN1

1oEUOD ‘polElUl 191 JO Jusweal | 2921

3Si Mo} ‘paleljiul ‘|91 Jo Jusuijess | 9ge¢n

sl ybiy ‘psjeniul 1917 4o JusLuieal | Sgen

ysu yBiy ‘pest jou ‘add 4015¢€

ysu ybiy ‘ynseu aanebau 'Qdd doige

sk yBly ‘ynsal sAsod 'Gdd 4015¢

¥su mo| ‘pes. JoU ‘Odd FZLnT

JoEUOD ‘pEal JoU '(dd egkni

(LdOQ) Adese | sajuanald parsssqo Allosag g1 zZzin

(1L0Q) Adesay ) pansesqo Apoalig g1 Lzkni

YsU Mol '}nsal aaljefiau ‘Qdd 4015€

sl mo| ‘Jnsal saiysod ‘gdd 4015€




00°ch (Z51.08 s0e|day) ANITA LM LINY GEE08
00°0S (00L0g saoeday) Uojeuliyuod m |1 NW/ALYLIVYND ‘NIFHOS 9ndd LEFOD
00°2Z TINYd NOILONNS DLV d3IH 9008
00°9t (0'4'Y) JLNDV -TaNVd SILILYdIH 2008
00'6Z TINVA NOILONNA TYNIY 69008
00°0¢ ANV aidin L8008
0025 JINVd 21€131S80 - TW1VNIHd §5008
00'6Z T3INYd 21708v1IN NIHIHJWOD - JND £5008
00°62 JANYd LATOHLDT13 15008
00bL TANYd HLT¥3H TvH3INID 05008
00722 ¥0 TYLOL TANYd DIMogav.LaN -dINg 8¥008
00% MYHA dooT1g AUVTIIdYD alL¥9e

006

JHNLONNINIA ANILNOH|

§l¥9¢

00’2 peIys aoe
0oL sdi|9 BupooT
00°0¢ (3) ssBU|IBAN BUSHIOAA BYIT
05°Z¢ {a) ssau|[opA DYUSHIOAN B
00°SE (") ssoU||BAA SISHIOAN B4
05°.¢ () ssaU|BAL BISHIOA DI
00°ov (W) SSBU|IBAA BNSNIOAA DY
00°0Z uoneanp3 yiesH (enplApy| SYP6S
05°6¢ Bujusalag HeaH AyyeaH
00°0L olseg-piy 1sii4
00°0L1 A3avrddO/piy 18| aUieipad @ Inpy
000 A3LYNINITE - gv4 + )PIIUD 3 UNPY) AIV/M HdD
00'0 QALYNIANS - gV + ddD e + (pIiyd) a3vim Hdo
00°0L a3avrddo 2lieipad
00706 A3V ddD JUelpad B JInpy
0004 a3avrddd Inpy
00°0 A3LYNIWITS - (PIUS B INPY) ATV/M HdD
0006 a3av/ ddo / Py isL inpy
009 slaleg Buiyiesig Hdo
oo'olL as.non abualleysd
009 shAay 0l19
00°s Jopuo Aq Buisa] 1e4 Apog
00's sladien Aq Bupjsa] 124 Apog

00°0L

s1adifeD 3 J0)UO jed Apog




00°St +LNYND F19NIS 'SAIDY ONINY LeLes
00°0¢ JANSAS ‘NIFLOYdOL34-VHATY 50128
00'st IdALONIH ‘NISAAHLILNY-L-¥YHd 1Y roLes
00'ZE JIVLOL ‘NISdAYLILNY-L-YHdTY £01L28
00'st INOYILSOATY 88028
00'8Z agvioav 68028
00°0F JONYH13 H1v¥3dd -TOHODTY 6/0¢8
00°ob {TONVYHL3) 0074 - TOHODTY 65028
00'¥¢ ANRIN WOONYY - NOILYY Lv3HD / NINNETYOXDIW £H0Z8
0062 NINNGTY 0t0Z8
00°05 HLOV #2028
000} (4L49) SISATYNY INTD SISOYEGIH DILSAD 0ZZL8
00'6) 1831 ADNYNSIH NN $zZ0L8
00°LL +Id0IS O/M 'OLNY 'SISATYNIMN £0018
00°9k {(9%d) 3d0OIS O/M OLNYNON SISATYNIEN 20018
0022 «JdODS/M OLNY ‘SISATYNIEN LooLg
00'ov IHOW HO 9 'STYIITIAD HIHLO ANY DITOADMML ‘SINYSSTHJIAILNY 1£€08
00°0t S-€ STVIITOAD HIAHLO ANV SM2ADIYL 'SINVYSSIHJIAILNY 9££08
00°ob 2 HO | STYIITDAD HIHLO ANY JITOADMML 'SINYSSTUAIAILNY G£E08
00°¢s (L0108 seoedad) JOHODTY - N3IHOS ONYad 0Z£08
00'08 (00108 saogidey) dI14103dS ASIMYIHLO LON NIFHOS ONyd #0£08
0005 {00108 seoe|day) AHdYHDOLVYINOYHD H¥IAVTNIHL NIIHDS 9nyad £0€08
0008 (00108 ssor|dey) IHNAID0OHd HOVYI SNHA TTONIS NITHOS ONHA Z0£08
00°05 {00108 seoe|dey) IDIAYIS 40 J1¥A H3d TANNYHDIILTNA NIIHOS OnHad LOE08
0005 (00108 seoe|day) uoneULIUCY /M | LITNW/ALYLITYND 'NIFHIS 9ONHA 00£08
00°281 9NYA AYSSY JAILYLIINYND 66208
00°8¢ ANITTAHOIHL 86108
00°Z8 SNINIMOYIVL 16108
00'st AdooT1d GNNNYAYHSNINIIONIS 56108
00'L¥ {AON3HJ/AM) INTTOSAN -INOAINIEd 88108
00°Z¢ TVLOL ‘NIOLANIHd - NILNY1Id 68108
00°6¢ ILIgEVEONIHd #8108
00°1E WNIHLI 8,108
00°8¢ WYLIDVHILIATT 12108
00°0¢ (QIOV 21L32V1Ad0HdIA) IOV DI0EdTVYA ¥aL08
00°1g NIXO9Id Z9108
00'sy ao014 - ANIHOdSOI2AD g5108
0002 EELER[ T EEDT 25108
00°Z¢ 70L3HOAL -TYLOL "INIdIZYNYIHYD 95108




00'0¢€ 219 NIAVLIA 0928
00'62 X3143d uenbiwss -NITNE0TD0AHD G658
00'LE 1831 AONYHVYITO ININILVIEO /628
00'0L WOANVYH/INOH #2 3NEN -3NINILYIHO 0.45¢8
00'52 ININILYIHD 69528
o0'vLL WNOILOVHS g "™MdO £56¢28
00'vE SANAZNIOSI MdD 25528
00'se Y101 AdD 05528
00'LE VYLOL -T10S8I11H0D £EGe8
00'LE HNOH ¥Z ANIEN - 3344 T10S1LH0D 0g5es
00'sZlL SHMNITSSOHD NIFOVT110D £25e8
00'sy INCHY ¢ auln - 314 1|10 20628
00'8S WNY3S (IYLOIWYT) INISIHLOWY rses
00°0S WNINOHHD 56¥C8
00'szlL WONIS "INYND 'AHdYHD0LOWOHHD 16¥Z8
00’62 WNH3S/a18-1043.18310HO Gaves
00'62 INIEN -3AIHOTHOD 9eves
00’62 acoig-3aiH401HD GEYe8
00°zE NIASY 140 1NY=E0 06EC8
00'vS SANINYTOHOALYD 334HL 78ee8
00°.¢ v.139 'INILOEVD 0BECB
00°ce NIDILNY JINOAHEWIONIDHVI-YID 8.¢e28
00°8E GO019-3dIXONOW NOGdvO G/eZ8
00'9€ ao01g-3aIX01a NOgdvo A4S
00'LE ANTEN NIANID YO orees
00’0€ paziuo! -WNIDTYD 0cees
00'62 WNIDTYD oLeZs
00°0F% WNY3IS ‘NINOLIOTVD 80ees
00'0v a NINVLIA S0EC8
00°05 AYSSYONNWWI'GO01g L1ND30 1vDd3d v.lec8
00'62 «L03HIA ‘NIgNAINIg 8¥ces
00’62 ZIYLOL ‘NIgndInig Irec8
00'LE T¥LOL 'sQIoY 3119 6ECe8
oo'Ly WNYE3S NITNEOTD0HDIN Z-v134d [4XA4AY
00°09 JINISYHY G/1¢28
00'LE 1531 IWAZNT | NISNTLOIONY 9128
00'9% INOIAINILSOHANY 16128
00°0¢ ASYIANY 05.e8
00'8¢ YINOWNY orLZ8




00'0¢ 3svdi 069¢8
00°62 (Inpe) av3 GGOE8
0062 IWAZNI (Ha) (A7) 3LY 1OV GL9e8
00°01 1531 ONIANIF NO¥I 0558
00'SZ NOMI orses
00°SE 3344-NITNSNI 1258
00'0¢ NITNSNI GTSE8
00°001 VIY AYSSYONNWII 0zZses
00°001 AQOEILNYNON AVSSYONNIWII 915¢8
00'st eydie p-/1 'IANOYILSIOOHd-AXOHAAH 86vE8
00°28 ANILSADOWOH 060£8
00'6Z 1831 NIgOT190WIH dILVIASODATID - 4BH OLY 9c0£8
00'98 AHdYHO0LOWOHHD NIAOTOONIH LZ20£8
00°0 gy 3LVLS OL 1132 I™MDIS 0Z0£8
00°56 T3IATT IWLIW AAYIH 8L0£8
00'¥¢ LANYND ‘NIGOT190LdYH 0LDES
00°S¢ {H7) NIdOHLOA¥YNOD - H1 2008
00'2¢ {HS3) NIdOHLOAVYNOD -HSd L00ES
00" NIFLOMd QILYDATO 58628
00'6Z 199 11628
00's¢ LINVND -3WAZNT Qd9D 65628
00'L) SI1dWVYS d3Aav-119 25628
00'LL uswioads TYNQILIAAY- L1S3L JONYHITIOL IS0DNTO Z5628
05°LE HHZ (119} 1831 JONYH3T101 IS00NT1D L5628
00'82 1831 3802N19 NYAINTNS.0 05628
00'81 AN¥YND aoo1d '3sooN19 1628
00'SE WNHAS ‘NIMLSYD L 628
00'2¢ 36| NNNFOTOVYIWINYD 68128
00°0¢ yoea 'WB 'ob| 'abl 'vBl NIMNGOTIOVINNYD ¥8.28
00'0¢ WN¥3s aiov o1o4 ov.e8
00'Z61 NILOANOHEIL W34 1£228
00'92 NILIMY3S 87228
00'LY JAILYLILNYND 'S1v4 w034 0LL28
00'vE JIYND 83034 'sAldI/sS Ly 50,28
00'LY R[SISTEE] 11928
00'st NIOOH1S3 2./928
00" L¥ 7010vy 1S3 0,928
00°Z¢ NILIIOdOHHLAYT 89978
00°.¢ SVIHA ~INOYILSOHANYIdIOHAAHIA 12928




00°0¢ INVND WNH3AS ‘SISTHOHA-0313 NIFLOHd S91v8
00'62 oy ¢z Jo WOANYH INIHN ‘NIFLOHd 9sive
00'vZ WNY3S LD T1439/1V1L0L - NiIZLOYd SSLi8
00'¢E EEMERSE #SLI8
00°0¢ IYLOL ¥Sd )
00'SE NILOY10OYd orLyg
00's¢ ANOYILSIDOHd vl ¥8
00'€E NIANGTY3dd PELYS
00'LE 3ANIYN -WNISSY10d eeLPR
00'62 WNY3S -WNISSYL10d ZELPS
00'6Z ANIEN - DINVOHONI -SNHOHJSOHd S0LP8
0062 WNHIS- DINYOHONI -SNHOHASOHd 00L¥8
00°62 ISVLVYHASOHd ANFIYATY 5/0t8
00°Z¢ 3ASV1YHdSOHd IOV ILV1ISOud 2908
00’6 Jaded suizeniN ALIQIDY AINT4 AGOA 986£8
00'Le LOVINI-GINOWHOH QIOMAH1YHYd -Hld 0.6£8
00°9¢ ANIYN YH ¥Z- 3LV IVXO SPBES
00°LE ANIEN -ALITYTIOWSO G£6E8
00'LE Qo019 -ALITYIONSO 0£6€£8
00'SZ1 LNYND 'FT1ONIS 'AIDY JINYDHO LZ6cs
00°9Z AdSY/309S/10 Al NOILYLNI rLBES
0092 NOILYNIWYXA JILANTD AR
00°5L NOILNTOSTIY HOIH A9 AI+NOILYYYd3IS 606£8
00°92 NOAay IMdiNY 21379NN 3TN 10N L06E8
00°0¢ D3AS Z NdNY D1312NN FTNDTTOW 006£8
00°9Z HOVI TIdWY 211NN 3TNDI 10N 8688
00°92 HOHAOH LD T3 13D FTNDOFTOW v68E8
00°'SE DI312NN FLY10SI ITINOITON L68E8
00°0t 03dS LON AMIINOTIHLAN £88¢8
0089 3dILd3d D1LIHNILYN IdAL-1 -dNg 088¢8
00°6¢ INVND WNHAS HO INIEN -NIGOT9D0AN ¥/8€8
00°6% INIEN UNOH #2 - IWLOL -SANIMHLIANY LAN GEBES
00°¥S AdNOYIN GZ8e8
00°'SZ WNISINOYIA GELE8
00'6Z NIZLOH4OdIT - LOFHIA 1T L2/E8
0052 NI LOHdOdIT 193H1a -1aH 8Lic8
00°GL NOILYLILINYND-S3T01LHVd NIFLOYdOdIT F0.€8
00'st NOILOVYHATH dH HLIM LNVND 8 438 D113HOHA0H 103713 102£8
00°9¢ (VINIFLOHOIN G69E8




00°81 11420 1YINEH 71068
009} Jealls plg TYNNYIN -TVIINTH344Id 09M 20058
0022 A3LVINOLNY- TYILNTHIAHIA DgM r0058
00°0¥ 1831 JWIL ONIgI31d 20058
00°Z¢ WNY3S YNO-92H £0/¥8
00°be WNHIS INVND -DDH Z0.v8
00°Z¢ 3d1Ld3d-0 1L89P8
00°0¢ ONIZ 0£9¥8
007002 L= LIA 1BG5¥8
0021 uold - /g UiUeyA LBGHR
00°0% ¥ NINVLIA 0668
00°L¢ HNOH ¥Z INIEN -VINA §85%8
00°8Z ANIYN -AIDY RN 0958
00°sZ aoo19 -aIoy kN 0658
00°Z¢ 3ANIYN "YH ¥2- N3DOYLIN Y3dn orsy8
0062 NIDOHLIN v3dN- NNd 0Z5v8
00°0LL WNYND ‘NINOdOY L P8P8
00's¥ ASHIATY €1 Z8tv8
00°'vE (e-14) A¥SSY FAHI-€1 LevrPs
00°Z¢ {£1) ANINOHAHLOAOIML €1 088
00'8Z HEHL 10 INVidn vLIo £l 6/¥¥8
00°6C SAAMYIDATONL 8.8
00°cE NIYHIJSNYH L 09t
0062 ONIAY ININVTY (1Ld98) 11V 088
00'62 ASVHIASNYHL (LODS) 18V 0Sv¥8
00°L¢ WNY3sS- I 1A oribs
00°LL SNAWWI ONILY TNNILS QIOUAHL-IS L Giy8
00°%Z INOWHOH WILS dIOHAHL -HSL1 £riPs
00°22 ANIXOHAHL 334 -¥1 6PV
00°€Z ANIXOHMAHL TVLOL %1 octp8
00°Zt SNIWVIHL -9 NINV.LIA YA gt
00°2¢ TYLOL -INOYILSO1SIL £0v¥8
00°Zs 3344 -aINOY3ALS01S3L ZovP8
00°0F NIdIWOLYIWOS S0EP8
00°6Z HNOH #Z 3NN -WNIACS 00E¥8
0062 WNH3S -WNIaes GBZre
00°0t NINIH vrera
00'6% VINSYId - 99 LIA 1028
00°¥€ 480/ANIEN/SISTHOHC-23 1A NIFLONd 998




00'Zy AQOGILNY (ISYITONNOLIMAXOTA) ASYNA 51298
00°St av 3d1Ld3d NG LID DITOAD-dDD 00298
00'LE {OSHDY TYLOL ‘INFWITLNOD Z9L98
00'SE JNIDLUNY INTFWITAINOD 09198
00°L€ ssB0 Yoea ‘JOHILNY NIdI0IaxvD 1v198
00°1¢ OVIAEVYD - SH 'NIRLOYd AAILOVIAY-D Lrlo8
00°2Z¢ Zv198 setelday - WD ‘09| 'SIIAOTILNY | NIZLOYdOIATO Z Y13d 9v198
00°0¢ NILOYd FAILOVIE-D 0vL98
0062 wH3LIL ‘O NISATOLdIHISILNY 09098
00°0¢ 19341a-SF1GOEILNY HYIT1INNILNY -¥NV 8098
00'9¢ FALLYLIINYNDINES HO FAILYLILNYND 36 514109348 NIADHITIV £0098
00'62 v3 NOILNLILSENS ‘SWIL NILSY1dOgNOEHL ze/68
00'8Z VLYY ‘AL NILSY 1dOgWOHHL -1 1d 0€/58
00'GL NOILISIHNI NILSY1dOgWOXHL 60,58
00’ YINSY1d JNIL NISINOMHL 0/958
00'001 ‘uoljoey Xa-NOILONAIY 0g4-1S31 7132 ITHIIS 09968
00'62Z +J3LVYWOLNYNON '31vH a3s 15958
00'pS 431N ‘WONTA HIdIA 113SSNY £1958
00'82 JNIL NISIWOHHLOYA ¥NI / 1d 01958
00'0¢ NIOONHFI 78ES8
00°S¥ LNYND ‘NOILYAYHD3A Niddld 6/£58
00°sS JONVLSISTH (dOV) O NIFLOYd A3 LVYAILOY L0€58
00°19 3344 S NI3LOHd 90€£58
00°19 IYLOL 'S NIFLOHd 50€68
00°bS ALIALLDY O NI3LOYd £0£68
00'¢9 NIOILNY 2 NIFLONd Z0£ss
00'Eh 1531 NIODILNV Il NISWOHHLILNY LoESs
00°1LS L1S3L Il NISWOHHLILNY 00558
00°56 ALIAILOY XI HO12vd 05258
00'56 ALIAILOY IIA HO LDV ovzss
00°S6 ALIAILDY A HOLDVYd 02258
00°0¢ NOILYLIHdHIINI ¥v3AWS ao019 09058
00'6Z Q3LYWOLNY INNOD 13131v1d 61058
00'62 A3alvwoLny ( JLADOMNIT) 40019 - INNOI-089AA 8068
00'62Z a3LYWOLNY LNNOD ILADOTINDILIY 5068
00°1E J3LVYINOLNY LINNOD D8y 1058
00'vZ (05008 40 ININOJWOD) FLITHINOD 28D 12058
00°92 2EM 4410 OLNYIAM 09D 62058
00°8L NIFOT1DOWIH 81058




00°Z¢ ONINITHDS ‘Z-AlH/L-AIH £0/98
00°€E L-AIH 1098
00°vP Z 3dAL X31dWIS S3dH3aH 96998
00'L¥ 99| | AdAL XIT1dWIS S3dH3H 56998
00°6¢ WOIZ % L AdAL-183L XI1dWIS S3JHTH #6998
00°0L AHOLYIWHIANOD 9AM ATH/ATLH 68998
00°6¢ LNVND 991 - IMO1Ad ¥310vd021M3H 11998
00'0¢ (WYOA)AISdYD TVHIA-AQOGIINY HYva-NI31Sd3 $9998
00°0¢ OV "YITONN YNEI-AQO4IINY HHva-NIZLSd3 79998
60°0¢ NIDILNY ATV YI-AA0gILNY HHva-NIZLSd3 £9998
00°¢cs JADI 'AQOIILNY AIND G998
00°LE 991 -AJO4ILNY AND p7908
00°0F AQOEIINY WOI YIAANYTHD Ze998
00°sP AQOCILNY WOI 3SVY3SIA IWAT 81998
00°8S M AHOLYIWHIANOD-AGOQILNY 3SVASIA JWAT 21998
00°05 HOLYHOS L¥D AJOFILNY Y113NO LYV L1998
00°0¢ INYND "AD010H3S A00T1d Y3 LIL-Hdd £6598
0082 SALLYLIYND ‘ADO10YAS a00 14 -ddy 26598
0012 1831 TYWHIAYYLINI 91 08598
00'69 1531 d109 NOH34Y3IINI-aL 08+98
00°0¢ +LNYND WO L0V AIOLYWNIHY- v LE798
0002 IVHIA ‘1SIL NOILYZITYHLNAN - Y3 111 ST gvy Z8£98
00°LE AQO4ILNY TYWOSOHIIW 9.£98
00°c LOILYH/INNCD 31N10SaY ‘8D / +3D 09€98
00°'S¢ INNOD TVLOL'ST130 L 65£98
00°9¢ AQOSILNY HO12Vd JISNIYLNI 0Eo8
00702 ¥ NIGIHNI 9c£98
00'LS ASO/ANIEN/SISHOH-3 XIINNWAI GELOR
0012 JANYIS 'SISTIOH-3 XIJONNWINI peeoR
00°¢ce JAILYLITYND-SIIGOAILNY IHJOHILIH -ONOW 80£98
00'ee "HOWNL AYSSYONNI -SZ1 ¥ #0£98
00°SE "HOWNL AYSSYONNIWIN -6-61 VO 10£98
00°9¢ “HOWNL AYSSYONNNINI- 6242 VO 00£98
00°8¢ "HOWNL AYSSYONNWAI v 00£98
00°S¢ +HILIL 'AQOEILNY INJOSIJOoNTA 95z98
00°5¢ NITHOS 'AQOFILNY INTDSIJON 1 G5Z98
00'PE FI9VLOVHLIXI-AQOIINY NIDILNY ¥YZTONN GezZos
00'5P LANVHLS 319NIS "AGOIILNY ¥NGJ 9zzo8
00°Z¢ ANVYHLS 319N0a HO JALLYN -AQO9ILNY ¥NJ §Z2798




00°0¢ 0} Ul ‘BLWOIYCH -NIVLS XTT1dW0D HYINS 60248
00611 NIVLS WIDIdS HYINS L0z.8
00°81 HYINWS -NIVLS WYHD S0Z./8
00°6¢ WOIN ' 3G0HDIN - 3181L4308NS 981/8
00°0¢ UOIJB/USIU0-SHYINS ST LISYHYd ANV YAQ 11418
00'sl WYX WHOMNId FAAWA:]
00'L1 {(s011-s1L) AOdOHHLYY WYXT D1dOISOUOVYIN 891/8
0052 AIo¥ J1312N3N A9 NOILYDIHILNICQ! 34NLTIND 6rL/8
0022 IHNLIND VI¥3LOVYd ANIEN 880/8
00'8L 1INNOD ANOTOD/3HNLIND ANIMN 980/8
0009 ATNO N33H0S 3HNLIND 1L80.8
0052 NOILYDIHILNIAI WSINYOHO 219043V IHNLIND 11018
0088 000719 Ld30X3 'vid3L0vd 2190H3I¥YNY J4N1LIND G/0/8
00'sZ HAHLO 'YI¥31ovE ‘FHNLIND 120/8
00°sZ al IAILAINNSTHd HLIAM HIHLO 'VIM3LOYE ‘TUNLIND 0.0/8
000 ge7 8leis o1 IUNLING (83934) 10018 G¥0./8
00°8¢ .{a) HY 'ONIdAL Qo074 L0698
00'0¢ .08V 'ONIdAL Ac0T14 00698
00°9¢ LLOTHIA "1S31L SAN00D 08898
006'ZY 29y -NOILYDIAILNIAI AQOSFILNY 0/898
00°0¢ OgH -NITHDS AJOdILNY 05898
00°S51 JNHIANOD '1831 9v O d3H #0898
00°L¢ 1831 av 9 SILILYd3aH £0898
00°¥¢ AQOSILNY NITNEOT1H0HAHL 00898
00'vi L SON AQO9ILNY SNHIA 06/98
00"t H3LIL AQOFILNY ¥ILSOZ-VTTIDVA 18798
00°29 1831 WHIANOD SITIHAAS Yd-dl 08298
00°¢ AQOEILNY 99 HANOS YNSY1dOXOL 11798
00°¢S 99| HALIL AJO4IINY Y103dnd 69/98
00°0¢ 99| HALIL AGOFILNY Y113dny 29/98
00°8t H3IATS AIL10dS NLA AMDO0H-9Y VISLLINDIA 16798
00°99 WOI-99I 61E-ACOIILNY SNHIAOANYI 1298
00'ZE ACJOSILNY 991 - ¥3LIL SdWNIA 6£/98
00°LE JASDE AQOLILNY ¥ d3H 60/98
00°LE V101 'AQO™ILNY ¥ d3H 80.98
00°€E AJOSILNY 39 d3H 10498
00'6Z AMIVLITVND -AQOFIINY 3DV4HNS 9 d3H 90.98
00°LE JASI 'AOLILNY 3H0D 9 d3H 60/98
00'Z¢ LTYLOL ‘AQOLILNY 3HO0D 8 d43H #0.98




00'51 NOILDT1I00 ALINYILYd D02 / 884 Bulpuey 00066
00°51 334 NOLLDIT109 9NYA D09 /e84 BulpueH 00066
00°0Z 1831 NY34 ¥1L0OD
00°81L (T9vOIaIW) € X SLINDD0NIH 82£09
0S°2L Jaurejuoo Yoes-g311ddNs ANY STVIHILYIN 0.066
00°SlL 334 ONITANYH 00066
00°0¢ DNY-NOILDT1IA WIS YNV NIW3S L 2E68
00'€E 100LS - D9M 55068
00°0L1 nun Jad (Adoosodojo)) Lx uels g OHI Zve8s
00°St 'AD0TOHLYL T¥OIDHNS = 111 TIAT #0£88
00°0¢ NOILYNIWYX3 DId0DSOHDIN ONY 55089 ‘ADOTOHLYd TY2IDUNS - Il T3ATT Z0EsR
00'0Z alesipay - 334 NOILO3 110D dvd L6000
0002 334 NOILOF 110D dvd 06 G/188
00°22 d3dd NIHL TYNIOVA HO TWIIAETD ‘AD0TOHLYdOLAD Zrles
0002 TYNIDVA 4O T¥IIAETD 'ADOTOHLYAOLAD L7188
00822 . "UYNO ‘IdALONTD D SILILYd4IH Z06./8
00°8Y DILdO/M AVSSY V¥ d3HLS 088/8
00°0¢ {(30IM L IA0D HILNT € ANV ¥V HLOE HO4 HIIHIAOW 65) N1d didvd v08./8
00°0.9 wMIZ 86..8
00'PS 161261 MSI4-HOIH AdH/dVd ¥29./8
00'08 091205 WSI4-HOIH AdH/dVd ¥29./8
00°5E LOEL0G# MSIH-HOIH AdH/dVd ¥29.8
00°0¥ (1LZ9./g seoejday) ,390¥d dINY "YNA ‘AdH £29/8
00°0¢ g04d dWY 'YNG 'TvIOHEHONQD'N 165/8
00'SE .d04d ¥IQ 'YNd 'IYIOHIHNONCO'N 066.8
00'skL {N1) IUNSILNYND “¥NY 'D SILILYdIH 2z5.8
00511 TYND - I808d dWV "YNY 'D SILILYd3IH 125.8
00°292 H$2d - LNVND "¥NQA ‘9 SILILYd3H L1618
0002 en Jo qems dionae 'YNA "HOVYHL VIAAWYTHO L67/8
00°0 geT 9¥els 01 'YNA 'HOVHL VIGAWYTHOD L67/8
00°€E 3904 d YNA A9 HOVHL VIAANY THD 0617.8
00°8¢ W13 'OV SNHIAYLOY YA dhs
00°0 av1 3LVLS - VI3 'OV L-AlH 06£.8
00°Z¢ Y13 'OV 39 SILILYd3aH 0G€.8
00'62Z V13 'OV 3OV4HNS g SILLYdaH oveL8
00'€9 W13 ‘NIDLINY 10018 THOTAd ¥3ALOVvE0DI13H 8€€/8
00°0V VI3 ‘g pUE Y UIXo} ajiaiyip WNIAIYLSOT0 ¥2€48
00°0p (I¥ND) - NIXOL 8 312144100 0£Z/8
00'Sl MNIANITYS ' INNOW LIM 01248




00°6L

1A 191B A D1BALL] BulISIXT

00°6L

00°0

1SR 21BN D1BALd MBN

ASojoiqoton gl pue Ansiway) sluediou] |dued ||ngd

h_mnm‘m‘:m?

00°SLT (Hw.ad ul se8ueyd ou) uoilelidx3 31042 }WI4 O |eMBUBY
000 (Wiad MAMAd B UM uonoun(uod uj auop §| 381e4D OU) ||3M B JO JUSLIUCpUB]Y
00°S¢T 1USIA 81§ Uinlay
00°SZ1 USIA DAILELNSUOD

00°'SLE

a3} pl mv_._m__m %0€

NWIBd (MMAd) 13M J91EAR BUDULIQ 31BALd

33} plepuels jo ﬁx_om.m__ _m_.& An_om: HwJiad co_ua.o ._mmc_mc.m_***

00°005

|e3 Jad zt UL Jieday [eloJaWwila)
00'0 Huwiad 1leday |enuspissy
00°STT 934 JSIA uInjsy
00°'seT 21N1oNJ35 03 sUolNppY
00°SZT USIA 21IS 13UU0DIBY SWOH 3|IqOA
00°SZT HSIA BAlRYNSUOD
00°5Z¢ juel 21L20|3Y
00°05¢ AY/IV/dl - Aep Jad suojjen 0zZT-0- {Wwooupag Jad} WaisAs 01 UoIUppY
00'05¢ Aep Jad suo|jes pZT-0 AjUQ HWJad AY
|ed Jad 9°T sawoy
3JOW JO 7 YUAM SLWIR)ISAS 1§ SWO0JPaQ g JBA0 |elluapisal o] sal|dde os[e - J/dl |ela1awLlo)

|e8 sad o' $aWOLY BJ0W JO 7 YUM SLWDISAS
9 SLUO0JPaY 9 JIAO [B3UaPISaL 01 saljdde os[e {J¥) 10Nn11SU0T 0} UDIIRZOYINY [BIOIBWIWIOD

|e3 sad §9°'T S3LUCY 3JOW JO 7 UMM SWDISAS
1 SWooIpaq 9 JBAO |eljuapIsal 0} sal|dde os|e - (d]) HWIad JusawaAcId W] [elaJaWWO)

00°000°T swoolpag §-y/Aep Jad suo||es 009-08¥ Jv/dl
00'000°T swo0Jpaq S-p/Aep Jad suojles 009-08% (AlUQ DV) IPnasuc) o3 uscijezuoyiny
007000'T swoolpag G-F/5uo||eD 009-08F (AIUQ dI) Hwad Juswaroldu)
00°005 swooupag g-z/Aep Jad suo||en 09€-0FZ DV/dl
00°009 swoolpag g-z/Aep Jad sue|eD 09£-0rZ (AIUC D) 12nA1sUo) 01 uclieZuoyiny
swooJpag £-z/Aep Jad suo||es 09€-0tE (AlUO dI} Hudad 1uaWaA0IdLW|




0001

{Aep 1ad) a4 sunuejenp

00's

Jauied 1ad

00°05 (UoiaJasIp 5,4301440 1B} Z uondQ - uohiew)
00'sZ (uonaiosip $,492110 1) T uondQ - uoneud
1T 294 WIeRaY
00°sE (17 10 Bog) suesalaA Joj 334 uondopy
00'st (131318Ys BulIa3ua 03 Jold paisinsu Jo paAeds s|ewuy) [e1ads - uondopy
00°'99 Soq - uocndopy
00°99 1) - uondopy

00°stT

0005

311gnd |eisusd soy Suidd|yroioiy

eds 0 |00d |PUORIPPY

00°00T {Allenuue) aa4 uoneayddy (ood [l
00'00¢C MBIASY UB|d |00d
00°008 {Al|lenuue) 35134y [eUONIPPY YoE] - 1WISd J0|JEd oole]

00°00L

(Ajlenuue) JoleiadQ/IaumMQ - MBIASY UB(d JolJEd OOllR)

00°'051T 3UNnsIXg - M3IASY Ue|d 10]led 0olie]
00°00¢ MAaN - MD]ADY Ue|d Jojied 0ONE|
juaAa Jad po'sL W4 JaLysiqeisy pood Asesodia]
00001 MIIASY Ueld puElS pood
00°'002 51E3SGZ</3UNSIXT - MBIASY UB|d UBWIYSI|QeIST B3]AISS POOS
00°00¢ $1L3S GZ</MIN - MBIASY UB|d JUBWIYSI|qeIS] 8dIAI3S pooY
00°0ST S1e3S $7>/3UNSIXT - MIIABY UE|d JUSWYSI[GEIST 2DIAIDS POOS
00°002 S1B3S HZ>/MBN - MBIASY Ue|d JUBWYS]|qe)S] 3diAlas pood
00°671 "15]|epads
H3 pala1sigay e AQ pawloylad ag 1SN UoNIa||0d a|dwes) sjediway) JuediQ a|llejop
00’6l synpoad wna|oJiad
00'6L ueass (DOS) s|eaiway) Auesio 21ayIuAsg
00'6L saleWEeqie)
0064 S3PIIGISH PIoY PalRULIOIYD
00'6L siesoydA|D
sapdiqeaH
00'64 dd1 pue 4240 ‘aa3
00°'6. sapiaIIsad snioydsoyd-ua8oaiN
00'6L 521211534 pajeullojyd

sapIoNIsad

Ansiwaydiuesio




00°0T (uonesijiou Jaye Aep Jad) 234 Buipiecg

Josuods Aq 1as 234 J1osuods Ad 13s 23} - JuaA3 palosuods - uoidopy
00°0Z _ goq - uonendodiaag - uondopy
0001 187 - wonlendediaag - uondopy
00°0€ 80Q - (1uaAa pasoidde AepijoH “Jied ‘[BAIIS34) JUBAT |e1nads - uonidopy
0002 183 - (1uaAa panrosdde AeptjoH ‘g4 ‘[eAIS3]) JUBAT jerdads - uoiidopy
00°'99 234 losuods




Policy and Procedure
MACON COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH CENTER

Title: Refunds -

Policy 2094 Revision: 4 Page1of3

Section/ Envirohmental Health Policy and Procedures Original This ’

Program/ Effective 4{7/98 Revision 1110118
Program Area: | Administration Date: Effective:

:%f;:: Environmental Health Supervisor and Program $pecialists, Environmental Health Speclalists and Administrative agent

. 1 - Kyle Jenni&és, REHS , Fnwfonmental
Appr;;::? By: J?eé Brugkner, MSHS |, Health Director eaith Sunelror

| \\\tlt!« lk\\!\le

Date of Revision Summary of Changes ] Saction
9/24/08 Elaboration of content & put into new template All
I-\;-?i:ii:f?yn 084312 Changed noii:."):i\,éj S:Qngz;i;ritt:ig'lngﬂo.tt 10 299.4 )SMOI
10/01115 Removed “contractor” from definition of Agent 3.0
11/01/16 Updated References 7.0
1.0 Purpose

To establish a policy or procedure for issuance of refunds

2.0 Policy - '

In the normal course of providing environmental health services it will be necessary to issue refunds
for fees charged by the Environmental Health Section. The purpose of this policy and
accompanying procedures is to maintain consistency and faimess in deciding when and under what
circumstances refunds are to be issued. In order to facilitate a consistent refund policy, all
Environmental Health agent shall refer to and apply the plan and procedures outlined in this policy
when discussing the Section refund policy with the general public or when submitting request for a
refund disbursement. ' '

3.0 Definitions -
3.1 Agent; employee, board member, consultant, vendor, volunteer or others acting on behalf of
the MCPH who are subject to this Policy/Plan.
3.2 Consumer: is any individual who uses services provided by the agency whether clinical or
non-clinical in nature.

4.0 Applicable Law, Rules and References
North Carolina G.S. 130A-39(g)

5.0 Responsibilities ,
The Environmental Heaith Supervisor is responsible for signing and approving all refunds of the
Section. Is shall be the responsibility of the program supervisor to make recommendations to the




_ Policy and Procedure
MACON COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH CENTER

Title: Refunds

Policy 209.4

Revision #: 4 - Page 2 of 3

Health Director regarding refunds on specmc services. The Environmental Health Supervisor may
approve exceptlons to the policy where unusual or extenuating circumstances exists. -

6.0 Procedure
6.1. GENERAL PROCEDURES:.

6.1.1

6.1.2

This policy andfor procedure will remain in effect until revision is needed and users
are informed of the revision. ‘

General Information: Fees are generally to be considered non-refundable when a
particular service has been rendered by the agency. Service is considered
rendered when an appointment has been made; an Environmental Health
Specialist (EMS) has made the initial site visit; or has otherwise substantially
delivered the requested service. Fees cannot be refunded because the consumer
no longer wishes to pursue the original project. Fees may be transferred to other
services provided the original service has not been rendered. Transfers of fees
must be accomplished within 80 days of the cancellation request for the original
service. Applications not acted upon within 6C days will be considered inactive
until notified by the consumer. Inactive applications may be refunded upon
request within one year of the initial application date. Only the Section Supervisor
upon recommendation of the Program Specuahst may approve exceptlons to this
policy.

6.2 SPECIFIC PROCEDURES:

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

Improvement Permits - May be refunded if the service has not been rendered.
Refunds for this service are to be the full amount of the original fee. Refunds are
not to be issued where the EHS determines that the property cannot be used for
the intended project, or if the consumer has failed to meet site requirements
necessary for site evaluation prior to the expiration date. Determination of the
suntablllty or unsuitability of a site for particular project is considered completion of
the service regardless of the outcorne or the amount of time spent making the
determination.

Authorization to Construct - May be refunded if the service has not been
rendered. Refunds for this service are to be the full amount of the original fee.
Refunds are not to be issued where the EHS determines that the property cannot
be used for the intended project, or if the consumer has failed to meet site
requirements necessary for site evaluation prior to the expiration date.
Determination of the suitability or unsuitability of a site for particular project is
considered completion of the service regardless of the outcome or the amount of
time spent making the determination.

Repair Permit — May be transferred and apphed toward additional Permit
requirement.




Policy and Procedure :
MACON COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH CENTER

Title: Refunds

Policy 285.4

Revision #: 4 Page 3of 3

6.2.4 Authorization to Construct/Existing System Expansion or Change — May be
refunded if the service has not been rendered. Refunds for this service
are to be the full amount of the original fee. No refund is authorized
where denial of request has been issued.

6.2.5 Existing System Inspection- May be refunded if the original service has not been
rendered. May be transferred and applied toward additional Permit
requirement. Refunds or transfers are to be the full amount of the
original fee.

6.2.6 Annual Mobile Home Park |nspect|on- May be refunded only if the service has
not been rendered.

6.2.7 Well ConétructionIRepair - May be refunded only if the service has not been
rendered.

6.2.8 Other Fees- Refunds for other fees charged by the Environmental Health Section
will be in accordance with the policy as indicated in "General
Information”.

7.0 Reference Plans and Policies
7.1 MCPH Fee Plan — Approved by the Board of Health
7.2 101.1 Collection of Funds
7.3 101.4 Accounting and Financial Management




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 10,2018

DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Governing Board/Board of Education
SUBJECT MATTER: South Macon Elementary School expansion
COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

(1) Attached please find the Interlocal Agreement prepared by the County
Attorney and John Henning, Jr., the attorney for the Macon County
Board of Education.

(2) Also attached is the Memorandum of Lease Extension and Subordination
Agreement prepared by both parties.

(3)The board is also being asked to schedule a public hearing on the
proposed financing for the school expansion project at its June 12, 2018
regular meeting.

The Finance Director and County Attorney can provide additional details at

the meeting.

Attachments 2 Yes

Agenda Item 11B (1, 2 and 3)




STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF MACON INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT
THIS AGREEMENT, made this _ day of , 2018, by and between

the COUNTY OF MACON, a body politic and corporate of the State of North Carolina

(hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "County") and the MACON COUNTY BOARD OF

EDUCATION, a school administrative unit of North Carolina (hereinafter sometimes referred to

as the "Board of Education” or "Board," and collectively the "Parties"):

WITNESSETH.

WHEREAS, G.S §160A-460 et. seq. authorizes interlocal cooperation between units of
local government in the joint exercise of powers as provided therein:

WHEREAS, pursuant to G.S. §160A-20, as amended, the County may finance the
acquisition of property and the construction of fixtures or improvements on real property by
contracts that create in the fixtures or improvements, or in all or some portion of the property
upon which the fixtures or improvements are located, or in both, a security interest to secure
repayment of the moneys advanced or available for construction;

WHEREAS, the County acquired that certain real property located at 855 Addington
Bridge Road, Franklin, as described in that Deed dated December 30, 1999, from Nelson W.
Bates and wife, Maxine Bates to Macon County, recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds
for Macon County, North Carolina in Deed Book S-23 at page 1909-1910, and upon which the
Parties cooperated to construct the South Macon Elementary School building (the “School

Property™);

WHEREAS, it is now the intent of the Parties that the existing school facilities located on
the School Property will be expanded, renovated, repaired, and improved (hereinafier the
"School Project,");

WHEREAS, the County will attempt to arrange to finance the School Project pursuant to
an Installment Financing Contract, (the "Installment Financing Contract"), between the County
and Lenders of its choosing (the "Lenders") and upon terms that it deems to be satisfactory to
itself within its sole discretion, pursuant to which the Lenders will advance to the County
amounts sufficient to pay the costs of construction of the School Project and other components of
the Project (as defined in the Installment Financing Agreements), and the County will agree to
repay the advance, with interest, in Installments (the "Installment Payments");

WHEREAS, the County’s obligations under the Installment Financing Agreements,
including the making of the Installment Payments thereunder, will be secured by Deeds of Trust
granting a lien on the School Property and including all buildings, improvements and fixtures
located thereon, all to be more fully described in a Deed of Trust and other evidences of
indebtedness;

WHEREAS, G.S. §160A-274 authorizes units of local government to sell, lease,

exchange, or jointly use governmental real property upon such terms and conditions as such units
deem wise;

{€5: 00051983.00CX } 1




WHEREAS, the County is entitled to a refund from the State of North Carolina pursuant
to G.S. §105-164.14 and other applicable laws for sales taxes paid to the State for tangible
personal property directly purchased by the County and indirectly incurred for building
materials, supplies, fixtures, and equipment that become a part of a building or structure owned
by the County that is being erected, altered or repaired for use by the County on behalf of the
Board of Education;

WHEREAS, the County holds fee simple title to the School Property; and

WHEREAS, the County desires for the Board of Education to oversee the School Project
and the Board of Education is willing to undertake such obligation as described in this

Agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

L. The Board of Education agrees:

A.

To recommend for execution by the County contracts for the construction and
contract administration of proposed renovations, repairs and improvements to the
school building located on the School Property as set forth hereinabove, and to
recommend the acquisition of necessary personal property associated with and to
be used in connection with the proposed school construction or improvements as
required by law. The Board of Education shall act as the authorized
representative of the County in connection with such contracts pursuant to and
within the limits of the Agreement and shall assign any contracts to the County, as
necessary.

To retain sole responsibility for decisions relating to the design of school
renovations, including school facilities or additions to school facilities within the
scope of this Agreement.

To supervise the contracts for the design and for the construction of proposed
expansion, renovations, repairs, and improvements to the school building on the
School Property (hereinafter "Supervisory Powers").

To approve for the County the architectural design, plans and specifications (the
“Plans™) that County, in consultation with the Board of Education, has caused to
be prepared and is preparing for the School Project by Novus Architects, Inc The
Board reviewed and approved the Plans at its regular meeting on April 23, 2018..

To use its best efforts to cause the construction and equipping of the School
Project in accordance with the Plans therefore to be completed in an expeditious
manner and in accordance with the Installment Financing Agreement and related
financing documents and any applicable requirements of governmental authorities
and law.

{CS: 00051983.D0CX } 2




I1.

IIL.

The County agrees:

A,

To hold the School Property, upon the terms and conditions set forth herein until
ownership is transferred to the Board of Education upon the terms and conditions
set forth herein.

To appoint the Board of Education as its representative for the purpose of
proposing and supervising the contracts for the design and construction of
proposed renovations, repairs and improvements to the school building
(hereinafter "Supervisory Power") so as to assure that the same are constructed in
accordance with the Plans for the School Project.

To enter into contracts for the erection, construction, and development of school
renovations to the school building consistent with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, and to assume responsibility for approving change orders to the
Plans..

To assume responsibility for any litigation arising from the School Project.

To appoint the County Manager as its representative for the purpose of approving
change orders deemed necessary and proper under the construction contracts for
the School Project which are within the scope of the Project, within the budgeted
contract amount, and not in excess of $5,000. For purposes of this Paragraph,
change orders shall not be divided for purposes of avoiding the application of this
dollar threshold. Change Orders in excess of $5,000 shall be approved by the
Board of County Commissioners.

To submit refund claims to the State of North Carolina under N.C. Gen. Stat. 105-
164.14 and other applicable laws for sales taxes paid to the State by the County
for the construction of the proposed expansion, renovations, repairs, and
improvements to the school building under the School Project, and the acquisition
of necessary personal property associated with and to be used in connection with
the proposed school improvements, as considered and approved by the County
under Paragraph LA of this Agreement.

To reserve the sales tax refunds received for school construction and equipment
purchases.

To convey to the Board of Education the School Property promptly following
satisfaction of debt service by the County.

Both Parties agree:

{CS: 00051983.00CX } 3




A. This Agreement shall be limited to school renovation projects financed by
installment purchase contracts pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. Sec. 160A-20, as
referenced hereinabove.

B. The County Manager and the Superintendent of Schools are authorized to
administer this Agreement on behalf of the County and the Board of Education,
respectively, as necessary.

C. All contracts for the proposed expansion, renovations, repairs, and improvements
to the school building entered into pursuant to this Agreement shall be executed
by and between the County and the persons or entities providing goods or services
therefore. Further, each Party agrees that it shall comply with the requirements of
G.S. Chapter 64, Article 2 (the “E-Verify Requirements™).- Each contract entered
into for the purposes expressed in this Agreement will require the contractor to
comply with the E-Verify Requirements, and further that such contractor shall
require any subcontractors to likewise comply with the same.

D. The County is authorized to and shall make payments for the proposed expansion,
renovations, repairs, and improvements to the school building entered into
pursuant to this Agreement. In addition to the provisions of Paragraph II of this
Agreement, any change orders requested in excess of the budgeted amount
encumbered for each project shall be considered for approval by the Board of
County Commissioners, or otherwise considered for approval in the manner in
which the County usually conducts business..

E. All personal property placed or moved into the School Property subject hereto
shall be at the risk of the Board of Education, and the County shall not be liable to
the Board for any damages to said personal property. In no case shall either party
seek indemnification from the other with respect to any claim that arises from its
own negligence,

F. Personnel of the County and the Board are to execute the undertaking of this
Agreement within funds made available by the County and the Board of
Education for this purpose.

G. In consideration of the grant of Supervisory Power by the County to the Board of
Education pursuant to Paragraph II of this Agreement, the County and the Board
of Education hereby agree as follows in connection with the renovation and
equipping of the School Project by the Board of Education:

1. The Parties to this agreement shall comply with the provisions of law,
including all applicable laws relating to the procurement of construction
and equipment through competitive bidding. The County shall obtain all
orders, permits or similar governmental approvals necessary for the
expansion, renovation, and operation of the School Project. The County
shall cause the expansion, renovation, and equipping of the School Project

{€S: 00051983.00CK } 4




{CS: 00051983.DOCX }

to proceed expeditiously in accordance with the plans and specifications
therefor, all applicable ordinances and statutes, and in accordance with the
requirements of all regularly constituted authorities having jurisdiction
OVer same.

The County shall cause the School Project to be located entirely on real
property subject to the lien of the applicable Deed of Trust and will ensure
that (a) neither School Project shall encroach upon nor overhang any
easement nor right of way, and (b) School Project, when erected will be
wholly within the building restriction lines, however established, and will
not violate applicable use or other restrictions contained in prior
conveyances or applicable protective covenants or restrictions.

The County, the Lender and their respective representatives and agents
shall have the right to enter upon and inspect the School Property from
time to time, during and after construction, and the Board of Education
agrees to cause any contractor or subcontractor to cooperate with the
County, the Lender and their respective representatives and agents during
such inspections.

The Board of Education shall use its best efforts to cause the construction
and equipping of the School Project to be completed within the respective
School Project schedules. In the event that the amount of funds advanced
under the Instaliment Financing Agreement, plus other funds made
available by the County, if any, are not sufficient to complete the School
Project, the Parties agree to revise the plans and specifications for the
School Project to the end that an alternative project having a cost not in
excess of the funds advanced under the Installment Financing Agreement
will be completed.

The County hereby recognizes that the Board of Education shall have the
right to make any changes in the description of the School Project or of
any component or components thereof subject to the prior written consent
of the County and the Lender as allowed under the Installment Financing
Agreement; provided, however, that any such change shall not alter the
purpose of the School Project or their budgeted contract amounts.

The Board of Education hereby agrees that it will, upon the request of the
County Manager, provide to the County Manager or his designee timely
notice of all conferences with representatives of the architects, contractors
and venders with respect to the expansion, renovation, and equipping of
the School Project and that the County Manager or his designee shall have
the right to attend all such conferences.

The Parties agree that the total project budget cost for the School Project is
not to exceed $ 2,923,674.00.In the event that financing for such amounts




is not available to be borrowed or, in the sole opinion of the County, not
offered upon terms that are advantageous and/or desirable, then the School
Project may be abandoned without legal consequence to the County. In
the event that the School Project is abandoned, the County shall convey
the School Property to the Board of Education.

H. The Board of Education, for one dollar ($1.00) and other good and valuable
consideration in hand received does hereby accept the foregoing appointment of
Supervisory Power over the construction and equipping of the School Project as
described in this Agreement and does hereby accept the foregoing delegation of
duties as described in this Agreement.

L The Board of Education in carrying out its duties under this Agreement is acting
as an independent contractor and is not an agent of the County in connection with
this Agreement or in connection with any other agreement between the Board of
Education and the County, express or implied.

J. The County makes no express or implied warranty or representation of any kind
whatsoever with respect to the School Project or any component part thereof to
the Board of Education or any other circumstance whatsoever with respect
thereto, including, but not limited to, any warranty or representation with respect
to the merchantability or the fitness or suitability thereof for any purpose, the
design or condition thereof; the safety, workmanship, quality or capacity thereof;
compliance thereof with the requirements of any law, rule, specification or
agreement pertaining thereto; any latent defect; the ability thereof to perform any
function; that the funds advanced by the Lender pursuant to the Instaliment
Financing Contract will be sufficient (together with other available funds of the
County and the Board of Education) to pay the costs of the School Project; or any
other characteristic of the School Project; it being agreed that all risks relating to
the School Project, the completion thereof or the transactions contemplated
hereby or by the Installment Financing Contract are to be borne by the Board of
Education, and the benefits of any and all implied warranties and representations
of the County are hereby waived by the Board of Education.

K. This Agreement shall terminate when the County has conveyed fee simple title to
the School Property to the Board of Education.

L. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the provisions of
Paragraph IIL.J. shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

M. The County and the Board of Education may, from time to time, with the written
consent of the Lender, execute and deliver such amendments to this Agreement
and such further instruments as may be required or desired for carrying out the
expressed intention of this Agreement.

{CS: 00051983.D0CX } 6




N. The County and the Board of Education shall enter into an amended lease for the
School Property whereby the County shall lease unto the Board of Education the
school site referenced hereinabove; the Term of the lease shall be for the period of
installment payments on the Installment Financing Agreements entered into by

the County pursuant to this Agreement. The rental for each year of each Lease
shall be One Dollar ($1.00).

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the County and the Board of Education have caused this
Agreement to be executed in duplicate originals all as of the date and year first above written.

COUNTY OF MACON

By:

Jim Tate, Chairman

ATTEST:

Pre-Audit Statement

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget
and Fiscal Control Act.

Lori Hall, County Finance Officer

{Cs: 00051983.D0CX } 7




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

By:

Jim Breedlove, Chairman

ATTEST:

Pre-Audit Statement

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget
and Fiscal Control Act.

Angie Cook, County Finance Officer

{CS: 00051983.DOCX } 8




STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

Prepared By:

John F. Henning, Jr.

A Licensed NC Attorney
Campbell Shatley, PLLC

674 Merrimon Avenue, Suite 210
Asheville, NC 28804

MEMORANDUM OF LLEASE
EXTENSION AND SUBORDINATION
AGREEMENT

Return to:

Chester Jones

122 West Boulevard
Franklin, NC 28734

THIS MEMORADUM OF LEASE and extension and subordination agreement (the

“Agreement”) is made and entered as of the day of May, 2018, by the COUNTY OF MACON,

(the “County”) Lessor; and the MACON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION, (the “Board”,

collectively the “Parties™), Lessee.

WHEREAS, in connection with the Parties’ joint efforts to construct and operate school

facilities, the County leased to the Board those school properties known as Cartoogechaye

Elementary School and South Macon Elementary School, by that lease dated as of March 15, 2004,

{CS: 000519%0.DOC }




recorded in Deed Book Z-27, pages 1344-1360 in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Macon
County (the “Lease™);
WHEREAS the Parties have determined to expand, renovate, repair, and improve the South
Macon Elementary School property (respectively, the “Project” and the “Property”); and
WHEREAS the County will use the Property to secure financing for the Project, and the
Parties therefore desire to restate their agreement and their respective rights and responsibilities

thereto.
WITNESSETH: that the Parties, for a valuable consideration each to the other in hand
paid, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, contract and agree as follows:

1) The County shall continue to lease the Property to the Board, and the Board
shall continue to lease the Property from the County, upon the terms set forth
in the Lease, to have and to hold for the Lease Term.

2) For any purposes related to terms of the Lease, the Lease Term shall be
deemed to commence on the date this Agreement is fully executed.

3) This Agreement shall apply solely to the Lease as it affects the South Macon
Elementary Property, and shall not apply to the Cartoogechaye Elementary
School property; provided, however, that the terms of the Lease shall
continue in full force and effect as to the latter property.

4) Except as modified herein, the terms of the Lease shall remain in full force
and effect.
5) The Board hereby agrees to subordinate and attorn its leasehold interest in the

Property as may be required by any one or more financing contracts entered
into by the County for purposes of financing the Project.

6) The Board’s Chair and Superintendent are hereby authorized to execute any
documents deemed necessary by the County to effect the purposes of this
Agrecment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the Parties hereunto have caused this Agreement to be executed
in their respective names by their duly authorized officers and their official seals affixed hereto, this

the day and year first above written.

{CS: 00051990.DOC } 2




COUNTY OF MACON

By: (SEAL)
Jim Tate, Chairman
Board of County Commissioners

Attest

Derek Roland, Ex Officio Clerk to the Board (OFFICIAL SEAL)

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

L , a Notary Public of the aforesaid County and
State, hereby certify that Derek Roland personally came before me this day and acknowledged that
he is the duly appointed Ex Officio Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners for Macon
County, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the body politic the foregoing instrument
was signed in its name by its said Board Chair, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by himself
as the Clerk.

Witness my hand and NOTARIAL SEAL, this the __ day of May, 2018.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:

(NOTARIAL SEAL)

{CS: 00051990.DOC } 3




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

By: (SEAL)
Jim Breedlove, Board Chair
Attest
Dr. Chris Baldwin, Ex Officio Clerk to the Board (OFFICIAL SEAL}
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

1, , a Notary Public of the aforesaid County and
State, hereby certify that Dr. Chris Baldwin personally came before me this day and acknowledged
that he is the duly appointed Clerk of the Macon County Board of Education, and that by authority
duly given and as the act of the body politic the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its
said Board Chair, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by himself as the Clerk.

Witness my hand and NOTARIAL SEAL, this the __ day of May, 2018.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:

(NOTARIAL SEAL)

{CS: 00051990.DCC } 4




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 10,2018

DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Governing Board/Southwestern
Community College

SUBJECT MATTER: Interlocal Governmental Agreement

COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

The County Attorney has prepared the attached Interlocal Governmental
Agreement between the county and Southwestern Community College
(SCC) regarding the new Public Safety Training Center proposed for the
SCC Macon Campus on Siler Road. He is also preparing a warranty deed to
deliver title to the property from the county to SCC, and can provide
additional details at the meeting if needed.

Attachments

Agenda Item 11C




STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON |

INTERLOCAL GOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

NOW COMES the TRUSTEES OF SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY COLLEGE,
a body corporate and legal entity for Southwestern Community College (hereinafter “College™),
and the COUNTY OF MACON, a body politic and corporate (hereinafter “County”) (collectively
“Parties™), and, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Staf. §§ 160A-274 and -461, enter into the following
INTERLOCAL GOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (hereinafter “Agreement”) on this 8th
day of May (“Effective Date™).

WHEREAS, the College desires to construct a fire {raining rescue center and a classroom
facility with a two-bay garage for fire truck storage (hereinafter “Facility™) to enhance its public
safety programming opportunities at its Macon County Campus, a more comprehensive
description of the Facility is incorporated herein and attached hereto as Exhibit A;

WHEREAS, the State of North Carolina has pledged to appropriate to the College to fund
a portion of the construction of the Facility (hereinafter “State Appropriation™);

WHEREAS, the County currently owns and is willing to transfer to the College an
approximate six-acre tract of real property, valued at Three Hundred Eighty-Six Thousand Dollars
($386,000), more particularly described in the plat recorded on Card 4 9442 in the Macon County
Registry (hereinafter “Property”), for the College to locate the Facility;

WHEREAS, in addition to providing to the College the Property, the County has also
pledged to appropriate to the College the sum of One Million Three Hundred Twelve Thousand
Six Hundred Five Dollars ($1,312,605) to fund a portion of the construction of the Facility
(hereinafter “County Appropriation™);

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 115D-20, on January 19, 2018, the College
requested and received approval from the North Carolina State Board of Community Colleges to
acquire the Property from the County and build the Facility (said Facility being an approved project
identified as NCCS #2204);

WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions contained herein, the County desires to
transfer the Property to the College; and

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement.

NOW, TI-]EREFORE, by approval of their respective governing bodies, the Parties
entering into this Agreement subject to the following terms and conditions:

1. Transfer for the Property. Upon the execution of this Agreement, the County
Attorney shall prepare and file a deed in the Macon County Registry transferring the Property from
the County to the College.

{CS: 00051059.DOCX } : 1




2. Property Return, In the event that the College is not financially able to build the
Facility because: a) the College does not actually receive the State Appropriation and/or the
County Appropriation; or b) the projected construction cost of the Facility exceeds the combined
State Appropriation and the County Appropriation and the College is unable to secure additional
funding within a reasonable amount of time, the College shall immediately return the Property to
the County. In the event the College must refurn the Property as required herein, the College’s
legal counsel shall prepare and file the appropriate deed with the Macon County Registry.

3 Timeline for Letting Construction Ceontract. Upon appropriation of the
necessary funding to finance the Project and after approval by the State Construction Office of the
Design Professional’s completed construction drawings, the College shall make every reasonable

effort to begin the public bidding process to let a construction confract for the construction of the
Facility within one (1) calendar year.

4. County Appropriation. Unless otherwise required by law or a condition of receipt
of the State Appropriation, the College shall spend the State Appropriation first before it begins to
spend the County Appropriation.

. Miscellaneous Provisions.

a. This Agreement is binding on the Parties. The provisions contained herein
are severable. If any provision is held to be invalid or unenforceable, it shall not affect the validity
or enforceability of any other provision.

b. This Agreement sets out the entire agreement between the Parties and
supetsedes any and all prior oral or written agreements or understandings between the Parties.

c. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of North Carolina and proper legal venue for any claims heteunder shall be the
State courts located in Macon County, North Carolina. In the event that either Party must take any
judicial action to enforce the provisions contained herein, attorneys’ fees and costs shall be
awarded to the prevailing Party.

d. This Agreement is deemed to have been jointly drafted by the Parties and
no ambiguities contained herein shall be construed against either Party.

e, This Agreement may only be amended by a written amendment approved
and signed by the Parties.

f. The individual signatories below have the express and implied authority on
behalf of their respective governing bodies to execute this Agreement. The Parties may execute
this Agreement in separate counterparts and the execution of a copy shall have the same effect as
the execution of an original. Such execution may be by facsimile or PDF attachment to an email.

g The Parties shall comply with the requirements of G.S. Chapter 64, Article
2 (i.e., E-Verify Requirements).

{CS: 00051059.D0CX } 2




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the
Effective Date.

Date:
Trustees of Southwestern Community College
Terry Bell, Chair
Date:
County of Macon
James Tate, Chair

This Instrument has ~bcen pre-audited as required by the Local Budget and Fiscal Control Act.

Date:

County Finance Director

{CS: 00051059 DOCX } 3




Exy1elT A

CAMPBELL SHATLEY, PLLC

ATTORNEYS AT Law CHRISTOPHER Z, CAMPBELL
K. DEAN SHATLEY, 1l
CHAD R. DONMAHOO
JORN F. HENNING, JR.
WALTER L. CURRIE, OF COUNSEL

April 30, 2018
SENT VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL ‘

Chester Jones, Esq.
cj@chesterjoneslaw.com

RE: Interlocal Governmental Agreement
Southwestern Community College — Macon County

Dear Mr, Jones:

Attached hereto is Exhibit A for the Interlocal Governmental Agreement. The Facility
includes a two-bay garage with an attached classroom space and a pre-engineered burn building.
The Exhibit includes photographs of a similar type/material muiti-bay garage that the College
desires to build and the specifications for the pre-engineered burn building. Dr. Tomas has
informed me that the College has shared this information with the Commissioners at an earlier
meeting. Please be advised that these details with respect to the Facility are subject to change
based on input from the Design Professional and actual building material costs.

Don’t hesitate fo contact me if you have additional questions.
Sincerely,
CAMPBELL SHATLY, PLLC
(ReRAL—
Chad Ray Donnahoo

Enl
Cc:  Dr. Tomas, President

674 Merrimon Avenue, Suive 210 m AsHevile, NC 28804
T: 828.398.2775 m F: 828.398.2795
WWW.CSEDLAW, COM

{C5: 00051965.00CX }




IMG_4636.JPG

“hitps://drive.google.com/file/d/0B60AnjciDDowQunBVTGFBZFRph...

lofl

5/3/2018, 1:18 P



MG _4634.JPG ' https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B60OAnjciDDowWVIBbOWSMmIZ...

Tofl 5/3/2018, 1:19 P1



Southwestern Community College

MULTI-STORY CONTAINER STRUCTURE
| Budgetary Proposal

January 9, 2018

Picture is for illustration purposes oniy.

Customer Name: Benjamin Johnson
Sales Contact: Kyle Haines
Regional Sales Manager

khaines@bullex.com .

518-689-2023 :
. e
- 4 Bullex




ff.f\i_\d:\? . '. ®
$ e u . - Budgetary Proposal 2
"'l».\,.vh,rj | [ 4

Table of Contents

Pricing ...cccevnveeeee P— R vemssrrmssacenes T 3
Section 1 — Southwestern Community College Training Center ................ S——— 5
Construction ........... {eEuRRReRRARRARR AR SRANR 48 1n 4R RS AR S £k S ARATRR RS S AR Am st £t et e emran e RRETRIALRD 6
Live Fire Container Structure — 8 containers, 4 storfes. ... s 6
IMEHOr Live Fire PropS.... oo i e e e s e 10
TREITNIAE SHIBING v revvvvvvevereerss e eeseees e oo soeeseeesosseseeesssseeresseessseessssessesssssessere et oo sse 18
WEIKABIE ROOT.....o e e e e e b e s 18
PHENEA ROOF. ..o et et e e b e sb e s s v sae e st e s e b e s e tae e 18
Camera and Video Playback PAckage .......c.c.ovrviorecienie e iecin e vressaasssetsesence e ranens 19
SEANAPIPE ... ocieiis ittt e v e e e a2 e eh e et en et b et s 20
Smoke DIStDULION SYSIEMI. ottt e st et 20
Ventllation System/AIN SUPPIY ..o s ims semirmss s e ssasssmsiassssssse seessrs cosmnss samsmsssnsasnssmses 22
BullEx Safefy L) (=Y | 1 T U 23
Gas, Water and Electricity Systems ..., cmrmmrvemeeessAmmmiessssassosiessseezessresasets 25
BUHEX SIMUIALOr CONITOl SYSTEIM cuuvvuerussessmsremmsemsemsesmsssesssssesesssmssssesssessssiasssmssssessessassascsssesmssssess 26
Delivery & Training ..........occnsne NememrreesssmmesseseemieedemesoresimresdesoctiSERRESEISARLLEASEEEERURANEE RSN S R un R a A e R 27
WATTANEY -ececeericemmemm s rescns et ssninmt s anmn s sannecstnessnssnsnansssnan S — treasesssssmessssisratnianaan 28
CLOMEGE ... vere s -5 858 AR BB ok e R N .30

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.bullex.com




BullEx:

Pricing

Budgstary Proposal 3

PRICING PROPOSAL

Four Story Training Tower

Approximate Dimensiqns - 16'W x 40°L x 35'H

Eight IS0 container structure ~ Four 40’ containers & four 20’ containers

Fire Training Props

1.

Kitchen Fire with Roliover

2. SmartClass A Technology

3. Vehicle/ Garage Fire

4. Custom ATTACK scenario using 6 panels
Additional Training Props

s Pitched roof sfructure

+ Standpipe in the stairwelt

s Flat walkable roof with railing

+ Integrated smbke generation system

» Movable walls

s« Bxterior piggy back stair case
Safety network

Central contro_l panel with automated ignition
LEL gas sensors

Temperature :sensors

E-stop buttons

Emergency lighting

Exterior audible/visual alarm

Ventilation system

Additional tems

L ]

Eight (8) cameras to record fraining evolutions

Two (2) 18" camera monitors

Wireless remote _controt w/ emergency stop

Thermal Shielding, including 5mm steel plates and insulated wallfceiling cavities in all live fire rooms

Interior / Exterior stairs
Doaors / Windows - with locking hardware

Diamond plate steel floor throughout entire structure

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.bullex.com




BU“EX(E Budgetary Proposal 4

+ Floor drains

» Technical/storage room with exterior steel door that houses equipment
» High quality paint, interior and exterior

Installation and Trammg

Included
» Delivery, installation, calibration and testing of structure and props
s Eight (8) hour train the trainer session
» Commissioning of training facility

Total Budgetary Investment: $1,327,005
Note: The stated price is for budgeting purposes only. A firm price will be submitted upon receipt of final
specifications. The quoted price excludes sales tax (if applicable).

Payment Terms:

- 30% upon placement of order, with payment to be made within 8 days of the invoice date.

- £0% in proportional milestone payment, with milestone payment terms to be mutually agreed upon by both Bullex and the
purchasing party, and with payment(s) to be made within 8 days of the Involce date(s).

- 10% upon delivery of all documentation conceming this offer, with payment to be made within 8 days of the invoice date.

- 10% upon final acceptance of the offer from the purchasing party, with payment to be made within 8 days of the invoice dale.

2Q Corparate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.buliex.com




B“l|a® Budgetary Proposal 5
Hoed!

Section 1 - Southwestern Community College
Training Center

BullEx will design, manufacture and install a new fire fraining tower complete with a comprehensive safety and
control network that will address the specific fire and emergency response training needs of Southwestern
Community College.

The proposal includes a container-based training center that will aftow for a series of scenarios that chalienge
trainees. Fire props will use propane and digital fire technologies to create a range of difficulty levels and
conditions. The tower will be laid out to include structural live fire training exercises that simulate the conditions
found in a typical residen'@ial house ar similar scenario. The structure itself has a 600 square foot per floor tayout

that accurately simulates residential homes and includes muitiple interior and exterior doors, windows, closets,
stairways and roof pitches.

At BullEx, we pride ourselves on being the world’s largest provider of fire and safety training tools. We have
been designing, engineelfing and building tralning container structures since our inception. Our live fire training
props are constructed acburately to scale, with the fires built into objects and appliances that would be found in
real life. Combining our Class B fire fraining props with our customized container simulator offers the most

realistic fire training scenarios possible and allows trainees to experience the full impact of an emergency
situation.

BullEx has experience constructing a variety of container sclutions,
ranging from single container units to large-scale projects using
mere than 20 containers. Our focus is on our clients and their
trainees, which has allowed us to provide numerous organizations
with {raining sites they can be proud of for years to come, We are
responsible for some of the largest fire training projects in the
world, including Shanghai, China; Mefropolitan Fire Brigade of
Melbourne Australia; and FDNY Training Center on Randali’s
Isiand. We can transfonﬁ your training objective into reality.

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.bullex.com




Budgetary Proposal 6

Construction

Live Fire Contaiher Structure — 8 containers, 4 stories

BullEx will design, fabricéte, deliver and install a new three-story fire training simulator at the Southwestern
Community College site. The building wili be constructed of eight 1SO containers modified for use as a fire
training structure = four 40° containers and four 20’ containers. Two 40’ containers will comprise the first floor,
with another two 40" containers making up the second floor, and two 20° containers encompassing the third and
fourth floors.

The training structure will include our SmartClass A technology and class B live fire. The Class B props will
include all related auxiliary and safety systems such as gas and temperature sensors, e-stop buttons, and
control mechanisms. The system will allow for realistic, repeatable, and controllable Class B fire response
exercises to take place within the training area. Our advanced fire training props are made of the most robust
and rugged materials and are designed to stand up to any fire department’s rigorous training.

The structure will aiso feature several interior rooms with non-fire props, such as pitchad roof, standpipe,
windows, doors, interior and exterior stairs, and muitiple pathways.

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.buliex.com



.‘j_,\."v 4 . . .
Shi? Bl’llla® Budgetary Proposal 7

Design Layout

The first floor of the container structure {containers 1 & 2) will feature the foliowing training areas:

» Live fire training room — Kitchen fire with roliover
+ Vehicle ! Garage Fire

= Cameras in fire training room

e Control / technical room

+ Windows and doors

» Stairwell to the second floor

» Standpipe prop extending to third floor
» Example scenarios
o Below grade fire scenarios utilizing external and internal stairways
o Search and rescue scenarios
o Ventitation training
o Standpipe training

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689,2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.bullex.com




BullEx:

The second floor (containers 3 & 4) will feature the following training areas:

SmartClass A fire training room

Cameras in fire training room

Windows and doors to vary training scenarios

Control / technical room

Exterior stairs to access 1 fioor for basement simuiation
Standpipe prop in stairwell

Stairwell

Example scenarios

Fire accessed from internal and external stairs
Confined stairwell

Vent, enter, search scenarios

Standpipe applications

c o ¢ 0

Budgefary Proposal 8

20 Corporate Gircle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.bullex.com




¥ &
; B“'IB ‘ Budgetary Proposal 9

The third floor (containers 5 & 6) will feature the following training areas:

e Two-sided pitched roof structure
¢ Live fire training room
« Cameras in training room
* Window and crawl space door
»  Standpipe prop in stairwell
= Example scenarics
o Ventilation training
o Standpipe applications
o Confined space training

Fourth Floor

« Comprised of two 20’ containers to be used for various non-fire fraining exercises
« {arge search and rescue area
= Internal staircase fo fifth fioor above

20 Corporate Circie | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689,2034 | www.bullex.com




Budgetary Proposal 10

Interior Live Fire Props

The Southwestem Community College project will contain the following interior props:
» 1. Kitchen Fire Prop with Rollover
> 2. SmartClass A System
> 4. Vehicle / Garage Fire Prap

The props shali be propane fueled, with integrated pilot burners, extinguisher detection systems, and
connection to a comprehensive safety network, central controi system, and operated via wireless remote
control. SmartClass A combines class a material and propane fuel to create fire using gas and wood.

1. Kitchen Fire Prop

Kitchen Fire Simulétor

BuliEx wilf install a Kitchen Fire Simulator in the training structure. The Kitchen Fire Training Prop is a propane
fueled, live fire training prop used in conjunction with the BullEx pilot module. The prop will simulate a real fire
scenario ignited in a typical residential kitchen. The controf units and fire frays will be obscured from view in the
adjoining technical room- or built into the prop housing. In this way, trainees will not see the technical elements
and will be more able to become immersed in the fire scenario. System
includes:

+ Stove Fire Training Unit, including integrated bumers and burn tray with
muftiple burn levels and intensities

» Safety network equipment, including gas and temperature sensors, e-
stop buttons and required wiring

» Integration to safety network
+ Integration to Control Console

Stove Fire Training Prop

The Stove Fire Training Prop simulates a standard four burner stove fire. The main bumer generates high
intensity flames and the stove-top burner, with a functionaj shut-off valve, enabies firefighters to advance hose
lines and secure the gas supply. The Stove Fire Training Prop is made of 6 Gauge and 11 Gauge miid steej
construction. All materlals will be coated with a protective heat resistant paint.

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.bullex.com




B““Exﬁ Budgetary Proposal 11

Grease Explosion

The training unit will be fitted o simulate a ‘grease explosion,’
providing an extra dimension fo the training exercise. A pan will be
fitted onto the cooker, and the pan will be equipped with a water
collector. If a fire is extinguished with water, the water collector will
deiect this, and as soon as a minimum amount of water is collected, a
jet of fire will be produced, simulating a grease explosion.

The Kitchen Fire Simulator will allow for a variety of difficulty settings (fire
resilience, fire infensily, etc.) and escalading fire scenarios. If extinguishment
takes too long, the next level of fire involvement will consist of a ceiling roflover
simulation.

BullEx fire systems are designed to operate for long durations at high intensity
levels, allowing continuous fraining to be conducted without the need to frequently
stop and cool-down the fire unit.

Rollover Fire

A rollover fire will also be included in the kitchen prop. The fire will spread from
ihe kitchen stove to the ceiling.

The rollover simulator delivers accurate pressure build up and heat release similar to a real rollover, allowing
trainees to experience all the elements of a firefighting intervention. Propane
will be delivered in ihree stages to the ceiling mounted burners via pressurized
buffering tanks that will be located ouiside the training room.

BullEx's special design ?Ilows for large area rollovers, and its buffering tank
creates a realistic, high intensity simulation. System includes:

+» Supply and installation of ceiling mounted burners

+ Supply and installation of buffering tank system
» Supply and installation of BullEx pilot ignition system
« Integration to safety ng-,\twork

+ Integration to contro! console

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.682.2034 | www.bullex.com




$ icb : B“'I&w Budgetary Proposal 12
"Liﬂ,«,-l‘I 4

2. SmartClass A System

The BUllEx SmartClass A Trainer aliows for the instructor to teach complete extinguishment firefighting training
on a repeatable scale.

A built in gas bumer allows instructors to start Class A fires with
the push of a button, and an integrated deluge system allows
the fires to be quickly exiinguished in the case of an
emergency. Additionally, a comprehensive ventilation system
allows instructors fo control smoke and temperature levels
enhabling various fire behavior fraining.

Simply load wood into the burn tray and start the integrated

propane bumer with the handheld controller. The propane pilot
and burner instantly produce intense flames to ignite the Class
A materials. Built-in shielding protects the propane burher components from the Class A debris throughout the

evolution. After the fire is extinguished, the propane bumer quickly dries and reignites the wood for the next
training session. :

Each System includes:

. A new burn crib, compiete with an integrated propane burner and deluge system.

. A water supply !ine, instalied from the bum crib to the outside of the building, per local regulations.
. A water connection will be added to allow the connection of a supply line 1o the deluge system.

. A propane line from the burn crib to the regulated supply, per local regulations.

BuliEx will provide BTU and pressure supply requirements with detailed design drawings.

Endless Training Evolutions

Class A fire technology creates new possibilities in training with carbonaceous fires. Class A fires enable
the instructor {o accuratéiy provide instruction on two key elements of live-fire training, namely smoke and
heat. The smoke is real smoke and its behavior mimics the smoke in a live fire situation. Using a flashlight,
trainees can see the density of the smoke and have an indication of the height of the neutral piane.

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.bullex.com




fﬂ 7?3 B“llag Budgetary Proposal 13
1"\«/-4’] t

Smart Class A Fire Techniology features dual combustion technology to create fire using both gas and
wood. The Smart Class A system features a specially designed Class A chamber with a built-in gas
ignition module that the instruclor can operate from a distance. The system includes full controf of
ventilation, allowing instnjctors to control the scenario, fire behavior, and neutral plane.

Once the fire has been eictinguished, it can be lit again immediately — without having to load more wood
into the burner. Although the wood remains wet after being extinguished, the gas flames and unique
chamber design quickly dry and reignite the wood for the next training session. The dual-fuel burner is
capable of igniting Class A material using propane or natural gas. This system allows frainees to
completely extinguish the fire and reignite it almost immediately for countless evolutions, decreasing
downtime and maximizing training.

The system contains a water suppression system and an emergency stop button. When the E-Stop is
pressed the Class A fire is extinguished and the ventilation automatically adjusts to 100% capacity to
quickly clear the smoke. The real heat, smoke and intense flames of Class A burns are ideai for a wide
variety of training objectives. )

Smart Class A Burn Crib

The system is equipped with a gas-fueled fire fray to secure a
swift reigniting of the wood after extinguishing. The fire tray is
based on a dry burner system. A burner element is fitted
underneath the ' wood crib. The gas escapes from the burner
element at predetermined points. The gas is ignited by a
continuous burning pilotflame.

The fire tray will be treated with a special heat-resistant black
paint. As a result of the high temperatures present, this special
paint provides a protective iayer on the metal plate to prevent corrosion.

With proper use, an instructor should be able to provide approximately 6-10 evolutions an hour with the
Smart Class A burn crib.

20 Corporate Circie | Albany, NY 12203 | phone H18.689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www bullex.com




I ’
g; ﬁ;} BullEx® ~ Budgetary Propaosai 14
saal £ .

Extinguishing water \*

Section Divider Shield

Fire Tray

3. Vehicle Fire Prop / Garage Fire

The BullEx Vehicle Fire Prop will be located In a first floor interior garage. The training system includes:

BullEx Car Fire Prop

>
»

Y

10-year construction warranty

1/4” and 1/8” all steel construction with protective
heat resistant paint

1/3” C Channel galvanized steel frame. Thicker
gauge steel at high heat areas allows for much longer
life of car. -

Industrial gauge integrated steel casters for moving
car prop

Car prop dimensions: 12'6”l x 5’ 6"w x 4'6"h

4 bum zones - Create driver and passenger
compariment, engine, and wheel-well fires at the push of a button

Live fire training prop used in conjunction with Hose Line Fire Training
System "

Hinged hood, frunk, and passenger doors
Driver and passenger seat backs, steering wheel, hood prop bar
Pry-able and Roll-able Hood - Conduct forcible hood entry drills with the

Pry-able and Roll-able Hood feature. The special design with replaceable hood plates of varying
difficulty allows for challenging yet repeatable hood-rolling drills without damaging the prop.

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.6898.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.bullex.com




»

»

Fire Tray and Pilof Control Box

»

YV V V¥V

A4

BUIIB® ' Budgetary Proposal 15

Integrated Cooling System - Cooling piping is built into the vehicle itself and connects to a standard
garden hose, aIIoWing for lang duration fire simulations while minimizing steel fatigue and wear., deal
for use when prac{icing positioning of apparatus, angle of attack, and stretching the proper hose lines,
etc. while the vehicle remains fully involved.

Smashable Headlights - Conduct engine compartment extinguishing drills
with the Smashable Headlighis feature. Specially designed headlight holes in
the grill allow for drills of varying difficulty with different types of metal
headlight plates.

All stee! construction

Removable tray can be positicned independently to simulate a fuel spill or
can be used in cdnjunction with several other BullEx training props
Engineered for use with hand lines, CO2, and water extinguishers

Liquid propane fueled industrial grade fire fighter training unit

Stainless steel 4° x 6’ fire tray

CSA Approved and UL Listed stainiess steel continuous burn forced air
pilot control box with four (4) burn zones for realistic fire simulation
Removable pilot box can also be used with other BullEx props

or fire trays

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689,2034 | www.bullex.com




BullEx

Mobile Control Console

>

UL Listed Control Console interfaces between props and
upstream propane and power supply. Houses core propane and
power components, control components, optional wireless and
sound effect components (if selected), and built in E-stop button.
Includes 50 foot pi'opane hose with self-sealing quick disconnect
fittings, specifically designed fo prevent gas leaks up to 250psi in
high-pressure propane delivery situations. Hose and fittings
constructed to withstand environment elemenis and heat from
normal operation..

NEMA 4X rated to resist corresion

Wired remote (unless upgraded to wireless) to independently start
and stop mulfiple bum zones, with deadman button

Includes power cable to connect to customers power supply

Budgetary Proposal 16

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.bullex.com




. é_,,a.,\ 3 ‘ '
< rjic\ BU'IB® Budgetary Proposal 17
gt 4

4. Custom ATTACK Scenario

BullEx will include Digital Fire Technology in the Southwestern CC training facility. Six ATTACK panels,
complete with control and safety network, will be included in a custom digital fire room. The room will consist of
three wall panels and three ceiling panels.

¢ The digital ATTACK system combines digital fiames, sound and smoke fo create a range of fire
conditions that respond direclly fo hose line application.

» The digital ATTACK system is a training system using digital technology. Use the ATTACK system and

smoke generator to create a fire that spreads from one panel to another, Multiple panels allow .
limitless fire extension scenarios.

+ The ATTACK’s digital LED panei responds to the hose line and flames diminish in response to proper
hose line management,

» The ATTACK panel can be used with a hand line, water can, or laser nozzle. Instructors can run
repeatable and variable evolutions with push button start and stop.

s Six ATTACK panels will be provided as part of this proposal. The BullEx Digital Fire ATTACK panels will
be synced together to create various fire extension scenarios.

The Attack’s digital flames respond to the hose line and diminish in response to proper hose line management.
Instructors can run repeatable and variable evolutions with push button start and stop. The system will allow for
realistic and repeatable digital fire training exercises to take place within the training rooms.

20 Corporéte Circle | Al:bany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.bullex.com




i“"N

B'.lllEx® Budgetary Proposal 18

Thermal Shielding

Steel Lining for Propane Fires

In order to prevent direct contact beiween flames and the structural walls, a wall
and ceiling lining will be installed around interior direct fire impingement areas, per
final requirements. This will prevent equipment fatigue and will extend the useful
lifetime of the structure dramatically. The BullEx steel thermal lining system is
designed for continuous burning at temperatures up to approximately 1,000°F.

Class A Refractory Tile for Class A Fires

BullEx will install a special high heat insulation around the Class A burn
crib. The heat resistant lining includes an interlocking refractory tile and
encapsulated insulating material. The tiles shield and protect the
training structure from the extreme environments associated with live
fire training. The lining is able to withstand repeated high temperatures
and extreme thermal shock created during fire training evolutions,
without spalling, cracking or splintering.

Each fire tile is individually anchored to the structure with a durable stainless steel anchoring system. The
systemn, coupled with the interlocking feature of the files, allows the lining to "float’ with temperature
fluctuations. The complete installation offers an impenetrable blanketi of protection to the building structure.
The system is designed to last approximately 15+ years with only minimal maintenance.

¥ Designed for continuous burning at temperatures between 1,400 and 2,400°F;

No cooling down or drying out time is necessary. There are also no restrictions based on ambient
temperature or atmospheric conditions;

»  Resistant fo thermal shock. Our linings "float” with temperature fluctuations;

3 The system has expansion/contraction joints in both directions;

> Rugged high pressure water streams will not harm the tiles; _

> Designed to keep water and steam out. The ship-lapped design protects the insutation and structure

from water, steam and heat damage.

Walkable Roof

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.688.2023 | f4 :




S

$7E - '
B“lla® . Budgetary Proposal 19
: "‘**w;} F.

The container structure will inc!ﬁde a walkable roof above the two 20’ containers on the third floor. The walkable
roof will be fitted with additional steel support and include a safety railing around the entire perimeier. A ladder
and hatch will be included to access the walkable roof. The walkable roof area will also house the exhaust fan
above the technical shaft (approximately 8' x 87).

Anchor points will be included on the flat roof area for rappelling. Below is a rough sketch of the walkable roof
area.

Pitched Roof

A double pitched roof will be built on the third floor of the container structure to allow various roof training
evolutions. The pitched roof area will include a safety railing. The type of roofing will be asphalt shingle.

Camera and Video Playback Package

Cameras will be instailed in the fire rooms and adjacent rdoms, as well as the roof, to allow instructors to record
and playback trainees’ evolutions. Package Includes:

> " Eight walllceiling mounted digital color video cameras

> Software to record video display

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 { phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.buliex.com




SM “a7® :
gkvjﬁc) B“I'Ex Budgetary Proposal 20.

Standpipe

A working standpipe will also be installed in the staircase of the training structure. The standpipe will be used o
provide hands-on training in hose connection and manual application of water to fires in buildings. There will be
ane connection on each floor, with a fitting that is up to US/NFPA standards. The exterior connection will be

double female 2.5” swivel nht and interior connections will include two male 1.5" nht connections on each flcor,

Movable Walls

The interior of the training simulator will include movable walls in order fo vary
training scenarios. One movable wall section will be on the firsi floor and
another on the second ficor. These heavy duty partitions are constructed of
durable steel and can be safely secured to attachment points within the
container structure. The partitions can be assembled in different
configurations, allowing instructors to create a wide variety of interior
environments within a single room. The moveable wall system is ideal for fire
aitack, search and rescue, ventilation, and other interior training exercises in
a way that continually challenges trainees during drills.

Smoke Distribution System

BullEx designs and manufactures industrial-grade, glycol-based fire fighter
training smoke generators. To create synthetic smoke in the fire training
simulator, BullEx will install a synthetic smoke distribution system. This
smoke system consists of:

» Smoke generator with internal computer system

» Central tank with smoke fluid reservoir

» Smoke delivery system

Synthetic Smoke Generation

From the smoke generator, a spiral pipe will be ducted to each fire room or
smoke room.

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.682.2023 | {ax 518.689.2034




Py -
%‘,HM}E' u Budgetary Proposal ?1

BullEx Smoke Generators use smart controls to continuously produce the hest smoke possible for fire and
emergency services training. Built on steel chassis with all metal structural components, these smaoke generators
are built to handle the toughest training demands. Smart controls and an integrated smoke liquid tank enable our
generators to produce smoke continucusly for hours. Dual heaters and a specialized heat exchanger ensure
efficient smoke production on a large-scale basis. Our smoke generators are capabie of creating 100% obscured
visibility at a height of no mare than 20° above the floor within 15 seconds of activation. The high volume of

continuous smoke is idéal for horizontal or vertical ventitation drills and helps show the effects of Posifive
Pressure Ventilation.

The smoke generator shall use a glycol based smoke fluid. The generator and fluid have been third party tested
to confirm that the smoke emissions are within safety thresholds (including formaldehyde and diethylene giycol).

Exterior Stai‘r Case

An exterior piggy back stair case will also be included in the container trainer
structure. The exterior staircase will be built of galvanized stee!.

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 22203 | phone 548.689.2023 | fax 518.682.2034 | www.hullex.com




N T
R BU“H Budgetary Proposal 22

Ventilation System/Air Supply

Ventilation of technical rooms, fire rooms and srmoke training rooms is
critical for both trainer and trainee safety. |t also ensures a supply of fresh
air for optimal combustion. Adequate ventilation prevents excessive
concentrations of nitrous gases (NO + NO2) and carbon monoxide (CO).

The air supply for the ﬁre_rooms is controlled by a ventilator.

Ventilator:

The ventilation system alsc works to contro! the temperature at the top as
well as the bottom of the SmariClass A room. To accomplish this, the

ventilation controls are directly linked to the burn tray controls and all
safety systems.

A single-suction, high temperature, centrifugal ventilator will be installed
{exact location TBD). The casing of the fan and the exhaust will be able to
resist extremely high temperatures and are water and corrosion resistant.

The ventilation system will refresh approximately 30 to B0 times per hour
depending on the area, compliant with NFPA regulations.

The ventilator is connected fo a frequency regulator. This frequency
regulator will be activated through:

» The temperafure monitoring system;

» The gas detection sysiem;

> The emergency:stop system.

The frequency regulator will also regulate and protect the engine fan (overheating,
turning in the right direction, failing phase, ete.).

The air will be controlled by an air pressure switch that measures the pressure
difference between the suction ducts which are mounted on the ventilator. The control
box with the air pressure switch is mounted on the ventilator.

Ventilation grids are installed at sfrategic points on bath the inside and outside of the

container, ensuring a supply of fresh air in the rooms. All ventilation grids are made of
galvanized steel.

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 { phone 518.689.2023 | fax 51.8.689.2034 | www.buliex.com




:]-l"'\.
«, “} BU'IB : Budgetary Proposal 23

BullEx Safety System

Qur BullEx fire training solutions come standard with safety systems to ensure optimum performance of your fire
training facility. These inciude a gas detection system, temperature monitoring system, emergency stop system,
evacuation lighting and an audio visual alarm. These safety systems are connected fo the BullEx Control
System, providing a complete operational and monitoring solution.

LEL Gas Detection System

BullEx will install a comprehensive gas defection system where required by our design of
the training area. The sysiem will continually measure gas/oxygen levels in {raining rooms
as well as in technical rooms, and will communicate the values to the central control
system. In the event that gas levels exceed predetermined thresholds, the system will
automatically go into a safe shutdown mode.

Temperature Monitoring System

To protect trainees, instructors and fraining equipment, BullEx will install a temperature
monitoring system customized to your training unit. Temperature measurements are fed
to the central control system which controls the ventilation system. If the temperature in
any room exceeds the maximum safety threshold for personnel, a temperature safety
over-ride will shut down the heat source within the training arsas immediately and initiate
full ventilation.

Emergency Stop System

§ In addition to the automated safety monitoring and control systems, BullEx will design
and install a series of emergency shutdown buttons. In addition, an emergency
shutdown relay will be installed in the control cabinet. This relay is designed to control

the various safely components and, if activated, will aufomatically initiate safety
-shutdown procedures.

Evacuation Lighting

Lighting will be installed where appropriate, in order fo provide safe egress during an
emergency situation. The emergency lighting will be both automatic and manually controlled
by the wireless remote control and/or control system.

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.680.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.bullex.com



Bu llaE’ Budgetary Proposal 24

Audio Visual Alarm

An audio visual alarm system will be connected to the overall control network. A signal light
will be placed on the outer wall of the control room and be accompanied by a unique audio
signal per type of emergency.

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.bullex.com



Budgetary Proposal 25

Gas, Water and Electricity Systems

The main gas, water and electrical supply lines will need to be provided by the customer or its third party
contractor to a designated area outside/within the training unit.

Gas System

Our BullEx gas syétern is designed with safety in mind. In case of an emergency, all gas valves connecting the
fuel sources and the training unit will automatically close.

On request, we can submit details about the proposed gas management installation, integral safety features, the

regulation of gas flow, ignition of gas, minimizafion of the risk of excessive accumulation of gas, and ventilation
requirements. '

Water System

Our water sysiem desig'n includes an automatic feature that drains the water-based training systems during

training and at the end of the training day. On request, we can submit details about the proposed water
management instailation.

Electrical System

A main control electrical cabinet will be placed in the technical area and will feed the entire training installation.
Drainage
" Customer will be required to provide a drainage connection from the training structure.

Telecoms

A LAN connection with Internet access supplied by the customer is required to enable the manufacturer to
perform remote diagnostics, remote support, remote software upgrades, determine service intervals, etc.

if a LAN is not possible, it may be possible for Buliex to supply an optionai GSM connection. However, a land
line is highly recommended due to faster and more reliable Internet connection.

20 Corporate Gircle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.bullex.com




S8
: 1:‘:\‘ BU'I&® Budgetary Proposal 26
K 4

BullEx Simulator Contro! System

BullEx employs a number of safety elements in its instaflations,
including the use of a central control system that continually checks
ail fire scenarios against multiple pre-set safety parameters inciuding
temperature, gas levels, and ventilation. The integrated control
system is composed of several modules and the various safety
features are operated and controlled by a ceniral unit. This central
unit receives sensory data from the fire unit and related equipment
(such as gas meters and air flow meters, for exampte) and controls
and approves the ignition or operation of the various fires.

The fire simulator control system checks that all settings are within pre-determined safety thresholds and

monitors system operation. interdock systems autermatically prevent fires from being activated if predetermined
safety limits are not met.

Main Controi

The main control system allows BullEx training units to operate at varying intensity or flame height levels. The
main control system consists of:

+ Control Cabinet — including ali burner control, emergency, safety and service compaonents. The control
system will automatically send self-diagnosiic and fauit information to the BullEx technical support team.
This connection will also aliow remote technical support and software interventions as needed:;

» Remofe Confrol — allows instructors at the burn area to run, pause, continue, and
end each training exercise and to control operation of the ventilation system,
smoke generator, lighting and flame growth.

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.bullex.com




Budgetary Proposal 27

Delivery & Training

Installation, Set-ﬁp and Training
BUllEx technicians will install the gas sensors, temperature sensors, emergency stop system and control console

with associated support components. The customer will be responsible for the power and gas supply to the
external components of the control console.

BullEx will provide an 8-hour train the trainer session, a written user manual, and toll-free technical support

Power and Fuel Supply

The customer assumes responsibility to contract with a local third party to provide adequate power and fuel
supplies for the BullEx training systems, The main contractorfthird party will need to ensure that an electrical
power supply is installed in the control area with an overall length of approximately"i() feet. BUllEx will install the

main control cabinet and connect the electrical power to this cabinet, from which the whole installation will be
fed.

Calibration

Gas sensors require perlodic (once every 3-6 months} calibration, which must be performed by a BullEx
representative or other qualified technician.

Additional Notes

Excluded from project:
» Foundation to bear the container structure
» Groundworks (if applicable)

Customer is responsible for;

» Clearing the area and enabling us to unload and erect the structure with a crane positioned directly next
to the final position.

¥» Arranging water drainage from the training structure

» Obtaining any permits required for installing and operating the system, gas storage, etc.

20 Corperate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.bullex.com




Budgetary Proposal 28

Warranty

BullEx warrants for a period of one year after the date of Final Acceptance against any defects in workmanship,
materials or software. Conditions of use are outside of the control of Manufacturer. It is the responsibility of the
user to inspect and maintain the Simulator fo assure they remain fit for their intended purpose. In order to
maximize the useful life of this product, the product should only be used by appropriately trained personnel
following proper training procedures and in accordance with the product’'s waming, use, inspection, maintenance
and care instructions.

EXCEPT AS SET FORTH ABOVE, MANUFACTURER MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR

IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS
FOR ANY PARTICULAR PUPOSE.

Under the above warranty, the Manufacturer shail repair or replace, at its option, any product or part that does
not meet the above warranty. Such repair or replacement shall be the Buyer's sole remedy and the Manufacturer
shall not be responsible for any incidental, consequential, or other damages based upon or arising in any way
from any breach of the warranty contained herein or the purchaser’s use of the product.

The word “product’ includes the Simulator itself and any parts or labor furnished by the Manufacturer with the
sales, delivery or servicing of the product.

The Manufacturer shall provide replacement parts according to ifs most recent price sheets, with delivery made
according to mutually agreed terms. If replacement parts are provided under warranty they will be provided at no
cost to the Buyer. Replacement of any parts damaged as a result of excessive usage and operation, defined as
greater than 85 hoursimonth or 1,000 hours per year, or more than 10 hours continuous operation, shall be
excluded from the warranty.

Telephone support is offered within the warranty period to assist with trouble-shooting faults and to assist the
customer in replacing parts covered under warranty. At the conclusion of the warranty peried, telephone support
will be offered as part of a separate Maintenance Contract offered by the Manufacturer. The Buyer understands

that Telephone support and assistance can only be guaranteed during normal office hours and on normal
workdays. '

The Manufaciurer's limited 1 year warranty becomes void if the Buyer alters the Simulator or its installation
without written consent from the Manufacturer.

20 Corporate Circle | Aibany, NY 12203 | phone 518.,689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.bullex.com




ullEx:

BuliEx General Terms and Condition of Delivery and Service
Adticlo 1 Appliability

11  These Ganeml Termns and Canditions of Dellvery and Setvites apply to all BullEX offars, services,
daibverias andcontmeta,

1.2 These generaltermns ard condftions may ba departed fram only f BuliEx expressly stetes or
acknowlad ges this inwriting,

1.3 Other gansral conditions, such as tha purchasing tarms and conditions of sther parties, shail apply,
nsofar agthey do not corform with thess genaml mandwndmma of dafivery and asrvice provisioh,
onty H BULEX hass expressly agresd to thelr writtan

14 These gensral terms and condidans akso apply to the pmumlul and assistants of BuBEx who ara
engaged In the performanca of the contract, and to thind parﬁas wite are performing the contract whally or
partly on bahalf of BullEx,

Artice 2 Bids, Contracts, & Tandem

21 Uniess thay contain a tims ilmlt for acceptanca, all tenders are non-kinding Additionelly, they de not
Indude any state, local, or govermmant taxes, dutles, snd/ar custonn charges unless spachically steted. A
ronbindlng tendar can be revoked by BulEx far up ta ona weeld after acceptance by the other party. In
reading the measures, welghts, colors and tachrical data centainsd [nths tenders, tha other party should
aflow lor tinet discrep encls which do 1ot sxceed the rormal limits,

22  Slzes, welghts, colors and tachnical datalls [n tha offers should be read Insuch a way that the
coUTterparty must take account of smadl deviations thatdo not go bayond the boundartes ot what ks
consldated nanmal

2.2 Pricesin tenders and contracts are basad on the mkvent circumat and dats (pariicularly the
satary and materials osts) which ware Inforce or known to, BuIEx at the time of praparing ths tendet o2
contiuding the cantrect

24  BufiEx ls entitted to adjust offered or agreed pri o] bl and there
I change In these clroumstancas or data aftar the ssuing of Hmtenﬁer orthe conclusion of the
contract, hut before the parformancs of tha contract,

25  Tenders Issued end contracts sntered into by represantatives, sales agents or intermadharies are
binding on BullEx onty after the order bas bean confirmed inwiiting.
2.5 BallExbearsno respons|blifty/Tabilty for designs develope d by the cllant, sven it

BulEx hasadvissd on these daslins. Likewlss, BullEX bears no Eollity/liabHity for p and
provited to BullEx or prescrihed by the buyar. . .

27 BuilEx s onlybound by offara and vd/conchitdad by ivas, In|
zgents, or Internad|atiss attar a wittten order umﬂrrnaﬂun by BullEx

Article 3 Defivary

3.1 AYl deltveries ars made from Alhany. NY,

3  ZUniass exprosaly agroad othawlss, stated delivery imes shali not be rogarded as doadlines. in the
avant of ks deitvery, the othar puty mitst glve BullEx dia netl ce befors BullEx ean ba In default

33 Thoagroad dolvarytime commences with effect fram tha date of the writtan confirmation of order.
3.4 HBullEx ls praventad by fovcs mafeura from making full, correct and propar dejlvery within tha
dalivery ime, BUBEx Is antitiad tn eakcel tha contract, ar taint the other party of a L]

Budgetary Proposal 29

8.3 Wthe counter party doss not pay within the sat time, it shell be desmad to be legally In default

witheut tha requiramant far amy weming or notica of detault.

84 From that momenmnt, tha statutory interast, nswell asiagal and other costa Incurrad in ordar to sacura tha
porformancs of the contract, Hs liatien and/or will be chasgenbia to tha othar party, axcept
H Eal Ex I3 reied agatnst by a final and concjusiva Judgment ofthe court.

8.5 Tha collaction costs aha|l amountte st lenst 15% oftha outstanding sum, subject to 8 minimum of thees
hundred L5 doliars,

&8  The countar-pary s at ail kimas sbl|gad to fumish 1o BuliEx, y upon request, fortha
tulfilbment of Its cbiigations, [ the counter-pary doas nat campty with this request, BuliEx will ba antitled to
dlssafva the contract, a3 wall a3 any other sii exdsting eontracts batwesn BullEx and ta counterparty,
withourt ] tion, and te dlaim d

Article 3 industrial proparty rights

8.4 The other parky reccgnizes BullEx's copyright or patent right and/or models ght In raspect of s
nventions or Rsdeslgrs.

8.2 The capy or patant and/or models Hghts to the ﬂedyu and inventions devised and meade by BubEx Inthe
execution of &h oTdar rast solety with BulEx

a3 Uniess stherwise agreed [nwiiting, the original dn:[m: mada by BullEx in the parformanca of a contract
rest with BUREX tind the other party ks not permittiod to uaathe doslgn sent to itfor approval for any ather
pUrpose than far asdessing whethar tha werk can baeXeciited In corformby with the deslgn.

94 Hanohfpet of the contract is subject to & copyright/peatant/deslgn protection held hyBunEx.'hn
counterpartyof Bubitx meeh 'canaa In acope and } far the usa of that
Haht

85  The llcensais vafid only lfthe sthar party fuliis tho fianclal obilgatlans connactad with making

9.8 Thallcanas eppilss=akly tnthe use of tho dealgn or Invantlon Ih quastion by the othar party Hself of by
persons or bodias who take over or continua the operations of the othar party in sush @ manner that they can
b [dantifled In this regard with the othet party.

9,7 Use otthe llcansa by third parifes ks not pannitted sxcept after writtan permission has been obtalned trom
Bulifx.

24  As [ongs asthers iz tatention of tihe {n placa, Bullix can reciatm the goods with put this constituting
default, The buyer imevocably authotizes BullEX to entar the places whars thass doods are locuted, Additionafy,
the buyer ks not authotzad to elienate the gonds, norto ensumber the goods with any fght or restricted dght,

Articta 10 Jurisdiction

104  The partles sect Albuny. NY forths Jurtsdiction far aRy lagnl disputesfor this comtract.
102  The lecally eovrt will bo of anydlsp

taka
batwasn the parties, unless the pravislons of mandatory lsw mnﬂidvdﬂl this cholca of taw.

Articie 14 Apalicabla law

114 All legai reintionships between tha parties are govemed exciiuzNaty by US faw, to tha axciisioh ofall
othey legalsystams.

112 TheVlanna Sales (ClsG) Is licable, nor ara sny othar intamational rulings from

‘within which full, carrect and proper delivery can stifl be made, without BullEx haing bound to pay any
compenhaation.

35 By forca malayre on the part of BullEx is mannt when BulEx is prevanted, after the cancluslon of the
contract, from fulf}itng its obligations underthls cantract or from prepating to fulfd them, &.¢., as s
gonsequanca of war, war Sanger, chvll war, riot, act of wer, firs, watar damage, Ineczesatbility of certala
aruu,fluodlng, strika, worke. Hion, lockout, hind 1o impars ahd axports, officia] regulatinhs,
inthe powier supply, al! of thesa both in BefEX's Tactory and [n the third
panty utabllshmnnts from which BullEx wholly or partly dmws the necssgary plant oy raw materials, aswel|
85 In stomga ar during trahsport, whather er not under BullEx's own controf and, fuithar, through all other
calses erisimg through e fauit of BUREX or owtsida its aren of risk,

36 EujlExis entlttad to have delerias mada orsovices parformed hy’ﬂli\i partes.

3.7 The buyer should ensure thak Bul(Ex ls able to camy out the work

‘which ispanmitted.

Article 12 Guarantae

124  Builkx the propar flincti of itn preducts apd the savndness of the matsrals end parts
used thersln for 2 perlad of twelvs (12) months after deflvary ar for any okhar such tann es agraed in wrttihg
batweeh BullEx and the counterpaity. No guarantee ls givan for preducts that ware not now at the moment of
daltvary.

122 Hthe Involves the Ing of i bytha buyar, BuREX gunrnntess the
product incomparsting the materia) of e Buyar fora perod of 5ix (6) months after deitvery. i the processing
proves to be unsound, ButiEx may, at s own diseration, aither remady the fait o7 perform the processing
agamn using matanal to ke dallversd by the buyer, ar rafund a proportionats amount of the putchase price.
123  Partsfor which the wear-anttaar is dependent on the Intensity and fraquency of use of the praduct

other things, the buyar shouid ansura free access to the mlﬂﬂoniﬁe and tha avaitability of afl ﬂ\c
hecessary fackifas.

Artido 4 Linbliity

41 Al Bablitycanceming products, dellvary, precessing, transport and uss of goods defivered by Hulifx
s axcluded excepting in the casa af intent or gross nagligsnca cn the part of BullEx

42 QOnlythe damage which Bullix s Insured of, will bs d, cr should bl insusred of.
43 The following ars hot subfact to 2ty dua to
business stoppega and loss of profit; Damages infficted oh pnmnsanﬂfﬂr property found In tha vicinity of
the lacetion witera the contract ks beg parformead inflicted by or during the performanes of the conirach
Damagas enused by third partias, sueh as auxiliarias engagad by BullEx

4.4 Shouid BUllEX Incur any Yablity to third parties ns 8 result of the psrformanca af the cantract, tha
counterparty will Indamaity BuflEx in tagard to tis fablity

Article 5 Annuiment of contracts

51 Hfths othar party cancelsa contrict, BUlEX 1S entitied to racovey from the other partythe costs which
K hesingyirad that can no longar be recoverad, as well iisiast profit,

5.2 Thelost profit must amountio at least 25% of the paynant (axcluding tumover tax) that
BuBExwould hava recelved from the performance of the contract,

Article 6 Camplaints .

61 Complaints, ssues, or amy deviations do notantitia the athar portyto defer or suspend fspaymant
obligations to BulE L

62 Complainis mustbe submited in writing, and suppnrtad by reasons, within fourteen days of tha
other party having taken of the bly belng ahla to teke cognizance of
tha complaint, in the absanca sfwhich BuliEx is mﬁuadtu dhmgard ths complatnt,

63 Hthe complalnt I justified, Bullix I snittiad, as it seas fit, to reduce amount of the Involces it hes
praparad, or to Improve the resutts of s wark, |

Article 7 Transport

71 HRullExls satiiad to determinathemede of transport.

72  Transpart costs sre ngt inefuded in tha tander and selling prices, hut ara in thargad separatalyto tha
other paiy, unless expressly stated In tha tendet, bid, of contract,

13 Transporttakes piaced atthe cther party’srisk

7.4 Tha goodswihl ba suppiled by BullEX In ! that BullEx destvis T f the buyar
praseribas difstant packuging, BUBEX Is antitiad to charga the buyer for the costs thug Incurred,

Articls 8 Paymeant

81 Pesyment must ziways be mads within 30 days of the invoice date, witheutany discount or uifset, at
BUlEX"s offfca of by transfar to BUUEX'S basrK aczount,

82 BulExretalns the ewnorship of gaods untd! the time that the due purchase sum, induding any
statutory intsest, collection costs etc., hes basn paid In full and recelved by BullEx, avan i the goads

ha hlla bash b § ol a0 th it

1

ara guarantaad fortwetve {12y months of normalusage ee detarmined by BuBEx
12.5 [fthadallyuselsdesmedto ba more irtensiva than nomal for the preduct deltvared, the
period will be shortened propartionaily.
125 BulEx st b infemmsd of mofe (ntensiva use. i the collntar-paty falls to Sio so, the gusrantes for wear
andiearparts Is cancelled Infull,
4726  Faults thatarlas after modificatinn or repalr by thied parties ar B the pmdum ara not used for the
puipese Tor whish they ate Intsndad, faults thet arisa due to nommal orli
maintenance, ara not covared underths guarmntse. The buyer isalso bared from !nvoklngﬁw Zunrantee
provisions for the foliowing
(8) Hsoftwara end/or systems purchasad by the buyar heva basn nstelied without the priay
permission of BullB.
Upon normsiwaar-and-tnr (oxnpum part! {isted underpolnt 12.03)

{c) Hihabuyar has used th Tor puyp forwhich they were not

designad,

{dy Iflhnhuyurhusmndlﬂedthegnodaorhadﬂmgondsmodlﬂedhymlrdpmﬂu

(8) Intha avent of M improper prope? vatage, | stiike,
dua to tion or other extemal causes of calemities,

i} ifscftware prablems svise us to tha Installation of saftwara apniiad by thind partfes without the
expilcit parmission ofBullEx
127  Inprinciple, the repslrs under gusrantas will be camisd out by ButlEx at the factory locatlon. i repairs at
BullEx's pwn sita ars not pessible, the buyer Is onty antitied te the replacemeont of rapalr of the faulty parts
{uniess otherwize explicily ngreed).
428  Buli’x can declde hot to repalrthe goodsbut Instead to replace them with brand new er aguivatent
goods, or to teke back the gaods and i sppropriste rafund part of tha purchass Prica ahd/or offal 2
cofpambisaltamtive.

129 The goodsreplaced yndar guarantss will be tha property of BuliEx

Article 13 Dissolution
13.1 BullEx Is te dlssotva the fudad with the
Intstventioh, relalning infull &= rghts to dalm damages, In the avent ot
() mmh:e plymnnt on mepnn of the countarparty of scllactatde smounts;
of Ity

perty without judlolat

bytho counterparty:
Appllmtlnn fnr hnnh’njm.ybyma eeuntcv-pnny
under conser
L of tha
(8@ For oncall daEvary: 1‘nl.|ura tntalm tha seld goods within tha agreed tenm (or, i ha tanmn s agread:
within three months) by the countarparty. BulExwill ha entitlad to dissotva the contract, eswall 83 any other
conitacts poifermed betwean BulEx ahd tho countor-party, withotrt Judicial intervention, and to
clalm damages.

party;

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.bullex.com




BunEx{Eﬁ Budgetary Proposal 30

Contact

Thank you for cansidering BullEx as a trusted source for your fire training. It has been an honor for us to provide
you with this proposal.

Please do not hesitate to contact us should you require any more information or have any questions about the
proposal provided or our company.

Kyle Haines ‘
Regional Sales Manager

20 Corporate Circle

Albany, NY 12203

Ph: 888-4BULLEX | 518-689-2023
Fax; 518-689-2034

3 BullEx’

20 Corporate Circle | Albany, NY 12203 | phone 518.689.2023 | fax 518.689.2034 | www.bullex.com




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 10, 2018

DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Governing Board

SUBJECT MATTER: Resolution regarding spotlighting

COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

Stemming from public comment at the April 10, 2018 regular meeting, the
County Attorney is in the process of preparing a draft resolution
regarding the practice of “spotlighting” in the county for the board’s

discussion and/or consideration. It will be forwarded in a separate e-mail to
the board.

Attachments

Agenda Item 11D




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 10,2018

DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Governing Board

SUBJECT MATTER: Dog park
COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:
Chairman Tate has some thoughts he would like to share regarding the

aesthetics of the dog park located near Wesley’s Park along the Little
Tennessee River Greenway.

Attachments

Agenda Item 11E




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: May 8, 2018

DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Grand Finale Entertainment, LLC

SUBJECT MATTER: June 9, 2018 fireworks display

COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

Please see the attached application and supporting documentation for a
fireworks show scheduled for June 9, 2018 at the Old Edwards Inn’s The
~ Farm location in Highlands, NC. The show is for a private wedding
reception.

Attachments

Agenda Item 11F




April 10, 2017

Mr. Jimmy Teem

The lirewo

Macon County Fire Marshal show in o box!
104 East Main Street
Franklin, NC 28734

RE: June 9. 2018 OFI The Farm outdoor fireworks permit request

Dear Mr. Teem:

On behalf of Grand Finale Entertainment, Inc., I'm writing to submit this request for permit to conduct an outdoor
fireworks display on Saturday. June 9, 2018 at Old Edwards Inn’s The Farm location: 336 Arnold Rd Highlands, NC
28741. This fireworks show is for a private wedding reception and we are only using UN0336 1.4G Consumer Class-C
devices. No aerial shells or splitting devices in the sky will be used in this location. Only lower level strobes, fountains,
wheels, mines and comets will be in use.

My company invented a new fireworks solution called ViVID, The Fireworks Show In A Box! ViViD is custom made for
smaller events with minimal impact on surrounding communities and resources. ViViD reduces the historical challenges

with fireworks such as space, cost, logistics, debris, noise, and environmental impact. Here is our website if you would
like to see more information www.vividfireworksbox.com

Grand Finale Entertainment, Inc. is a fully licensed and insured fireworks operation that meets all local and federal
requirements and abides by all codes set forth in the National Fire Protection Agency’s 1123 guidelines for fireworks
displays. We insure every show with $2 million in liability coverage and have fully licensed NC pyrotechnicians on staff.
I'will include Macon County NC Commissioner’s Office as additionally insured for this event.

I respectfully submit this letter and the aftached documents for your consideration, We would greatly appreciate your
approval and guidance presenting this permit request to the next Macon County Commissioners’ Monthly Meeting.
Thank you very much for your consideration. Please let me know when you approve and the next steps.

Sincerely,

/-777(&‘—

James Fish

Founder & President

Grand Finale Entertainment, LLC
{864) 256-1694




STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT TO EXHIBIT, USE AND/OR DISCHARGE
PYROTECHNICS FOR CONCERT OR PUBLIC EXHIBITION

L. Display Operator/Applicant’s full name and address: John Adair

6 Claru Ridge Rd, Fletcher, NC 28732

2. Has the Display Operatof/Applicant been issued a display operator license under N.C. Gen.

Stat. § 58-82A-3 and does the same remain in effect?  Y€s . Attach copy.
3 Place of proposed public exhibition: Old Edwards Inn, The Farm: 336 Arnold Rd Highlands, NC
. 28741
4. Will the exhibition beindoor?  NO . If'so, additional rules apply.
5. Will the proposed exhibition be in connection with concerts or public exhibitions, éuch as
fairs, carnivals, shows of all descriptions and/or public celebrations? No . Ifso, which:

6. Will the proposed exhibition be used for any other purpose?  Y&S Ifsgo, what?
Private wedding -

7. Does the Display Operator/Applicant have insurance in the amount of at least five hundred
thousand dollars (§500,000) or the minimum amount required by the North Carolina
Building Code pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-138(e), whichever is greater? Yes, $2million
Attach full copy of the same.

8. The names of all Individual(s) who are to exhibit, use, handle or discharge pyrotechnics in
connection with the concert or public exhibit; John Adair

9. Have all persons identified in #8 above completed training and licensing required under
Article 82A of Chapter 58 of the North Carolina General Statutes? Yes

10.  Will the display operator or proximate audience display operator, as required under Article
82A of Chapter 58 of the North Carolina General Statutes, be present at the concert or public
exhibition? __ Y°S

1. Will the display operator or proximate audience display operator, as required under Article
82A of Chapter 58 of the North Carolina General Statutes, personally direct all aspects of
exhibiting, using, handling, or discharging the pyrotechnics? Y©S

12. Does Display Operator/Applicant have all necessary permissions from the property owner
of the lands where the display will take place? Yes

I certify under penalty of perjury that the responses to the above are truthful all respects.
This the 18th day of April ,2018
%m Fze/  CEO Grand Finale Entertainment LLC

Display Operator/Applicant




arnald Rd

—

P
c
Q.

A mowry
-

L

- 9oudi

/2 NNI

s

"B B JO %ESIGIE

‘ oOTE UOuIBNP”
pupm sunr Suyieasig .

N




S92IABP pallj-un BuluIbWal AUD SAOWISI JO/PUD sligsap ib9D o} Ausdoid
Ay} yBnouyy ipm YBnoioyy B epnjoul pub seufepING €Z1 1 Vd4N MO|Io} i UolOadsul 8{Is MOUS JSOd -

SLUY {0 JO PaIOHUOWI PUD Pajpis ‘alis Buuly paljioads sy apisul Pajpo0o] S[2IYaA Hodsuply
9IND9S5 P UL PAYO0| S8X0Q PaJRBNL0D Ul Pasojoua a4 jiim Moys 0} Joud ssomai Jo oBpIoIS

sejnuiw 0Z: Alejpwixolddo stmoys Jsod dnupsl »
sejnuitu g-/ Ajgipulixoiddp uoypIND MOYS
awiy jooys o} soud swiy dn 485 JO sOINUIW G INOGD aINDSIAUO [IM MOUS SIYL
810T "6 sunf “jos Wd 00:01 89 O} PSJOWIYSS Sl MOUS SYIOMBII]
1S9j0U |DIYSIBO} MOYS SUI0S

MOUS SIY] Ul pasn aq [iM SYODIIDHOW [D]SW IO JiSo|d ON
"SODIASP D-SSRID JBWNSUOD DF| [IV "SSUIL ‘SIWI0D ‘S|eaym ‘S8golls 'sUIDjuno)
[9A8] Jomo| Buisn Ajuo — ANs oy ul saoiasp Buiiids JO sising [ousD ON :pasn 8¢ Of SYIOMaY JO sodA] »
S8DIABP 99 |0 PSJOUINSS Pasn 89 O} SPoMa JO AIUDND DO} «
SHOMSII] 3-55D[D 9EE0NM BWNSUC) DF [ AUD «
TMOUS SIYj Ul pasn 9q O] S JIOMII] »

8L0T ‘6 sunf
uondiosaq 921A9Q 1oNPoiId SHHOMAIY QIAIA




NORTHCAROLINA

DEPARTMENT OF INSURANC

OFFICE OF STATE FIRE

’MU““@"'(”""“ P2 DB IS

Commissioncr of Insurance Senior Deputy Commissianer
State Fire Marshal Assistanl State Fire Marshal

&
S

7
=z
T
=
S

&
p—y
o
=
=

John Adair
License # 2056

[7¢]
<
=
=
o
o
ot
E
»
1=
&
~
-+
=
<




CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE ' ISSUE DATE 4192018 .

PRODUCER THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS

NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AMEND,
PROFESSIONAL PROGRAM INSURANCE BROKERAGE EXTEND OR LATER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW.
371 BEL MARIN KEYS BLVD., SUITE 220 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE
NOVATO CA, 94949-5662 )
INSURERA: | | 6vD'S OF LONDON
INSURED INSURER B:
Grand Finale Entertainment, LLC -
DBA: ViViD Fireworks Show In A Box! INSURER C:
103 Kenton Court -
Simpsonville, SC 29681 INSURER D:
COVERAGES

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE NAMED INSURED ABOVE
FOR THE PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER
DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY
THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN iS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES.

co POLICY EFFECTIVE POLICY EXPIRATION
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER DATE (MM/DD/YY) DATE (MNI.'DDIYY) LIMITS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH ACCIDENT $ 2,000,000
CLAIMS MADE
MEBICAL EXE [Any one
A PY/18-0003 01/11/2018 01/11/2019 person) $
FIRE LEGAL LIABILITY $ 50,000
GEN’L AGGREGATE LIMIT GEMNERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
APPLIES PER POLICY
PRODUCTS-COMPIOPS AGG | $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY {Ea accident) $
— ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY
— ANY OWNED AUTOS {Per person) $
SCHEDULED AUTOS BODILY INJURY
| HIRED AUTOS {Per accident) $
| NON-OWNED AUTOS PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident) $
EXCESS LIABILITY
FOLLOWING FORM EACH ACCIDENT $
AGGREGATE $
WC STATU- OTH-
WORKERS COMPENSATION TORY LIMITS ER 3
AND .
EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY E.L.EACH ACCIDENT 5
E.L. DISEASE-EA EMPLOYEE 5
E.L DISEASE-POLICY LIMIT 5
OTHER

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES/EXCLUSIONS ADDED BY ENDORSEMENT/SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Cld Edwards Inn and Macon County North Carolina Commissioners Office are Additional Insured as respecis the 1.4 G Class C aerial firework dsiplay on
06/09/2018 located at 336 Arnold Rd Highlands, NC 28741

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
Shelbi S £ M. Elizabeth Event SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANGELLED BEFORE THE
€101 simpson of . Ehizabeih Events EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, THE ISSUING COMPANY WILL ENDEAVOR TO MAIL
4268 Cahaba Heights Ct # 148 DAYS WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER NAMED TO THE LEFT, BUT
Birmingham, Al. 35243 FAILURE TO MAIL $UCH NOTIGE SHALL IMPOSE NO OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY OF ANY




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 10,2018

DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Governing Board/County Attorney

SUBJECT MATTER: Possible opioids litigation
COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:
The County Attorney will initiate a discussion as to whether the county

would want to join in litigation regarding the opioids issue and if the board
would like to hear from an attorney, Garry Whitaker, on this matter.

Attachments

Agenda Item 11G




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: May 8, 2018

DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Governing Board

SUBJECT MATTER: Consent Agenda

DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

A. Minutes — Consideration of the minutes from the April 10, 2018 regular meeting,
per Attachment 12A.

Finance —  Consideration of budget amendments #191 through #194, per
Attachment 12B.

Tax releases — Consideration of tax releases for April 2018 in the amount of
$295.02, per Attachment 12C.

Ad valorem tax collection report — No action is necessary. Attachment 12D.

COUNTY MANAGER’S COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

Attachments X Yes

Agenda Item 12 (A) (B) (C) (D)




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
APRIL 10, 2018
MINUTES

Vice-Chairman Beale called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. and welcomed
those in attendance. All Board Members (with the exception of Chairman Tate
and Commissioner Higdon), the County Manager, Deputy Clerk, Finance
Director, County Attorney, members of the news media and interested citizens
were present.

ANNOUNCEMENTS: Vice-Chairman Beale noted that Chairman Tate would
not be in attendance this evening, and that Commissioner Higdon had a death
in the family and the funeral was today and he might be late in arriving. Vice-
Chairman Beale also announced that services would be held on Saturday, April
14 at 2 p.m. for Frank Wood, whose remains were recovered from the USS
Oklahoma at Pearl Harbor in Hawaii following his death there at the age of 23.
Mr. Wood’s service will be held at Carson Cemetery. Also, the County Manager
noted that Chairman Tate would be calling in via telephone to listen to the
meeting with the understanding that he cannot vote on any of the matters that
will come before the board.

MOMENT OF SILENCE: Vice-Chairman Beale asked those in attendance to
observe a moment of silence.

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG: Led by Commissioner Gillespie, the pledge to the flag
was recited.

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: Jim Gray spoke regarding the revised Animal
Control Ordinance and thanked the board for holding the public hearing and
also thanked Macon County Public Health Director Jim Bruckner for his work
on the ordinance, which Mr. Gray said made it a much stronger, much better
document. Donald Waldroop addressed the spotlighting of deer and pointed
out that the county has no ordinance about shining lights after dark from the
public road right-of-way. Mr. Waldroop recounted some instances of this
activity he had witnessed near his house, and said that other counties have
ordinances that make this illegal and asked the board to consider taking such
a measure. The County Attorney noted that this can be done through a local
bill in the state General Assembly following action from the county’s board of
commissioners. Robin Woods also spoke to the spotlighting issue and to

Minutes
04.10.18
Page 1 of 6




hunting on private property. He said more than 30 counties in North Carolina
have laws about hunting on other people’s property and require the
landowner’s permission to do so. He said this gives law enforcement “a little
more teeth” and that it shouldn’t be a burden on the landowner. “No ethical
sportsman would object to that,” he told the board.

ADDITIONS, ADJUSTMENTS TO AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: Upon
a motion by Commissioner Shields, seconded by Commissioner Gillespie, the
board voted unanimously to approve the agenda as adjusted, as follows:
* To add approval of a letter to Sourwood Running, LLC to allow the Smoky
Mountain Relay running event to take place within the county as Item
11G under New Business, per the County Manager.

MAKIN’ BOTS ROBOTICS TEAM: Jennifer Love, the STEM Coordinator for
Macon County Schools, introduced the members of the Makin’ Bots Robotics
Team and the team’s robot. She said she wanted to thank the board for its
support of the county’s STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering and Math)
program. She explained how grant funding had supported the program and
that one large part of it was the robotics portion. She told the board that the
program is entering its fourth year of the LEGO League, and that the school
system has an average of 70 students in grades 5-8 who have participated and
go to competition each year. In the past year, a high-school level FIRST
Robotics Competition program was started through a partnership with the local
manufacturing firm Tektone, which provided space as well as mentors for the
students. “The team has also been supported by community volunteers and
parents who guided our students through the building and programming of our
robot for competition,” she said, with grant funding coming from NASA and
Duke Energy. For the team’s “rookie” season, 15 high school students from
Franklin High and Macon Early College participated, and the team had recently
returned from competition in two weekend tournaments where it earned the
“Rookie Inspiration Award” and the “Highest Rookie Seed Award” and came
within one spot of going to state competition. She introduced the student
members of the team, who talked about how the robot project evolved and
shared some of the “bumps” along the way. The students said that additional
funding and mentors are needed and spoke to how the program has taught
them perseverance. They thanked Ms. Love for her guidance. Vice-Chairman
Beale called the work of the team “absolutely marvelous” and told Ms. Love,
“We cannot thank you enough.” No action was necessary.

REVISED ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE: Public Health Director Jim
Bruckner outlined the changes that had been made to the proposed revised
Animal Control Ordinance following the public hearing on the matter at the
board’s February 13, 2018 regular meeting. He explained that there were two
major changes following comments made at the hearing, one regarding

Minutes
04.10.18
Page 2 of 6




adequate shelter for large animals and the other regarding the ordinance’s
relationship to hunting laws. He said the revised ordinance also eliminated all
of the small, complicated parts and pieces and made the ordinance a lot clearer
and a lot easier to administer. Vice-Chairman Beale and the County Attorney
then pointed out that in order for an ordinance to pass on first reading, all of
the members of the board must vote in favor of it. So with two members
absent, the board members present agreed to move forward and vote on the
first reading with a second reading to take place at the board’s May regular
meeting. Mr. Bruckner pointed out that the county’s Board of Health voted
unanimously to approve the revised ordinance. Upon a motion by
Commissioner Gillespie, seconded by Commissioner Shields, the board voted 3-
0 to approve the restated Animal Control Ordinance as presented.

RESOLUTION DESIGNATING A PORTION OF WAYAH ROAD IN HONOR OF
DR. THOMAS MCNISH: Following some opening comrments, Vice-Chairman
Beale read for the record a “Resolution Requesting that the North Carolina
Department of Transportation Dedicate a Portion of the Wayah Road in Macon
County in Honor of Dr. Thomas M. McNish.” He explained that this was the
first step in the process and that the resolution would be forwarded to the state
transportation department for further action. Upon a motion by Commissioner
Shields, seconded by Commissioner Gillespie, the board voted 3-0 to approve
the resolution as read, a copy of which is attached {Attachment 1) and is
hereby made a part of these minutes.

MOUNTAIN VALLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT MAP: Emergency Services
Director Warren Cabe told the board that the Mountain Valley Fire Department
has made a request to reinstate the department’s substation located on Coon
Creek Road. He said the department’s membership has improved to 28.
Meanwhile, the North Carolina Office of State Fire Marshal has changed the
inspection requirement from 20 members to 15 for the main station and from
eight to four members for the substation. He also noted that the overall
response area will remain unchanged but more residents will be eligible for the
benefits of a potentially lower protection class rating if the department
successfully completes a rating inspection scheduled for April 2314, so time is of
the essence in asking for the map approval. After reviewing the map provided
by Mr. Cabe, and upon a motion by Commissioner Shields, seconded by
Commissioner Gillespie, the board voted 3-0 to accept the department’s fire
district map with the reinstated substation as requested.

COMMUNITY FUNDING POOL RECOMMENDATIONS: The County Manager
reminded the board that the task force for the Community Funding Pool
basically had to “start from ground zero” with several new members, and he
noted that Karen Wallace, a longtime task force member, had been an integral
part of getting that going. He said that by-laws for the newly revised group

Minutes
04.10.18
Page 3 of 6




were still a work in progress. Ms. Wallace said that this year’s work had been a
great opportunity to learn from history. She said the current group of 13
committee members received 17 applications seeking a total of $129,623, with
$75,000 available to be allocated. Of the 17, 13 were recommended for
funding, and a list of those recommendations is attached (Attachment 2) and is
hereby made a part of these minutes. She said there are certain agencies that
the task force would like to approach the board of commissioners about
directly funding instead of taking it from the pool. She said there is “a wide
discrepancy” among the agencies applying, as some are well grounded while
others are just getting started and have no track record. Following further
discussion, and upon a motion by Commissioner Gillespie, seconded by
Commissioner Shields, the board voted 3-0 to approve the recommendations as
presented.

SOUTH MACON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL RESOLUTIONS: In the first of two
matters regarding the planned expansion of South Macon Elementary School,
the Finance Director explained that she was seeking authorization for the filing
of an application for approval of a financing agreement for the project in an
amount not to exceed $2,923,674. Commissioner Shields made a motion to
approve the “Resolution Authorizing the Filing of an Application for Approval of
a Financing Agreement Authorized by NC General Statute 160A-20 and
Providing for Certain Other Related Matters Thereto.” The motion was
seconded by Commissioner Gillespie, and during discussion, he raised the
question of using money from the county’s fund balance to pay for the
expansion instead of obtaining a loan. Vice-Chairman Beale said the county
had never used fund balance to pay for school construction. Commissioner
Gillespie said that he would like to have further discussion about paying from
fund balance at the board’s May 8% meeting. The County Attorney noted that
an interlocal agreement with the county’s Board of Education would be needed.
After further discussion, the board voted 3-0 to approve the resolution as
presented, a copy of which is attached [(Attachment 3) and is hereby made a
part of these minutes. As to the second item, upon a motion by Commissioner
Shields, seconded by Commissioner Gillespie, the board voted 3-0 to approve a
“Resolution of the County of Macon, North Carolina Declaring the Intent of the
County of Macon, North Carolina to Reimburse Itself for Capital Expenditures
Paid in Connection with Certain Improvements to South Macon Elementary
School from the Proceeds of a Certain Installment Purchase Contract to be
Executed and Delivered in Calendar Year 2018,” a copy of which is attached
(Attachment 4) and is hereby made a part of these minutes.

APPLICATION FOR EDUCATION LOTTERY FUNDS: The Finance Director
told the board this was the annual application used to draw down money from
the North Carolina Education Lottery Public School Building Capital Fund.
This year, the amount available to the county is $297,259.24. She said the

Minutes
04.10.18
Page 4 of 6




county’s Board of Education approved the application on March 26th., She
pointed out that the money must be used for school construction or to make a
principal and interest payment on an existing school construction loan. Upon
a motion by Commissioner Shields, seconded by Commissioner Gillespie, the
board voted 3-O to approve the application as presented, a copy of which is

attached [Attachment 5) and is hereby made a part of these minutes.

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH TOWN OF FRANKLIN REGARDING GAZEBO:
The County Attorney explained that the Town of Franklin is looking to renew
the lease agreement with the county regarding the gazebo located on the town
square. He said the property is currently leased to the town for entertainment
purposes, and while the expiring lease is for a period of 20 years, the town is
seeking a 30-year lease in the new proposal. He said that the document, which
was drafted by Town Attorney John F. Henning, Jr., would now require a 180-
day notice to terminate the agreement, as opposed to the current 30-day
notice. Vice-Chairman Beale said he had several questions about the new
agreement, including one about conversations he had heard about the town
allowing alcohol to be served at events held at the gazebo. The County
Attorney noted he had prepared a memo to the board that outlined 11 specific
items “that need work,” but that the draft version is a good starting place for
discussion. Commissioner Gillespie said he also had some concerns, one of
which was if the lease grants the town exclusive use of the property, then what
happens if the county wants to use it. Vice-Chairman Beale raised concerns
about liability issues. With the agreement set to expire May 5%, he said the
county is not saying “no” to a renewal but that there is some need to talk about
it. The County Attorney asked the board to consider allowing the County
Manager to sign an extension of the existing lease for a one-month period while
these matters are addressed. Following further discussion and the
recommendation of the County Manager, upon a motion by Commissioner
Shields, seconded by Commissioner Gillespie, the board voted 3-0 to extend the
current lease agreement until June 14, 2018.

FIREWORKS PERMIT: Following a brief overview from Vice-Chairman Beale,
and upon a motion by Commissioner Gillespie, seconded by Commissioner
Shields, the board voted 3-0 to grant a permit to Grand Finale Entertainment,
LLC to conduct an outdoor fireworks display on Saturday, June 2, 2018 at the
Old Edwards Inn Rockwood Lodge at 1900 Hickory Knut Gap Road in
Highlands, NC. The fireworks show is for a private wedding reception.

SMOKY MOUNTAIN RELAY: Upon a motion by Commissioner Shields,
seconded by Commissioner Gillespie, the board voted 3-0 to authorize the
County Manager to sign a letter of acknowledgement and approval for
Sourwood Running, LLC to hold a portion of the Smoky Mountain Relay

Minutes
04.10.18
Page 5 of 6




running event in Macon County on April 20-21, 2018. A copy of the letter is
attached [Attachment 6) and is hereby made a part of these minutes.

CONSENT AGENDA: Upon a motion by Commissioner Shields, seconded by
Commissioner Gillespie, the board voted 3-0 to approve the items on the
consent agenda as follows: the minutes of the March 13, 2018 regular meeting;
the following budget amendments: K162 to allocate $1,830 from an insurance
settlement for the Sheriff’s Department for vehicle repairs; for the
Department of Social Services to appropriate an additional LIEAP allocation of
$10,000; #16@ for Emergency Services to allocate $214 from an insurance
settlement for repairs to the Fire Services truck; #1635 for the Housing
Department to appropriate a $50,000 funding increase in a Duke Energy 2017
Helping Home Fund grant; #166 for the Carpenter Building Renovation Project
to transfer $59,080 from the Buildings and Grounds budget to the Carpenter
Building Renovation Project budget to replace the roof on the building; #170 for
the Housing Department to appropriate $50,000 for a new Duke Energy
Income Qualified Weatherization Program. (Copies of the amendments are
attached); tax releases for the month of March in the amount of $5,121.56;
approved a Grant Project Ordinance for Duke Energy’s 2017 Helping Home
Fund in the amount of $108,603 (ordinance attached); approved a Grant
Project Ordinance Amendment for the PNC Healthy Housing Energy &
Neighborhood Beautification Improvement program in the amount of $37,800
(amendment attached): monthly ad valorem tax collections report (no action
necessary).

ADJOURN: With no other business, and at 7:30 p.m., upon a motion by
Commissioner Gillespie, seconded by Commissioner Shields, the board voted 3-
O to adjourn.

Derek Roland Ronnie Beale

Ex Officio Clerk to the Board Board Vice-Chairman
Minutes
04.10.18

Page 6 of 6




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT April 10, 2018

191

DEPARTMENT: SOCIAL SERVICES
EXPLANATION: Additional revenues

AMENDMENT #_____

FROM: FINANCE

DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
11-3584-4389-22 SHIPP REVENUE $2,856
11-5831-5675-26 SHIPP $2,856
/7
4
e 74

7 AR B —
REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD ’( M ’&- ) %/l//

/4
RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER MMW

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 5, /8y ww,e,%%/

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT
AMENDMENT #

4260 \ \h

' DEPARTMENT:
EXPLANATION;

114260-556003

_DECREASE

113839485000 | Insurance Setflemient

0

PPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

CTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS. f;ff //! "

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED. _

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT
AMENDMENT & .

FROM: Lindsay Leopard \0\6

DEPARTMENT:  Sheriff's Office

EXPLANATION:  Appropriation of federal drug forfetture money recelved.,

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

INCREASE,

DECREASE

| Federal Forfeiture Funds.

| Earfeiture Funds

| 410,232

nputer Supplies

$1,987

ft-Vebicles




MAGON.COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT \C\L\
AMENDMERT YA

DEPARTMENT “Capital Fra]

thund e
 funds:fromewildfire reimbursement for radio.cammun

tions:upgrade project.

ACCOUNT' DESCRIPTION ___[INCREASE DECREASE.

553050] _9BOD11 | TRFR FR GEN FUND-RADIO COMM: PR , L] as3e0]

554069] 5B0500|CONSTRUCTION-RADIO: COMM PROJ B | 145,360

113840] 417900|FUND BALANCEAPPROPRIATED o ) o 145,360

119000] 980055 | TRANSFER TO- COUNTY BLDGS FUND L ' N 145,360

REQUESTED-BY. DEPARTMENT HEAD:
MENBDED BY FINANCE OFEICER:

“ABPRONED BY COUNTY MANAGER

“ACTION BY BOARD GF COMMISSIONERS

ZPPROVED & ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

_ GILEle{-t




ugdraosaq Iscqumy °pD JUnOUY JUNOUR
o8 WAL JUSSTE ISSILJUT

ADY sumIg

8T/20/%0 23®Q =ATID2IIH

T abeg
E0E0Z00LH

0o"o

00°0
00°0
0070
00°0
000

0070

oo°o

coo

00°0
0070
000
00°0
co"o

000
co o
90" 0
0070

-ogTeL

~00°zZL
oo 0
000
000
0o o

~00° 24

-00" €L

oo o

Q090

00°Q
00°0
000
06"0
0070

sl he]
0070
00°0
(S]]

~€0°962

JuenburTag
FREEERERRE

—CQETT

Qo0
-BSE9T
-Z6°%¢
-¥T°0¢
-8€° ¥

-0E° 6T
-BE"F

-Z6°¥Z
—TLTE6T

-¥T°0¢
~§5°£97

00°0

JUBIIND

aTedD xeL Ag sTel0L

-Z0°96¢C

~00"EZL
-85S €91
-T6 ¥
~¥T70¢
-8 ¥

-0ETOT
-00°2L
-BE'¥
-Z6°%C
TELTE6T

-FL 0t
-89 E9T

Junoury

TOTIDeSURI], XBJ,

v

NHUWU

LELETE YR LYY

T0#BT+"THA
dnorn 103 TRIOL

g SHY -ST+TOT
XYL NED -LTxTOD
XWL NHD -ST+T0D
dd INYEN ~LT2604
dd OLLC -Stxe0d
sTejol Spo) XEL

Z8LEd "MDTHENEY

101
€03
09 TO LPTZETYST LYTTET
YITYH “dJI8v¥D
604
0D Z6TI08ETSOVLT 60¥%cZ
2pOD Iacump Eei=te (11110

TITO¥RL  3UNCODY

81/20/%0

81/81/%0

=231ed

A E

Lt ot

Z

IAN
Bag

¥O0x8T+THY I2cumN dnoxn

8T/T0/50

SUCTIOITTOD XBL



BE'LE YTL61558  TA'IBDBOBTE-  SR'6E09E BI'L¥S60T SE'EROESATE"
€956 LOP6BOTT  TS'9Z99THE- TRE8eE ] TOOTEETIE
16596 T'sta66 ZEQIEEETE- 8L YT 94T SRV PSSELE-
o'l6 LESERYS  BOTHIBYIOT- 95 IEEIE £V TS0 LO6ZeEREI-
afepuaniag avuejey SuIALY 15N 110 2sun Spuniy Suawiey
uvonyjiey:  FupuBising 553 S5049

€0°0Z¥901- TR BETSZT ET°LZ9801T-
: : BT 0 16°7E001-

T's¥666" EUEHET- EET FOTTITI-
£8°FSEFYD BO'ELZE]~ b1 o ﬂ_..v..m.wvhw‘
abuejeg SIUBLWARY BN /10 A spungey StuB Al
Buipueising 5597 55030

SO PBTEISEE
85075552
TP EITEETE
SO'OTSE892

Ana1 fpy
sjenby

LT'LI9196
£3'8Z60TT
ETIS01RT
SOTE96ZL

“Ana[py
sjlenby

eeeet-
Trog-
rE'8ET-
ST'5051-
SHO-SIHM
sga
£7'g~
9.0~
20° T~
6E T
SHORUIM
587

CYETYE-
081y
9481
C98LLL-
SI5EdBY
§5%7
55
89°t1-
YUPST-
saseafey
8537

| §10ETy Jo'se saxe) BTOZ uo %446 Oy poseduioy sé
BTOZ/OE/Y §i'5e-55%2) PSLAJaP pue s31i8A00sIp ‘sanfeusd Supsy a3e| ‘soxey (esausd Aunua £1g7 ue B31I3H03%9"/ 6 §1 918 LORIS][03 YL

9T T0L6ERILE
TELTISE
BEGOYSETE
B3 TOITE69T

99°091¢

a6t
VYRLEE
BEise

.um.mg

pappy
Knary

Ana]

cCooQoQ

ER
Bumuday

95°ICHESE
SOVGRTTL
STROLOTT
QL'ITELTL

aueeg
Huuuigeg

sjejor

a4 19y fgpuE)
SI3sIg Sid
Xel {21aURg

23ed 01 JBu),

s{ejn]

- 384350 |ypuE]

STOUISH A4
XEpjeraua

180 61 Yluopw

BT-40y

QT SNOLLIITION XYL WO IVA av
| ATHLNOW AINRGY NOJYIN




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 10,2018

DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Governing Board

SUBJECT MATTER: Appointments
COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

A. Highlands Tourism Development Commission — Jack Austin has
agreed to serve as the Large Accommodation representative on the
commission. Chairman Tate may have additional comments on the
commission’s membership list.

. Franklin/Nantahala Tourism Development Commission — Please see
the attached letter from Linda Harbuck regarding the terms of Ron
Haven and Linda Sterrett on the commission.

Attachments 1 Yes

Agenda Item 13 (A and B)




CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

B, Mountain Treasures. Simple Pleasures.

May 2, 2018

Mr. Derek Rowland, County Manager
Macon County Courthouse

5 W, Main Street

Franklin, NC 28734

Dear Mr. Rowland,

According to our records, two members of the Franklin/Nantahala Tourism Development Commission
have terms expiring on May 12, 2018. Those members are Ron Haven and Linda Sterrett. | have ask
each of them if they would like to serve another term on the Commission. Linda Sterrett responded that
she would like to serve again but Ron Haven declined.

| am hereby recommending that Linda Sterrett (Rose Creek Mine) be appointed to the TDC for another 3
year term (to expire May, 2021). Mrs. Sterrett is an at large attractions representative on the TDC.

Mr. Haven was the large accommodation representative on the TDC. | have not tried to contact a
representative from large accommodations to replace Mr. Haven. If so desired by the County, | will

make some contacts to see if anyone is interested.

Please let me know if | need to help find a replacement for Mr. Haven on the TDC.

5,

L s bt O

1ck, Secretary
ntahala TDC

n-chamber.com

98 Hyatt Road ¢ Franklin, North Carolina 28734 » ph: (828) 524-3161 * fax: (828) 369-7516 * www.franklin-chamber.com




